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PROCEEDI NGS

8:40 a.m
THE COURT: Today is January 20th, 2004, we're in

Alexandria, Virginia, and this is the ninth day of our

hearing in these mlk orders, and |I'll qgive you the official

nunber as soon as | fiqure out what | did with them

My name is -- I'mNarc Hillson, I'mthe

Adnmi ni strative Law Judge, and one of the things | wanted to

say was that -- and this is nore for the typist, who's going

to be typing the transcript, that this is a continuation of

a hearing that -- | looked on the internet, and the | ast

page that | saw was Page 2437, so that would -- 1'IIl be

aski ng the person who transcribes this to begin with Page

2438.

Once again, | believe that the Departnent intends

to post the transcript for this case on the internet, and |

don't know how much | need to say that | haven't said

before. Once again, as |'ve said, I'mjust here to keep

order, to rule on notions, to adm ni ster the oaths,

et cetera, but 1'mnot going to be making any decision in

this case.

| will read the -- it's Docket No. AO 368-832,

AO-271-837, and DA-03-04.

A couple prelinminary things, prelimnary matters.

| know |l said |l'd start the hearing at 9 o' clock, but the
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notice cane out at 8:30 and we're all here, so | guess

that's not really an issue, and I'll go from-- dependi ng on
how it's going, | would say, 8:30 to 5:30 or so, but I'm
willing to go later, if people are wanting to go later, it's

not a problemfor ne, unless people are getting really w ped

out [phonetic] before the end of the day, which has tended

to happen after eight or nine or ten really intensive hours.

| plan to have a norning break, about 15 m nutes.

| plan to have a decent |unch break

Let ne ask, Ms. Deskins, do you have any

additi onal exhibits? | know there's been at | east one new

notice of this hearing in particular, and -- | think the

last nonth -- we were doing these -- | think the last tinme

we did this, it was an A, B, or Cor D exhibit, | forgot how

| nunbered these, it's been so |ong.

M5. DESKINS: | think they were nunbered 1, 2, 3,

as | recall

THE COURT: Ckay. And --

MB. DESKI NS: | think that's how we did them

UNI DENTI FI ED NMALE: That's correct.

THE COURT: Yeah, | think | did -- | think that |

mar ked the newnotice exhibits as like B, C, and D

sonething like that.

MS. DESKINS: Ckay.

THE COURT: [Indiscernible.] So do you have --

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N o o b~ W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

2445

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: Just -- they were the

reconvene notice was Nunber 28 -- 28 and 29, so that they --

THE COURT: Gkay. So | think you nunbered

[i ndi scernible].

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: Sequenti al .

THE COURT: Ckay, then let's keep themthat way.

Thank you for that. 45 was the |last nunber | noted.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE:  Yes.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE:  Yes.

THE COURT: Ckay. So do vou have any exhibits

you want to give ne?

MB. DESKINS: Yes, Judge. W have the notice of

what was published in the Federal Reqister about the

reconvened hearing, it's dated Decenber 29th, 2003. | have

the press release, and |'mgoing to be getting a copy within

the hour of the certificate of mailing, so if | could give

you these two now, if we could reserve the nunber for the

certificate of mailing.

THE COURT: Should we just call them 46, 47, and

48, then?

MS. DESKINS: Right.

THE COURT: So 46 is the notice. Wat's 47, the

press rel ease?

MB. DESKINS: Yes.
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UNI DENTI FI ED MALE:  Yes.

THE COURT: And 48, which we don't have right

now, is the certificate of mailing.

M5. DESKINS: Certificate of mmiling.

THE COURT: But we'll get that shortly.

(Exhibits Nos. 46, 47, and 48 were nmarked for

identification.)

THE COURT: Ms. [indiscernible], there was sone

other exhibit | think that --

UNI DEWNTI FI ED VALE:  48.

THE COURT: 48, vyes, okay.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: | have copies of that.

THE COURT: Gkay. And who was that -- just

refresh ny recollection.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: It was a change in the table

by the testinony of Dan Mrrison, and since we had his

testinony with the exhibit submtted, | think it's the

exhibit -- we have the whole thing, with just the

nodi fi cations on the other, so --

THE COURT: Okay. So |'mogoing to just call it--

MR. YALE: We called it 48.

THE COURT: We'll call it Exhibit 48, that's

fine. M . Beshore?

MR. BESHORE: Just a small procedural thing. |

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2447

noted in reviewing the transcript of the Seattle sessions

that since the record is being tape-recorded, as opposed to

it being taken stenographically, that when the tapes were

changed we m ssed a sentence or so, on nobre than one

occasion. So | think for everyone's benefit when the person

taki ng the record needs to change the tapes we need to stop

and make sure we're not losing any of the --

THE COURT: COkay. | asked the reporter in

Seattle, and he told ne he had two machi nes goi ng and that

he would tell us if we had to stop, and | relied on that.

MR. BESHORE: He may have, but --

THE COURT: And I'mgoing to rely on this

reporter too. Do you have a single tape, do you have two

t apes goi ng, or --

COURT REPCRTER: | have a nmachine that -- one

ends, the other one automatically starts, so no problem

THE COURT: Gkay. You'll have to -- if you think

there's any problemat all, you just wave at us to stop.

COURT REPORTER _ Ckay.

THE COURT: The other thing I'Il ask you to do,
is |l try, | really do try, to get people to identify
t hensel ves every tine they speak, and there will be a nunber

of different people speaking here and doi hg guestioning, Sso

if vou don't get what it is, if yvou just wave to them |

find that they're very good at responding to that and w ||
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then identify thensel ves.

Are there any other prelimnary matters before we

-- ask M. Yale to call his next witness, anything else to

talk about at this point? M. Beshore?

MR. BESHORE: M. Mkrantz has predistributed

sone updates to his exhibits by ennil, we received them

anyway, |'msure that everyone did, so that at sone point |

t hi nk _he should be added to the witness list too, to present

t hose additional --

THE COURT: Ckay. Any suggestion as to when he

should be called? | assune you have no --

MB. DESKINS: It's up to vou, Judge Hillson, |

nean --

THE COURT: | don't care, |I'mnot nmking the

deci si on. In terns of the devel opnent of the record | nean,

do vou want M. Mykrantz to cone in, get his exhibits in,

and then turn it back over to M. Yale to call a witness?

How do yvou feel about that, M. Yale?

MR YALE: [|I'mfine with M. M/Kkrantz going

first, that's fine

THE COURT: Wiy don't you cone on up here,

M. M/krantz.

MB. DESKINS: And also, M. M/Kkrantz has sone

extra copies of the exhibits in the back

(Pause.)
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THE COURT: 1'll just remnd you, | don't have --
the [indiscernible] is still good, it hasn't expired yet, so
"Il just let -- Ms. Deskins, are you going to ask Mykrantz

MB. DESKINS: Yes.

THE COURT: -- sone questions to get these

docunents in?

MB. DESKINS: Yes.

THE COURT: Ckay.

M KE MYKRANTZ, DEPARTMENT' S W TNESS, SWORN

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. DESKI NS

Q M. M/krantz, for the record, just identify who

you are.
A. My nanme is John Mykrantz spelled My-k-r-a-n-t-z.

| ama marketing specialist with the Pacific Northwest/

Western Arizona-Las Vegas order, which office is |located in

Seattl e, Washi ngt on.

Q M. M/krantz, you prepared sone additiona

exhibits for this hearing; correct?

A. | _did.

Q Can you tell us what you prepared

A. | prepared three docunents, one which is entitled

"Statistical material prepared at the reguest of Sydney

Berde January 2004": a docunent entitled "Statistica
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material prepared at the request of Douglas Marshall, Senior

Vice President, Northwest Dairy Association, 2004": and one

final docunent, "Statistical material prepared at the

request of N. Dougl as Marshall, Senior Vice President,

Nort hwest Dairy Associ ation, Decenber 2003."

MB. DESKINS: Judge Hillson, could we have these

mar ked right now so that there won't be any further

[i ndi scernible] --

THE COURT: That's what | was just going to ask

you. GCkay, I'll just mark themin the order you identified

them so the docunment that says "Sydney Berde, January of

2004." I'm marking as Exhibit 49: the one that says "Dougl as

Marshal |, January of 2004," |'m marking as Exhibit Nunber

50; and then the one that says "Douglas Marshall, Decenber

2003," I'mmarki ng as Exhibit Nunber 51

(Exhi bits Nos. 49 through 51 were nmarked.)

BY M5. DESKI NS

Q M. Mkrantz, just to clarify, |ooking at Exhibit

49, when it says "January 2004," what does that refer to?

A. It represents the nonth on which we finished

putting together the request for infornmation.

Q Ckay. It also has "Prepared at the request of

Sydney Berde." Can vyou tell us what that neans.

A. Sydney Berde contacted Bill Wse [phonetic], of

our Phoeni x office, and requested that Table 11 of Exhibit 5
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be -- and 6 -- be updated, and that's what this table

represents.

Q Now, in regards to Exhibit 49, did you prepare it

yourself or was it prepared under your direction?

A. All of this information was prepared under ny

super vi si on.

Q Have you had a chance to review it?

A | have.

Q Is it correct, to the best of your know edge?
A Yes, it is.

MS. DESKINS: All right. 1'dlike to nove for

the adm ssion of Exhibit 49.

THE COURT: Any objection to Exhibit 49 as being

adm tted?

(No response.)

THE COURT: Ckay, it's admtted into evidence.

(Exhibit No. 49 was received.)

BY M5. DESKI NS

Q Now, in regards to Exhibit 50, it has oniit,

again, January 2004:; is that the date that you prepared

this?

A. It is the nonth which we finished its

pr epar ati on.

Q And it says on here it was prepared for -- at the

request of Douglas Marshall?
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A Correct.

Q In general, when vou prepare these at soneone's

request, does this reflect the position of the Departnent on

the proposals being considered at this hearing?

A. No, it does not. W are not here in support of

Oor in opposition to any proposals.

Q Now, Exhibit Nunber 50, was that prepared under

your supervision or did you prepare it yourself?

A. It was prepared under ny supervision.

Have you had a chance to revi ew the docunent?

Yes, | have.

Is it correct, to the best of your know edge?

> 0 P

Yes, it is.

Q Ckay, now, this one is an update of what had

previously been entered into the record as Exhibit 7?

A Correct.

MB. DESKI NS: | would nove for the adm ssion of

Exhi bi t 50.

THE COURT: Any objection?

(No response.)

THE COURT: Exhibit 50 is adnmtted i nto evidence.

(Exhi bit No. 50 was received.)

BY M5. DESKI NS

Q Now, the next exhibit is Exhibit 51. Can you

tell us again what "Decenber 2003" neans.
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A. "Decenber 2003" represents the nonth in which we

were asked to put together sone infornmation, and | qguess it

was conpleted in January 2004. Ilt's alittle bit different

t han the ot her docunents.

Q And also, in regards to this one, it says,

"Prepared at the request of Douglas Marshall." Does this

docunent represent any position of the Departnent?

A. No, it does not.

Q And also if we could ook at the table on the

second page, can vou just briefly tell us what this is a

tabl e of.

A. This table represents accounts of producers'

plants, divided into two categories: total and snall, for

the Pacific Northwest quarter and the Arizona-lLas Vegas

quarter.

|'d like to note that in the colum headed

"producer-handler plants," the definition used to deternine

the nunber of snmall operations is based on the vol une of

m | k produced by the producer-handler's dairy farm being

| ess than 500, 000 pounds in June 2003, the decision to

define producer-handlers in this table as "snmall" using the

500, 000- pound threshold of mlk production and not the 500-

enpl oyee threshold described in Footnote 2, was m ne, and

does not represent a statenent of policy by or on behalf of

t he USDA.
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Q Did the reason you nake that deternination, was

that to comply with M. Marshall's reqguest?

A. M. Marshall, through Bill -- WIlliam Van Dame,

requested a table of small producers, and so | used that, |

used the producer definition for the producer-handlers.

Q Now, have you had a chance to review Exhibit 517

A. Yes, | have.

Q On the back page of 51 it says "Pacific Northwest

Federal Order Nunber 124." Do you see that page?

A. | do.

Q Can you just tell us what this is -- well, it's
two tables -- what those two tables are about.

A. For Decenber of selected years we | ooked at

producer-handl ers and 7(a) pool plants under the Pacific

Nor t hwest order. For the producer-handl ers we established

counts of producer-handlers who had less than a mllion

pounds of production and nore than a mllion pounds of

producti on and we broke theminto those two categories, and

over towards the right, we cal cul ated average pounds by size

range.

So, for exanple, in the second colum, where it

says "greater than 1 nmillion pounds" --

Q Uh- huh.

A. -- in 1990 there was five producer-handl ers who

had operations of greater than 1 mllion pounds.
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Correspondingly, to the right, in that sane vear, those

producer-handlers that had greater than 1 nmllion pounds'

producti on, the average production was 2.228 nillion pounds.

Q Is it million pounds a nonth or nillion pounds a

year ?
A. Per nont h.

Q Per nont h, okay.

A. In Decenber of that year. And the sane would be

true in the description for 7(a) pool plants, we are able to

break it into three cateqgories: greater than 10 mllion

pounds, 4 mllion to 10 mlIlion pounds, and then Il ess than 4

mllion pounds.

Q Now, have you had a chance to review the

information that's in Exhibit Nunber 517

A. Yes, | have.

Q Is it correct, to the best of your know edge?

A. Yes, it is.

MB. DESKI NS: I'd like to nove for the adnmi ssion

of Exhibit 51.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MR. YALE: Your Honor, we would object pending an

opportunity to do sone cross-exam nation

THE COURT: Okay. Well, 1'll just hold off on --

but 1'll let you -- we'll have exam nation. He did prepare

-- | mean |'mqgoing to end up letting it in because he said
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it was prepared under his supervision. In terns of what

it's worth and the value of it --

MR. YALE: Well, there's -- if yvou would wai't

until [indiscernible] cross-exam --

THE COURT: But | will wait, okay, that will be

ny pl easure.

Ckay, do vou have any npre guestions,

Ms. Deskins, any nore guestions?

MB. DESKI NS: No nore guestions.

THE COURT: Okay. Cross-exam nation?

MR. YALE: Yes, Your Honor.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR YALE:

Q Good norni ng, John

A. Good nor ni ng.

THE COURT: Pl ease identify vourself.

MR. YALE: |'"'m sorry. Ben Yal e on behal f of

Edal een Dairy, Mallorie's Dairy, Smth Brothers Farns,

Sel ect M1k Producers, and Continental Dairy Products.

Q (By M. Yale) Now, M. Mkrantz, during -- |

know this has been a long tine ago, this hearing -- vou

know, nonths, but | think back in Septenber you put into

Exhibit -- Exhibit 5, there was extensive cross-exanination

and exani nati on over what those tables neant, and |' m not

asking you to renenber all the gquestions, but you renenber
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t hose di scussions; right?

A. Somewhat .

Q All right. M question is, is that: is there

any difference in your nethodology in what these tables in

Exhibit -- what is now Exhibit 49, say anything different

than what the tables that we had i n Septenber, other than

you' ve added a couple of nonths' worth of data?

A. A couple of nonths. That's all that has changed,

we' ve added nonths to those tables.

Q No changes in net hodol ogy.

A. No changes i n net hodol ogy.

Q No changes in the decisions on what went into one

colum or what went into another.

Correct.

A
Q So we'd be | ooking at apples to apples.
A

Yes.

Q And that would be the case for both Exhibit 49

and 50; right?

A Correct.

Q So that if | | ook over here on Page 2 of Exhibit
49, if | look at Novenber of 2003 and conpare that to
Novenber of 2002 for dass | and -- by producer-handl ers,

the volunme that the producer-handlers had in Novenber in

total was 3 million plus less than it was in Novenber of

2002; is that right?
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A. Alittle bit over 3 mllion pounds.

Q And then | ooking again into Exhibit Nunber 50 --

and again, this is just an update of Exhibit 7 fromthe

exhibit that was subnmitted in | believe Septenber in

Phoeni x; right?

A Correct.

Q -- and all that's changed is you' ve added data

that vou received for nonths that have occurred since that

hearing or that session.

A Correct.

Q But no changes i n net hodol ogy or anything el se.
A No.
Q All right. So, again, | can | ook over here at

Page 2 of Exhibit 50 and that would indicate that for

Novenber the producer-handler share in the Pacific Northwest

was 8. 37 percent.

A Correct.

Q And al so, noving over to the | ast page of that

exhibit, this indicates that in the state of O egon, between

Oct ober and Novenber -- or first of all between August and

Sept enber there was a |1 oss of a producer-handler in O eqon?

A. (No response.)

Q In OGegon. Went from6 to 5 from August to

Sept enber ?
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Q |'mlooking at the -- Page 4, and then there's --

let's just go through it. You've got, as

| understand it,

three main sections: you' ve got O eqgon,

and you' ve got

Washi nhgton - -

A Correct.

Q -- _and you' ve got O eqon and Washi ngt on.

A Uh- huh.

Q And -- conbined, and | ooki ng under the O eqgon

section, as | see it, in August there were six producer-

handl ers.

THE COURT: | think you're looking in the wong

colum, M. Yale.

A That counts as for Washi ngton.
MR, YALE: kay, that's for Washington. I'm
sorry.
THE COURT:  Yes.
MR. YALE: Thank you. That's what I'mtrying to
clarify.

Q (By M. Yale) ay, so that's Washi ngton, went

fromsix to five, and then went fromfive to four

in Cctober

t o Novenber.

A Correct.

Q All right. Can vyou identify the names of the

conpani es that are no | onger producer-handl ers.
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A. | believe between August and Septenber i s Norman

Brook that went out of business.

Q Ckay.

A. And then from Cctober to Novenber Country Mrning

Farns in G hell o, Washi ngton, burned down, their plant did.

Q So that -- and has there been any changes in

t hose nunbers since we -- since this Novenber table, there's

been no changes in Decenber or January that you're aware of?

A. W have not tabul ated data for Decenber as of

yet.

Q So that would show that there are now a total of

seven producer-handlers in the Pacific Northwest.

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Let's turn and look to Exhibit 51. 1In the

f oot note nunber 1 of this exhibit, you identify the

definition of a small business in terns of a producer and as

-- also in ternms of a plant; is that right?

A Correct.

Q Now, is this footnote the | anqguage, nore or |ess,

t hat appears as part of the notice to this hearing, the

initial -- the original notice of holding this hearing?
A. | don't believe | nade a direct conparison
between this footnote and that. It is a commbn description

that we use in generating information for dairy prograns

with respect to the -- | believe it is the Requlatory
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Flexibility Act.

Q Ckay. So when we cone over here and we | ook at

this colum called "pool producers," and | guess there's

three colums underneath that --

A Yes.
Q -- and it says that -- for exanple, in the
Paci fic Northwest, that there are 574 snall, is what you

have; right?

A Correct.

Q Now, does that nean, then, that those are 574

producers that have | ess than 500,000 pounds per nonth?

A Correct.

Q And when you provide the percentage here, this is

of the nunber of producers but not the volune that they

contribute to the order; is that right?

A. That woul d be correct.

Q Do vou have or did vou ever conpute what the

percentage of the mlk would be?

A. | don't recall offhand that we've done that, but

we certainly could do that.

Q How hard is that to do?

It would take a phone call and sone Excel work.

A
Q Spr eadsheets are wonder f ul
A

Yes, they are.

MR YALE: W would nmake that request if it could
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be done tinely through the rest of this hearing.

Q (By M. Yale) Now, noving over, we have fully-

reqgul ated pool plants, and you've got 24, and then you've

got 11 that are small.

A Correct.

Q Now, these do not include any of the producer-

handl ers; right?

A. By definition, they are not fully-requl ated poo

pl ants.
Q These are 7A plants?

A /A, 7B, 7C, 7D

Q Ckay. And again, it says that there are 11 that

are snmall. Now, in determining that they were 11 small, is

it yvour understandi ng they have | ess than 500 enpl oyees?

A. Their operations have fewer than 500 enpl oyees,

YES.

Q Does the market administrator get that

i nformati on?

A. W& use our judgnent, and we al so contact the

handl ers to determ ne whether they have 500 enpl oyees or

not .

Q So -- but it has nothing to do with how big their

producers are; right?

A. (No response.)

Q | nmean that supply that plant. It has no
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correlation; right?

A. There is no correl ation.

Q | nean, for exanple, they could have however few

it would take of the |arge producers over there in that

first section, to supply all their needs, and they could

receive all their mlk fromlarge producers, or not snall

as vou define them and they'd still be a snall plant;

right?
A Correct.

Q And is that the sane situation for the partially-

reqgul ated pool plants?

A. That woul d be true al so.

Q All right. Now -- and the exenpt plants, sane

si tuation?

A. That woul d be true al so.

Q And non-pool plants.

A. That woul d be true al so.

Q So let's now talk about the producer-handl er
plants, and you indicate -- first of all, this is as of June

of last year and it's not as of Novenber; right?

A. That is correct.

Q So we're tal king about nine and not seven

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And vou indicate that there are two snal

producer - handl er plants; right?
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A Correct.

Q And are vyou saying, in the sanme way that vyou did

for the fully-requlated, the partially-requl ated, the

exenpt, and the other non-pool plants, that when one sees

that there are two snmall producer-handler plants, there are

only two producer-handler plants that have fewer than 500

enpl oyees?

A. As | said in ny previous testinony -- and | may

add: the notation of producer-handler plants, it may be

better to have that colum "producer-handlers.” And with

respect to producer-handlers, we determned -- we

cateqgori zed the small producer-handlers as those with | ess

t han 500, 000 pounds of m Ik production.

Q Because you -- when you | ook at a producer-

handler, this is within your agency, within your departnent,

right, that that's how you categorize themroutinely?

A. That's how | categorized themfor this table.

Q Were you requested to categorize themthat way by

M. Van Damme or M. Marshall?

A. As | said earlier, M. Van Damme requested a

br eakdown of small producers.

Q Okay. So let's cone back, though, that this is

-- that you have a | abel as producer-handler plants; right?

A. Ri ght .

Q And al so over here vou have this thing of "tota
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plants"; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And one can take the eleven fully-requl ated, the

three partially-requlated, the two producer-handl er plants,

the one exenpt, these are under the "small," and the 24, and

that equals the 41?2

(Pause.)
A Yes.
Q Ckay. So if -- as producers, because they

produce nore than 500, 000 pounds, vou're saying that these

pr oducer-handlers would qualify as a |l arge producer under

the definition of the Departnent; is that right?

A. (No response.)

Q At the farml evel.

A. Coul d you repeat that?

Q Yeah, 1'd be happy to. 1Is the -- what you're

saying is that this nunber 2 -- one way of -- the real way

to speak to this is, is to say if you |look at the size of

the farm operation of the producer-handlers and the vol une

of mlk that they produce -- right? -- that they have nore

t han 500, 000 pounds of mlk per nonth.

A Correct.

O the two have |l ess than 500, 000.

Q
A Correct.
Q

All right. But you cannot say by looking at this
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that these two plants have -- or that seven of these plants

have nore than 500 enployees at the plant; right?

A. No, vou could not.

Q Now, if you were to designate for producer-

handl er plants the nunber of producer-handl er plants that

have nore than 500 enpl oyees, how many would renmain -- how

many snmall plants would vou then have?

A. | believe it would be zero, for the Pacific

Nor t hwest order. |'mnot as familiar with the Arizona-

Las Vegas order, but | believe that would be zero al so.

Q And therefore, then, the nunber of total plants

that were small would then be 39, right, for the Oder 124?

A Correct.

Q Based upon vour testinony, are you willing to

nodify the exhibit to reflect both the fact that the

producer-handler plants as listed in here should be zero as

small and that the reflection of this testinony that you

have as printed really refers to the size of their farns?

(Pause.)
A Yes.
Q Now, |'d like to turn our attention to the second

page of this exhibit, alittle sinpler questions. Wen vou

tal k about average pounds by size range, are we talking

about dass | usage or total receipts of the plants?

A. We're speaking of -- the table contains
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information on dass | route dispositions.

Q And that's all it is.

A Correct.

Q And does that route -- that excludes plant-to-

pl ant transfers?

A. Yes, it does. | guess if product was transferred

fromone plant to another and then went out on routes, the

second plant would have those routes in this data.

Q VWhat about transfers to an out-of-area, non-

federally-requlated route distribution plant: it would be a

non- pool plant under the order, but would that be included?

A. This is total route dispositions, not route

di spositions defined within an order area.

MR. YALE: | have no other questions. Thank vou,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. |s your objection continuing

or can | adnmit Exhibit 51 at this point?

MR. YALE: Anended as -- I'mnot going to -- |']

withdraw it as long as the -- his testinony to his

amendnents are part of that.

THE COURT: oviously it is.

MR.__YALE: Yes, right.

THE COURT: So I'mgoing to admt Exhibit 51.

(Exhibit No. 51 was received.)

THE COURT: M. Ricciardi, do you have guestions
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MR_RICOARD : A couple, Judge. Thanks.

Al Ricciardi, on behalf of Sarah Farns.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR R CC ARDI

Q Good norning, M. MKkrantz.

A. Good nor ni ng.

Q In the original notice, which is nmarked as

Exhi bit 1, under the supplenentary informtion, t

here's an

indication that the milk order programis subject

to the

Requl atory Flexibility Act, and for purposes of t

hat act,

there's a definition of a dairy farmas a small b

usi ness if

it has an annual gross revenue of |ess than $750, 000;
correct?

A. If the --

Q If that -- that's what it says.

A. -- it says.

Q Yeah. And a dairy products manufacturer is a
smal | business if it has fewer than 500 enpl oyees; right?

A. | wouldn't argue with that, no.

Q All right. Now, with regard to -- so
understand it, with regard to Exhibit Nunber 51, the first
table, particularly footnote 1, what you actually did was,
in preparing this table, you changed the definitions that |
just tal ked about from Exhibit 1 under the Act, at the
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request of M. Marshall or M. Van Dame; correct?

MR. BESHORE: | object to that, Your Honor. It

m scharacterizes his testinpny.

THE COURT: Well, why don't you try to answer

t hat question and characterize your -- | don't nean to

characterize --

MB. DESKINS: Just for the record, that was

M. Beshore that testified.

THE COURT: Thank you for that.

THE W TNESS: Could vou repeat the gquestion?

THE COURT: He's asking you why don't you explain

why vour definition is different than the suppl enental

notice. Wuld it help if you had the supplenental notice in

front of vou? Is it Page -- we're talking about forty six

five oh six, is that what it is? Does that sound right to

you?
MR RICCOARDI : It sounds right, Judge. | just

handed it back. Forty six five oh six, right.

A. M. Van Dame requested that the i nfornmation be

defined on a producer basis, not on a plant basis.

Q (By M. Ricciardi) And if a request had been

made to you without that type of a definition from

M. Van Damme, would the table be different?

A. | really couldn't say, because we weren't asked

t he ot her way.
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Q Essentially, this table is the way it is because

of the limtations provided to you by M. Van Dame;

correct?

A. He asked for it on a producer basis.

MR. RICCIARDI: Nothing further. Thanks.

THE COURT: Questions on the proponents' side?

You can go ahead, M. Beshore.

MR. BESHORE: Marvin Beshore, for Dairy Farners

of Anerica.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BESHORE:

Q M. Mkrantz, with respect to Exhibit 51, the

second page, if you look at the -- or the second table |

guess | should say, the first step, infornmation set, nunber

of plants by size range, calling your attention to 2002 --

well, looking down the "greater than 1 million" col umm,

which is the first colum, there's a reduction fromfive to

four from 2000 to 2002. Do vou see that?

A. Yes, | do.

Q Is it possible and do you know whet her one of the

producer-handlers that was greater than 1 mllion in 2000

had less than 1 mllion pounds in route disposition in

Decenber of 2002 and appears in the "less than 1 nillion"

col um?

A. Coul d you repeat that?
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Q Yes. There's a reduction in the nunber of

producer-handlers with route disposition greater than

1 mllion pounds between 2000 and 2002, and these are the

nont h of Decenber in each year; correct?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. There were five in the year 2000 and four

in the year 2002. 1'm-- ny question is, is it possible

that that is not -- that reflects the fact that one of those

sane producer-handlers had less than 1 mllion pounds of

route disposition in Decenber of 2002 as opposed to: just

went out of busi ness?

(Pause.)
A. | don't recall offhand.
Q Now, let's |ook at the bottom part of the sane

page here, Pacific Northwest order 7A plants, and in 2002 -

- by the way, 7A plants are fully-requl ated plants, full

pl ants, under the order.

A. They are fully-requl ated pl ants.

Q Okay. And by "fully-requlated,”" they pay the --

at least the mninmumclass prices for all of their

utilization of producer mlKk.

A Correct.

Q All their Class | dispositions which are

reflected on -- on this chart, Exhibit 51, they've paid at

|l east the dass | price for those poundages of dass | mlk;
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correct?

A Correct.

Q If you look at -- there were three fully-

requl ated 7A plants with less than 4 mllion pounds of d ass

| route dispositions in Decenber of 2002: correct?

A Correct.

Q Now, if you assune with nme for a nonent that the

information you' ve previously placed in the record shows

that the three |l argest producer-handlers in the Pacific

Nor t hwest averaged 4.7 million pounds of Cass | route

di sposition per nonth, would it be correct that those fully-

reqgul ated handl ers' accounting at Class | prices were

small er, on average, than the three | argest producer-

handl ers?
A. | guess that would be true.
Q And there are nine fully-requlated handlers in

the Pacific Northwest order and between 4 nmillion and

10 million pounds of Class | per nonth; is that correct?

A. Ni ne 7A plants?

Q Ni ne 7A plants, excuse ne.
A Yes.
Q By the way, how many -- maybe it's on this table

or another table. The 7B, C,_ and D plants, how many of

t hose do you have?

A. Under the Pacific Northwest order -- it depends
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on the year and the nonth. | believe we have no 7B pl ants

and at sone tinme in the past there may have been 7C plants

also. Two exanples would be Farners Cooperative Creanery

and Till anbok County Creanery Association, and no -- we

didn't have 7D plants until January of 2003.

Q Okay. 7A plants are basically your distributing

pl ants under the order.

A. Pool -di stri buting plants.

Q Pool -di stributing plants. So you had ni ne pool -

distributing plants in the 4 mllion to 10 mllion d ass

sal es per nonth for Decenber 2002:; correct?

A Correct.

Q And if -- would it be fair to infer that it's

possible locally that sone of those were below the 4.7

mllion figure and that that is the average producer-handl er

size of the three |argest producer-handl ers?

A. Coul d you repeat that?

Q Is it possible that sonme of those nine handl ers

were less than -- were inthe 4 nmillion to 5 mllion range?

A. That's possi bl e.

Q And where the average of those 4 to 10 mllion

was -- of the nine plants was 6.8 nmillion, as shown on

Exhibit 51; is that correct?

A 6. 857, yes.

Q Now, if the | argest producer-handl er and the
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owner is approximately at that level of dass | sales, they

woul d then be |larger than the three producer-handler --

three fully-requl ated plants that were less than 4 mllion

and at the average size for nine additional fully-requl ated

pl ants; correct?

A. | quess if you're saying -- if what you're saying

about the producer-handler size is true, that would be true

al so.

(Pause.)
MR. BESHORE: Thank vou.

THE COURT: Any further questions of this

Wi tness? Ms. Deskins.

MB. DESKINS: Charlene Deskins, United States

Department of Agriculture, Ofice of General Counsel.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. DESKI NS

Q M. Mkrantz, | just want to clarify on Exhibit

51. The Departnent doesn't have a definition of what a

smal |l producer-handler is or a | arge producer-handl er;

correct?

A. We get asked by dairy prograns to put together

i nfformation for purposes of the Requlatory Flexibility Act,

t hat has asked us to put producer-handlers into the snal

versus |l arge category based on the 500, 000-pound limt.

Q For the "small business" definitions; correct?
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A Correct.

Q Ckay. And with this chart, vou're not tryving to

say the Departnment has taken any position on what snall

producer-handl ers are or |arge producer-handlers are?

A No, | am not.

Q You were just responding to a request that you

produce this table based on a certain definition they gave

you.
A Yes.
MS. DESKINS: | have no further questions.
THE COURT: M. Yale, you have a question?
MR. YALE: 1 have a follow up.
Ben Yal e.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR YALE:

Q M. Mkrantz, | want to follow up with what

Ms. Deskins just asked and | want to make sure | understand

it. Are you saving that the Departnent deternines the

pr oducer - handl ers who have nore than 500, 000 pounds of mlk

production, that they view those as | arge busi nesses, under

the Requlatory Flexibility Act?

A. | don't know what dairy prograns uses those

nunbers for; we sinply put themtogether based on the

i nstructions.

Q So when you send information to dairy prograns,
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you are not informng themthat, as plants, that they're

smal l er than 500 enpl oyees:; right?

A. W were not asked to put the nunbers together in

t hat nmanner, no.

Q By dairy prograns?

A Correct.

Q So if I have a -- you had a line of questions

here by M. Beshore of plants that are less than 4 mllion

pounds and sone 4 to 10 mllion; right?

A Correct.

Q All right. So if you have a plant in the state

of Washington that's -- a 7A plant that's 5 nmllion pounds,

you would -- unless it's associated with some other | arqger

enterprise, it would probably be a small business; right?

A. Just based on their volune | couldn't determ ne
that.

Q But | nmean your experience. | nmean, do you know
of any 5-million-pound plants that are -- by thensel ves,

i ndi vidual single-plant enterprises, that are not snall

busi nesses, that have about 5 nmillion pounds' production?

A. | can't think of any of fhand, no.

Q So for the nonent -- bear with ne a second --

let's assune that that plant is a small busi ness, vou've

deternmined it has |l ess than 500 enpl oyees, and you woul d

report that to dairy prograns as a snmall business; right?
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A. If it had fewer than 500 enpl oyees, that would

be.

Q But a producer-handler with 5 mllion pounds of

route distribution, with |l ess than 500 enpl oyees in the

plant -- by the way, do vou have -- | think you've testified

that if you | ooked at the enployees, all the producer-

handlers in the Pacific Northwest would be snall busi nesses.

R ght? Just based on size of producers -- or size of --

nunber of enpl oyees.

A. | don't recall us ever surveyi ng producer-

handlers to determine if they have 500 enpl oyees. W are

asked to put small producer-handlers in the -- or put

producer-handlers in the snmall category based on their mlk

pr oducti on.

Q Now, let's -- let ne take it to another step,

then. Under two of the proposals submitted in this hearing

-- | nean, vou're aware of the proposals before the

Secretary; right?

A. I'maware of them ves.

Q And two of those are suggesting that if a

producer-handl er has nore than 3 nmillion pounds of mlk in

Class | during the nonth, that they would be treated as a 7A

pl ant and have to pay into the pool and receive the -- vyou

know, for their classified nmlk and receive back a bl end;

right?
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A Correct.

Q All right. Now, is that requlation on their

Class | sales -- been based upon their plant operations and

sales or is it based upon their farm production?

A. To ny understanding, it's based on their plant

sal es.

Q So do you have any know edge whether dairy

prograns, in doing its Reqgulatory Flexibility Act analysis

of these proposals, is going to view the inpact of those

proposal s on those operations as producers or as plants?

A. | don't know.

MR. YALE: | don't have anything el se.

MR RICOARDI: A Ricciardi for Sarah Farns.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. R CCO ARDI :

Q M. Mkrantz, Exhibit 51 again, table nunber 1,

guess, under Federal O der Nunber 131, the category of

producer-handlers, plants, you've got a total of two listed

there and one as snmall; correct?

A Correct.

Q And what did yvou do to define what producer-

handl er was a snmall plant?

MR. ENG.I SH: Asked and answered, this is Charles

English, for Shanrock:; this is the fifth or sixth tine he's

been asked to go through this analysis, and we're going to
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hear the sane answer for the sixth tine.

THE COURT: |'magoing to |l et himanswer the

questi on.
MR. ENGISH W' ve been an hour on this exhibit.

THE COURT: You can answer the question.

A. As | said earlier, the colum entitled "producer-

handl er plants" m ght be better described just as "producer-

handlers," and to -- | quess we use the 500, 000-pound

threshold as the dividing line between what we can -- what

we woul d count as snmall versus | arge.

Q (By M. Ricciardi) And vou did not use the

500- enpl oyee threshold to determ ne whether or not it was

smal |l versus |l arqge; correct?

A No.

Q Do vou know, if you had used that particul ar

t hreshol d, whet her both of the producer-handlers would be in

the "small" category, on this table?
A. |'d have to research that question.
Q You never |ooked at that?
A. | guess we did not prepare that -- prepare this

table with that in nind, no.

Q If vou were to assune now for purposes of vyour

testinony at this nonent that in fact the producer-handlers

in Oder 131, both of them had |ess than 500 enpl oyees,

then both of them would be categorized as "snmall" on this
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table; correct?

A. If we use -- I'd have to do sone research on --

deterni ning that.

Q | understand, and | ask you to nmke the

assunption, and | realize that you don't have that

information in front of you, but if you assune that both of

t he producer-handlers had | ess than 500 enpl oyees

collectively, then in this table both wuld be categorized

as small; correct?

A. This tabl e defines producer-handlers on their --

on the basis of their farmm |k production.

Q | understand, and |'ve asked you to change that

and instead | ook at the nunber of enployees, and if you did

that, then they both would be defined as small. Correct?

A. If vou're saying they're both snmall, then they

woul d be both small.

MR. RICCOARDI: Correct. | quess that's the way

we do things here. That's fine, Judge, thanks.

THE COURT: Go ahead, M. Beshore.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BESHORE:

Q M. Mkrantz, with -- on the first table of

Exhibit 51, did anyone instruct you how to classify exenpt

plants? As large or small.

A. According to the footnote, if an exenpt plant was
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part of a larger entity, say a university or charity or sone

other operation, that -- where the larger entity had nore

t han 500 enpl oyees, we would put that in -- we would not

consider that as snmall.

Q Ckay. And | understand that's how you have --

how vou have presented the infornation, what your table

shows. M question was: Did M. Van Danme instruct you to

seqgregate or classify exenpt plans in that way?

A. No, he did not.

Q Ckay. That was a matter of judgnent that you

nmade or it was nade by the Departnent --

A. It was a matter of judgnent.

Q Ckay. And if you |l ook at the Washi ngton State

Creanery, for instance, they -- if they weren't an exenpt

plant -- by the way, the definition of "exenpt plant" is

what, less than 150, 000 per nonth, of vol une?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Now, if they -- so you have a large --

you' ve cl assified Washi ngton State University Creanery as a

| arge exenpt plant even though its volune is |less than

150, 000 pounds per nonth; correct?

A Correct.

Q And vou did that because, as an enployer, it has

nore than 500 enpl oyees; correct?

A. Washi ngton State University has nore than 500
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enpl oyees, ves.

Q Ckay. And that was done, as vou've testified, on

t he basis of your judgnent; correct?

A Correct.

Q And if you were using that -- your own

i ndependent judgnent, applying that sane principle that if

it's alarge -- for either test, it's large, you're applying

the sane principle to producer-handlers that were |l arge at

t he producer level, vou'd classify themas |large also, wuld

you not, applying the sane principle?

One would, | would say, one would. |f one

applied the same principle, that if you're large for either

test vou're larqge, you'd classify producer-handl ers that are

| arge at the producer level as |arge.

A. | don't think I would go that far. | would say

if we had instructions to define it that way, that's the way

we woul d | abel it.

Q But I'mnot instructing you; I'mjust asking you

a question. |If the test you were applying was: if you're

| arge on either end you would be considered | arge, or not

small, then, if a producer-handler is not snmall on the

producer side, even if it's small on the handler side, it

woul d be: not small, would it not?

A. | guess | don't feel confortable going into the

specifics of what | would do. Maybe we'd leave it to the
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secretary?
MR. BESHORE: Thank vou.

THE COURT: M. Berde, you have questions, go

ahead.

MR. BERDE: Sydney Berde for United Dairymen.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR BERDE:

Q In the course of vyour testinony | think you

i ndi cated that on Exhibit 51 the colum "producer-handl er

pl ants" would nore properly be described as "producer-

handler," elinmnating the word "plants." |Is that correct?

A Correct.

Q In that case, then, any producer-handl er whose

doll ar vol une, production, was over 750,000 per vear, or who

mar ket ed nore than 500, 000 pounds per nonth, would not be a

small business, would it?

A. No, it would not.

MR. BERDE: Thank vyou.

THE COURT: Anyone else? M. Ricciardi, go

ahead.

MR RICCARD : A follow up, Judge, based upon

the last question, | have a concern.

FURTHER RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. RI CCO ARDI :

Q On Exhibit 51, with regard to Federal O der
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Nunber 131, during the period of tine that is represented by

this table, how many producer-handlers were in Oder 1317

A. In June 2003?

Q Yes.

A. | believe it was two.

Q And if there are less than three is the

information that is provided to the Departnent confidential?

A. Otenti nes when we break categories down into

indefinite ranges we will publish a nunber that represents

fewer than three handl ers.

Q So inreality part of Exhibit 51 doesn't

represent an indefinite range, it represents at |east a

definite range, because it makes assunptions as to how nuch

m |k production per nonth; correct?

A. Maybe | misspoke on the "indefinite." 1t does

provide a threshold bel ow which vou could deternine the

volune or -- or have an -- you'd get an idea of the volune

of that producer-handler, for exanple.

Q And therefore Exhibit 51, inreality, with regard

to Federal Order 131, would be in violation of the

Departnent's policy with regard to providing infornmation

concerni ng producer-handlers; correct?

M5. DESKINS: Your Honor, I'mgoing to object to

that. This witness wouldn't be in a position to --

THE COURT: Well, | don't know that. He can
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answer for hinself, and if he can't answer it, then we'l]|

let vou talk about it.

Answer that question, if you know the answer,

M. MKkrantz.

THE W TNESS: Could vou repeat the gquestion?

MR RICOARDI: Can vou read it back to us?

THE COURT: W don't have -- we have a tape --

MR RICCOARDI : | forgot, Judge. 1 apol oqgi ze.

Q (By M. Ricciardi) Wat | asked specifically

was: Then Exhibit 51, at least as it relates to 131, would

be in violation of the Departnent's policy because it would

provi de specific information regardi ng vol unes concerni ng

Exhibit -- Oder 131; correct?

A. | do not believe so.

MR._RICCIARD : Nothing further.

THE COURT: Anyone el se?

(No response.)

THE COURT: You may step down, M. Mkrantz.

(Wtness excused.)

THE COURT: We'll take a break now. Let's cone

back at 10 o' cl ock.

(O f the record and reconvened.)

THE COURT: On the record. M. Yale, call vour

W t ness, please.

MR. YALE: Yes. Call M. Joe Albright.
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THE COURT: M. Albright, | hope you like our new

seating arrangenent; it's a lot safer than the | ast one.

(Laughter.)

THE COURT: |If you'd please raise your right hand

'l swear you in.

W _ JOE ALBRI GHT, OPPONENTS' W TNESS, SWORN

THE COURT: |If you would pl ease state and then

spell your name for the record.

THE WTNESS: M/ nane is W Joe Al bright,

A l-b-r-i-g-h-t.

THE COURT: Okay, vour witness, M. Yale.

MR._YALE: Thank you, Your Honor.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR YALE:

Q M. Albright, where are you currently |iving?

A. | reside at 2000 Wllians Drive, Sul phur

Gkl ahomm, 73086.

Q And what are vou currently doi ng?
A. |'mraising horses and |I'mraising hay. All the
cows -- |'mback to where the cows were, | was raised on a

dairy farm and |I'mback to the sane farm the cows are gone

and |'ve got horses.

Q Now, prior to this hay and horses you were

involved in the dairy industry: is that right?

A. (Nods head) Since | was six years old.
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Q Al right.

A. M I ki ng cows by hand.

Q And what -- can you kind of give us a brief

excursion through your life, particularly in the area of the

dairy interests and your enploynent --

A. VWll, during World War 11, the war took all ny

older brothers and | basically ran the dairy farmthrough

hi gh school; then | drafted into the Navy: and then out of

the Navy | went to -- got ny deqgree in business, business --

B.A. degree. In '49 | began working with the Central

Gkl ahoma M I k Producers Association as a nilk tester and

goi ng to night school to finish ny deqgree.

Then when the new federal mlk order cane into

Gkl ahoma City, | was hired there as a nlk tester. Then |

was an auditor, and | had a two-vyear break for the Korean

conflict, | got drafted twice, and after that | was an
officer, and then | went to several places, | went to
Nebraska, | went to Utah, | went to Denver, assistant narket

adm ni strator.

Then | spent six years in Washington, D.C., in

the order enforcenent branch of the dairy division, where

wor ked hand in hand with the attorneys office to enforce

federal mlk orders.

Then | went to Rochester, M nnesota, as an

assi stant again, and to Denver as an assistant, and as an
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acting in Denver. The last 22 years of ny career was spent

in Phoenix, Arizona, as narket adm nistrator.

| retired January 1998, six years ago, and since

that tine |'ve been inactive.

Q Just raising horses and raising hay.

A. That's it.

Q | want to ask you a coupl e background questions,

then | want to get into some of the neat of your position in

this hearing. First off, do you know what the prinary

i ssues are as part of this hearing?

A. Well, as | understand it, the intent is to fully

reqgul ate under the practicing [phonetic] provisions any

producer - handl er for which any nonth it has route

di spositions in excess of 3 mllion pounds.

Q And on those producer-handlers that would be so

requl ated, what is the inpact, as vou understand it? | nean

what changes for thenf

A. Well, they'd be subject to the practicing

provi sions and their mlk would be subject to pooling, under

the pool, with all the other requl ated handl ers, and then

they draw out of the pool, the blend, for their production,

pay into dass | for Cass | use and draw out the difference

[ phonetic] between blend and 1 -- | nean pay in the

difference between blend and 1 for the Cass | utilization

and draw out between a blend and a class -- a |lower-class
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utilization.

And if their total dass | utilization exceeded

the market-wide, then their net would be a mnus fromthe

pool .

Q In other words, they would end up payi ng nopney

in, nore than they got back

A. Ri ght. They wouldn't get anything back at all;

they'd just pay in.

Q Ckay. Now, based upon your experience and

know edge within the market adnministrator's office, what do

yvou understand the policy or the goal of the Agricul tural

Mar keti ng Agreenent Act to be?

A. Well, the Secretary was told by Congress to

establish orderly marketing and to set nininumprices and

protect the interests of the consuner, and basically that's

it, set a price to produce that will ensure a certain

percent of parity, where they nake noney.

Q So how does the Secretary protect the interests

of the consuner?

A. Well, Congress told himto keep the prices

reasonabl e but have the prices to the dairy farners at a

| evel that would ensure an adequate supply of pure whol esone

mlk year-round but not let the price get excessive, where

t he consuner could obtain nmilk at a reasonable price.

Q And under the current situation, is that public
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interest being served, to your know edge, or belief?

A. Well, there's conflict in regards to an adequate

supply of mlK.

Q And what's that conflict?

A. Vell, we're getting alittle bit on base here.

The Dairy Production Stabilization Act of 1983, it reduced

the blend price to producers, they just took 15 cents off

the blend price for generic advertising of fluid mlk and

cheese, and | have a table here that shows the npbney spent

for generic advertising, fluid mlk, and for cheese for 20

vears, 1983 through 2002. It was prepared by Todd M

Schmit, S-c-h-mi-t, or Cornell University on Cctober 2,

2003.

Let nme get down here, |1've got sone percentages
her e.
(Pause.)

Well, | better go by nenory. | think the first

vear, 1983, the total npney spent for generic advertising

was about 81 percent for class -- for cheese and 19 percent

for fluid.
The |l ast two years, 2001 and 2002, two-thirds

each year of the noney was spent for cheese pronotion and

one-third for fluid mlk pronotion, but for the 40 -- for a

20-year period there was a 43 percent for cheese and 57

percent for fluid mlk. So this encouraged production of
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nore mlk for cheese.

When | was in California, at the dairy forum

was invited over there last nonth to discuss the industry

probl ens, and | asked the attendants why would a fluid mlKk

producer want to give up 15 cents per hundredwei ght each

nonth to advertise cheese.

MR. BESHORE: Your Honor, at this point I'd like

to interpose an objection. W're not litigating the 15-cent

assessnent _on producers for generic pronption in this forum

| really -- M. Yale asked for this, you know, description
of the effect of the '83 Act in generic pronotion. | don't
see what it has to do with this proceeding at all. | hate
tointerrupt M. Albright, but -- he's certainly

know edgeabl e about many things in the industry, but this

has nothing to do with the proceeding. M. Yale is

litigating the issue el sewhere --

MR. YALE: No, I'mnot litigating it anywhere.

THE COURT: Ckay, let ne ask, M. Yale -- go

ahead, M. Yale, what's your response?

MR. YALE: First of all, I"'mnot litigating the

i ssue anywhere.

Secondly, the issue with M. Albright: A --

I|f they would be patient, we're getting there.

This is an inportant part of his testinony, and this is

backgr ound.
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We're not litigating the pronption, we're not

asking the Secretary to do that, but | will note that they

have in their proponents' testinbny on nunerous occasions

referenced provisions out of the mlk fluid pronotion and

the dairy pronotion as support of their position of

3 mllion pounds and others.

So it's not, vou know -- it's already been in the
record, but | -- you know, give us sone point [sic.] and
you'll see how this ties up, but | nean --

THE COURT: And if it's background to --

MR. YALE: Yeah, it's background.

THE COURT: -- points that are part of the actual
litigation, then -- it's far easier to --
MR. YALE: It's not -- and there is no litigation

that I|'"'minvolved in, that's going on, so it has nothing to

do with that whatsoever

THE COURT: Well, whatever vyou -- this

rul emaki ng, whatever you want to call it, this here thing

that we're going through, if it's --

MR_YALE: Oh, this.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. YALE: Yeah. This is --

THE COURT: We're talking about, you know - -

MR. YALE: This hearing.

THE COURT: W have issues that are supposed to
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be decided at this hearing --

MR. YALE: And that's exactly where we're going.

THE COURT: -- and if where he's going is going

to get us there sooner rather than later --

MR.__YALE: Right.

THE COURT: -- then that would be good.

MR. YALE: It may not be the way M. Beshore

would like to see it --

THE COURT: Well, it's -- he's vour witness --

MR.__YALE: Right.

THE COURT: -- so vou just go right ahead.

MR YALE: Ckay. Very well.

Q (By M. Yale) W were talking about: that you

saw, as | recall, M. Albright -- there was -- you were

tal ki ng about the fact that the pronption was now starting

to spend nore noney towards the pronotion of cheese as

opposed to fluid mlk, and so the question cones down to:

Is it your understandi ng, under the AMAA, that

the Secretary is obligated to supply a sufficient supply of

cheese or is it to supply a sufficient supply of fluid mlk?

A. He's to mninize application of manufactured

mlk, that's in the Act, and he's told to set a price

that'll ensure an adequate supply but not a surplus supply,

just an adequate supply, on a year-round basis. That's what

the Agricultural Mrketing Agreenent Act says specifically.
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Q So vou indicated earlier that there was a -- kind

of a conflict that was goi ng on between the AMA and the way

things are. Could you explain what that conflict is.

A. VWll, the Dairy Pronption Stabilization Act of

1983 provides that each producer have 15 cents per

hundr edwei ght deducted fromits check to pay for generic

advertising for fluid milk and for cheese. That's, to ny

thinking, in conflict with the adequacy as asked for in the

Agricul tural Marketing Agreenent Act of 1935 and -7,

et cetera, et cetera.

Q |'mnot trying to put words -- | want to ask this

question so that | can nake sure we're clear. VWhat vyou're

saying is: it's vour understandi ng under the AMAA that the

Secretary is obligated to supply an adequate supply of

beverage nil k and drinkable nmlk but not manufactured ml K.

A. Not manufactured mlk because of -- nmlk to

babi es and children is a vital product to the Anerican

public, and that's what the whole Act was about: to be sure

of an adequate supply of fluid mlk only.

Q kay. So let's nove on, then, and let's -- let's
di scuss --

A No, | want to tell you about this story --

Q Oh, |'msorry; we were interrupted. Thank you.

A. -- in California. | was invited over there to
discuss -- | was a market adm nistrator for Phoenix for
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several vyears, so | qguess that's why | got the invite, it

was | ast nonth.

So | asked the question of why would a fluid mlk

producer want to give up fif- -- 25 -- 15 cents a nonth to

adverti se cheese, and | was told -- and of course they were

unguard- -- weren't on gquard, they were not in a hearing or

anything, they said, Well, the fluid mlk was saturated and

t he producers wanted to expand. | said, Well, is all this

mlk going to cheese, is that being produced as a reserve

for fluid mlk or is it being produced for cheese, and it

cane back: " Cheese."

And then the question canme up about ternination

of the Western order and the discussion was, "Where is that

cheese nilk going?" Wll --

M5. DESKINS: Your Honor, at this point | think

we're going to have to object to it being beyond the scope

of the Notice. | nean, the Western order and that

relationship to fluid mlk, | don't think that's rel evant.

THE W TNESS: It's relevant in regard to what is

reserved for fluid use.

THE COURT: Go ahead. M. English has a

questi on.
MR. ENG.I SH: Your Honor, Charles English, for

Shanr ock and Dean Foods.

Alittle belatedly on the last two, | think |I see
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where we're going with the third one, which is: in each

question there is sone unnaned source whose testinony i S now

comng in as pure hearsay, and while hearsay can get in in

certain circunstances in these proceedi ngs, we don't even

know t he nanes of the people who said those, we don't know

the circunstances, it's unguarded --

THE WTNESS: | can tell you -- | can tell you

t he nanes.

MR. ENGISH -- but it is -- it is hearsay being

put into this record for propositions that have nothing to

do with this hearing, and it's so far beyond the scope of

where we are and where we're going, and | just -- 1 think

that we are sonewhat deliberately going far afield to dea

with issues that have nothing to do with this proceedinq,

and | agree with Ms. Deskins' objection as well.

THE COURT: M. Yale, we do seemto be getting a

little bit off the issues that we have here, | nean | just -

- if you could focus your witness a little bit and get on

t hese issues --

MR_YALE: We'll try to --

THE COURT: | nean, in terns of the hearsay, vyou

know, the Secretary is capable of -- you know, |'mpretty

well -- I"'mletting -- 1've been letting in a lot of stuff

on both sides here, and at this point, you know, |'m not

goi ng to knock sonething off because it's hearsay. | nean,
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you know, the Secretary can give evidence the weight that

she thinks it's due. But if we can get a little nore

focused here, we m ght npve along --

MR. YALE: |I'mtryving to get there, and -- but

let e -- | want to speak to Ms. Deskins' objection.

We are not chall enging the Secretary's decision

on the Western order, and if you give ne -- and | -- give ne

sone patience, but I'mqgoing to get this point across, and

it all ties together, trust ne, and -- it all cones

together. So let ne run a few questions and see where we

go.
Q (By M. Yale) M. Albright, you talk about a

reserve supply. GCkay? Now, in the federal orders we have -

- and what we're talking about here with these producer-

handlers is nmlk that's gone into beverage use; right?

A. That's ri ght.

Q Al right. And vou've testified that the purpose

of the Act is to supply a sufficient quantity of that to the

consunmi ng price at a reasonable price; right?

A. At _a reasonable price (nods head).

Q Al right. Now, vou nentioned in your discussion

about the California and the Western order this issue of

reserve supply. Wat is a reserve supply?

A. It's mlk that's produced in excess of d ass |

needs, in case of an accident or in case of sone other
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m shap, just so there'll be sone mlk to back up any mlKk

that's needed for fluid consunption of the public, it's nore

or less backup mlk in case of -- you know, anything could

happen on a farmor sonmewhere where mlk m ght be short, but

there'll be enough reserve to nmake up that tenporary
short age.
Q So that there's always a supply of mlk for d ass

| use; right?

A. That's ri ght.

Q Al right. Now, you nentioned cheese nmlKk.

VWhat's the difference between cheese mlk and reserve

supply?
A. Well, | think the proponents contend that al

ml Kk produced is either used for Class | or reserved for

fluid use. Wien | say "dass |I" | nean fluid use.
Q Ri ght .
A. But when they spend noney and when they want to

expand for cheese, that neans that cheese nmlk is not being

produced as a reserve for dass |I. So we don't know today,

have any idea, what the reserve supply is for fluid use.

Q Based upon your experience with the market

adm nistrator's office in the Central Arizona order, you

were famliar with the statistics and the nunbers that were

there, right, in terns of production and class --

A. VWll, it's been six vears. 1'll try what | can
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Q | ' mnot asking: specific nunbers.

And you' ve seen and heard testinony about sone of

the nunbers since then in those orders that have been

submitted at this hearing; right?

A. |'ve heard sone of it.

Q Yeah. You've been --

A. Not all of it. Sone.

Q But vou' ve attended all seven sessions --

A. No, |'ve mssed -- |'ve probably been in about

half or nore of it.

Q Okay. Now -- but | want to ask this question

based upon -- we'll do it with the Central Arizona when vyou

were there, but in yvour opinion -- well, first of all:

We have this nilk, that's pooled mlk; right?

This is mlk that producers get a blended price for; right?

A. That's ri ght.

Q All right. So there's a size to that pool, how

nmuch mlk is qualified to receive that blend; right?

A. Ri ght .

Q Al right. Now, based upon your testinony, that

you' ve tal ked about the reserve supply and the cheese nmilk

and the Class | usage, is there mlk -- first of all:

In that pool, in that mlk that is pool mlk in

Arizona, there's mlk that goes into Class | handlers;

right?
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A Yes.

Q All right. And based upon your earlier

di scussion of the reserve supply -- is there a reserve

supply of mlk in Arizona, to neet that need?

A. Adequat e and nore.

Q Ckay. And is -- if you took all of the milk that

goes into Cass | and what vou believe to be adequate for

the reserve supply, is there additional mlk that is being

used, that is being pooled, that is not going into the d ass

| or as a necessary reserve for that dass 1?

A. You know, that's -- in the mnds of the dairy

farner: did he expand based on dass | or did he expand

because the cheese market? -- and, vou know, | think it's

pretty obvious but -- where the increased producti on was

i ncreased for the purpose of.

Q And it was not for the Cass |; right?

A. | don't think it was for the reserve of dass |.

Q All right. Now, let's bring this to the issue of

pr oducer - handl ers, and producer-handl ers, do they have a

reserve supply for their mlk?

A. If they're snart they do. |It's hard to keep

their custoner -- they'd have to have a reserve supply or

ot herwi se they couldn't serve the custoners.

Q And how does the nmintenance of that reserve

supply enter into their status in not being subject to the
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m ni mum pricing and pooling under the federal orders?

A. Well, that reserve supply cannot receive any

pri ce under the federal order program it cannot be pool ed,

it's left conpletely out of the pool, and they're left to

get what price they're able to get for that reserve mlk

and it hasn't been a concern to us, what prices they get.

Q Now, do you have an opinion as to whether or not

t he producer-handl ers are taking on an equal share of their

reserve supply as conpared to other dass | plants that are

fully requl at ed?

A. | couldn't answer that question. It just depends

on how nuch cheese nmlk's out there and how nuch other

ml k's being produced based on the support price and the

cheese price, so |l -- | would presune -- the assunption was,

when producer-handlers were exenpt, in '35, 1935, there's

testinony in the record that says that that nmarket at the

tinme, of '35, the producer-handlers dass | was 50 percent

of the market. | guess I've lost the question, tell ne the

question --

Q Ckay. What | want to cone back to is the reserve

supply. You know, in the Arizona order, you know,

approxi mately 20 percent of the mlk goes into Cass |, does

t hat sound about right?

A. | don't know. It's way down there sonmewhere.

Q Ckay. Now, if -- when vou talk about -- you just
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mentioned that the producers in -- yvou know, there were 50

percent that were producer-handlers and they were -- they

represented 50 percent of the Cass | and they were

bal ancing their mlk. Right?

A Uh- huh.

Q So when vou tal k about bal ancing the mlk, the

volune of mlk that they had to bal ance, okay, do they -- do

you need to look at -- or are you suggesting to the

Secretary they need to look at all of the milk in the order,

including this mlk that's going to the cheese nilk, or do

they need to look at -- to whether they're just bal anci ng

enough of their reserve supply so that they can neet their

cust oner needs?

A. VWll, in '35 the assunption was that the other --

the market had the sane reserve as the producer-handlers

had, and |'d have to presune that sanme assunption is on

today, that the real reserve for fluid needs for the other -

- for the whole narket is equal to what the producer-

handl ers' reserve is. That's the assunption since '35, and

| presune it's -- continues.

Q And the rest of the milk that is being pooled is

bei ng used for purposes other than neeting the adeguate

supply of beverage nmilk; is that right?

A. Well, ves, and whatever -- it's advantageous --

cheese nmilk, quote unquote "cheese mlk," is left out of the
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pool, and when it's advantageous to put it back into the

pool -- and in both situations it |lowers the blend price.

And also there's a give-up deal, there's riding

of the pool, all kinds of situations, you can ride the pool,

you bring the producers in and -- associated with a pool

plant, one day's delivery, they used to divert forever

[ phoneti c].

And then there's a qgive-up charge it's called,

when Florida and the southern part of the state need mlK,

in shortage in the falls especially, they call on the

M dwest cheese plants for this nmlk to go down to where it's

needed for fluid use, and the cheese plant says -- |'ve

heard, and | don't think it's hearsay -- that that mlk is

for our plant for our cheese and if we have to give it up

we're going to have a give-up charge and -- there's four of

themin California and one person set the qgive-up charge

amount at sonetines over 4 dollars a hundredwei ght.

Q Now, let's take this discussion another step. I

think vou indicated earlier on that the purpose of the

federal orders, the AMAA, was to pronpte orderly narketing.

Ri ght ?

A. O derly marketing and ensure an adequate supply

of mlk, being in the public interest.

Q Ckay. So how do you understand that the

Secretary is to maintain orderly marketing?
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A. Well, obtain orderly marketing is sinply to keep

an adequate supply of pure whol esonme nmlk available on a

vear-round basis. That would be orderly marketing.

Q And again, this is dealing with the mlk

available to the bottling -- or the beverage -- or the --

beverage milk; is that right, is your understandi ng?

A. Yeah, bottling fluid, fluids, ves.

Q All right. Now, in this area -- you know, you

tal k about nmintaining "orderly" -- what do you see as a

di sorderly marketing condition?

A. Well, go back before the federal mlk orders,

there were strikes, there were rifle firing [phonetic] in

the mlk tanks, there were price wars, or in the fall, being

short of mlk and having to go out to a farner and say,

"1'll give you free hauling if you'll switch fromthe

processor and cone to ne." Then at spring flush he'd cut

hi m off because of having too nuch mlk. And then in the

spring sone processors might have too much nilk so they

would -- and in order to get rid of it and not have to cut a

farmer off, they would cut the price, to get nore sales, and

pretty soon vou got a price war goi ng on anpong handl ers, and

that was di sorderly narketing.

And under the orderly nmarketing, of the

Secretary, one of the policies was that any nlk order that

woul d conme about, that would cone out of the handl ers'
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pocket rather than out of the producers' pocket, so there's

no nore price wars.

Q Based upon what you understand i s goi ng on today

in these orders, do you see any sign of any disorderly

mar ket i ng?
A. | haven't seen any sign
Q Ckay.

A. Now, go back to Kansas City in '35, when 50

percent of the mlk, Cass | use, was producer-handl ers. | f

that would have resulted in disorderly marketing, the

Secretary woul dn't have exenpted those producer-handl ers

fromfull reqgulation. So the criteria is: an adequate

supply. That's -- if you don't have an adequate -- there

have been hearings addressing situations where nilk

supplving a local area has dried up because of drought, or

potential to dry up, and so there's been energency heari ngs

to increase the Cass | price, to encourage the producers to

produce nore feed and get nore nmlk, to offset the drought.

Q Now, vou nentioned this issue of these price wars

and conpetition between handlers for sales. Wat rol e does

the narket administrator or the Secretary have reqgardi ng the

conpetition of handlers for mlk sal es?

A. Well, the Secretary has authority from Congress

to requlate unfair conpetition and unfair trade practice,

but I'mgoing to read you sonething here, okay, I'Il get it
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out of this --

(Pause.)
The MIk Industry Foundation in 1992 issued a

series of legal -- what's called Legal Series, and I'll read

the first paragraph:

"The Legal Reference Series" -- and this is the

first -- this is talking about the -- there's about six or

seven volunes. Oher volunes critique the Agriculture

deci si ons and court cases.

But in -- this has a preface to that, and it

says: The Legal Reference Series is the first conpilation

in the 30-year history of the federal mlk nmarketing order

program whereby all of the inportant | egal references are

available in a single source, docunent.

It represents a mammoth task, first authorized by

the Board of the MIk Industry Foundation over five years

ago. The document includes a conpl ete annotated copy of the

Agricul tural Marketing Agreenent Act of 1937, as it is now

amended, and the Rul es and Requl ati ons governi ng the

adm ni strative procedures applicable to anending federa

orders.

Now, on Part 4, entitled "Leqgislative H story and

Comment," on Page 81, it states, and |I'll just read froma

page here, it reads:

"Authority to prohibit unfair nethods of
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conpetition and unfair trade practices have been construed

by the Departnent as pertinent to the milk order only within

t he context of producer pricing.

"Several proposals for the enploynent of this

parti cul ar provision have been submtted, but none have gone

to hearing. Refusal of hearing have been made on the ground

that the practice involved nust be shown to be directly

pertinent to producer pricing and not one turning on the

pricing of mlk at retail.

"This construction is believed to have been

i nfluenced also by the earlier action of Congress in

wi t hhol di ng approval of resale price fixing."

Q So to your know edge, has the Secretary -- you've

read fromthat, but in your own know edge, in your, what,

al nost 40, 50 vears with the federal orders, are you aware

of any tine at which the Secretary has exercised any

authority on conpetition between handlers in their whol esal e

or retail sales?

A. He has not chose to put that in the federal mlKk

order since '35.

Q Now, in that sane line, as a narket

adm nistrator, did -- you audited plants; right?

A. Oh, | was an auditor for a nunber of vyears.

Q Right. And then as a market adninistrator and

assi stant nmarketing -- you supervised and audited those
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plants; right?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And vou gathered a lot of information from

those audits:; right?

A. Oh, ves.

Q And then in fact sone of the statistics that

M. MKkrantz and others have shown are the result of those

audits and that collection --

A. Reports and audits.

Q Reports and audits. The purpose of the audits is

to make sure the reports are accurate; right?

A. Ri ght. Right.

Q Ckay. Now, during this period of tinme in which

vou have done this auditing of these reports, have you ever

audited the prices that plants sell the mlk for, to

whol esale or retail?

A. No -- the short answer is no, but -- but -- we'd

want to know that the price sonehow was reasonable with the

vol une, because we're concerned that the volune's correct,

not that the price between a processor and a custoner is

correct but that the volune that goes to the custoner is

correct.
Q You woul d 1 ook at the gross sales just to nmke
sure that they've accounted for all the -- classified and

accounted for all their nmlk sales?
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A. Yes. W want to be sure the dispositions are
correct.
Q And your concern was nore in terns of the higher

prices that would be sold as opposed to the | ower?

A. Say that again.

Q Your concern would be in terns of seem ngly

hi gher prices as opposed to | ower, because it m ght suggest

mlk that wasn't fully reported?

A. Well, if the price was, say, double what it
should be, 1'd say, well, you nust have sold nore mlk than
you reported and I'd ook into that very carefully, I'd go

to interview enployees and check sone nore detail ed records,

nmaybe go question a custoner, because the narketing

adm ni strator had investigative power, sol'd be -- | want

to be dang sure that the volune and the price was equal --

was reasonable. But if it's high or low, | don't care.

Q Right. And vou didn't keep track of the prices

that the plant sold mlk for.

A No, no, no.

Q Al right. And as a narket admi nistrator, were

you concerned and check into situations in which there was a

shift in supply of mlk between one conpetitor and another?

A. Was | concerned?
Q Yes.
A. No, we don't have anything to do about who -- how
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to buy mlk, where, when, and wherever he wants to, we --

that's not our concern. This order [phonetic] reports where

he gets it and how he uses it.

Q Did vou have any concern whether or not a

reqgul ated handler was selling milk at a price |ess than what

its raw milk cost and processing cost was?

A. That doesn't cone into our requlatory program

Q Now -- sO --

A. | guess | shouldn't say the -- not "ours"”
anynore, I'mretired, but --

Q Yeah.

A. -- _you know what | nean.

Q You're not aware of any changes since you

retired, on that issue, though, are you?

A |'msorry?

You're not aware of any changes --

A No.

Q -- _since --

A No.

Q Now, we were talking -- | asked you a gquestion
about, you know, noving account to account. |Is there an
interest -- no, withdraw that.

So the Secretary, in terns of this public

i nterest you tal ked about, does not have an interest in

terns of the conpetition at the retail or the whol esal e
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level for this mlk; is that your understandi ng?

A. No, we have nothing to do with conpetition

Q Now, there are sone provisions -- | think there's

been sone discussion in terns of the Secretary

interpretation of the Act and exenpting producer-handl ers,

think vou're aware of those -- that testinony. Right?
A Yes.
Q Al right. Are there any other provisions in the

Act that suggest that producer-handlers should not be

subject to the pricing requl ations?

A. VWell, vou go to Section 7 under the Act, | can

quote from our agreenent back, Section 7, U.S.C

608(c) (5) (k) of the Act.

Q Ckay.
A. Now, here's what it provides. It provides that
m | k produced by certain persons -- and they're talking

about the Georgi a deal years ago when sone foreign-owned

conpany wanted to cone in and produce mlk, this was put in

during that period of tine.

It provides that nmilk produced by certain persons

shall -- and here's a gquote, here's the quote: shall be

treated as other-source mlk and shall be allocated as nilk

recei ved from producer-handlers for the purposes of

classifying producer mlK.

Now, anybody that runs a federal order pool would
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understand that the intent here that producer-handlers' mlKk

iS not priced.

Q And then if adopting -- let's take that another

step further, that if the Secretary were to adopt provisions

t hat woul d take producer-handl ers and cause their mlk to be

subject to mninmumprices, that that could underm ne the

effect of that provision?

A. | think that provision wuld have to be anended.
Q Ckay.
(Pause.)
MR._YALE: ['ve just got one nore topic to
address and then I'Il be done with this w tness.

THE COURT: Ckay.

(Pause.)
Q (By M. Yale) M. A bright, vou're aware, are

you not, that there is a provision in the Arizona order that

provides that if a producer-handl er supplies a custoner with

mlk of the sane product and the sane size and a sinilar

| abel during the nonth that -- | nean that -- he in a sense

is prohibited fromdoing that. Are vou aware of that

provi si on?
A. Well, they'll lose their exenption. There's no

pr ohi biti on about anyt hi ng.

Q Ckay.

A. If they do certain things, they just |ose their
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exenpti on and becone pool.

Q But vou're aware of that provision.

A Yes. Yes --

Q It was after vou left, though:; right?

A. Ri ght .

Q Ckay. What's vour understandi ng, though, of the

pur pose of that provision? How would you --

A. It's to prevent a producer-handler to let sone

ot her processor help himcarry his reserve.

Q So as long as --

A. O "its reserve." You're not supposed to use

"his" or "hers" anynore (chuckling).

Q Right. So if the producer-handler is not using

anot her handler to handle its reserve supply, then that's in

conpliance with that provision; is that your understandi ng?

A. If he's not relying on -- that's right.

MR. YALE: Thank vyou, Your Honor. | have no

ot her qguesti ons.

THE COURT: Any other questions for this witness?

M. English, step on up

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Good norning, M. Albright.

A. Good norning. O afternoon, | guess, norning.

MR. ENG.ISH. Charles English, for Shanrock
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Foods.

Q (By M. English) Let ne sort of start where vyou

ended and work ny way in different directions here.

It's not necessarily the case, with respect to

t he sane product and sinilar -- or sane size, simlar |abel,

that vou're relying on another handler, or a handler is

relying on a producer-handler; isn't it the case, sir, that

it could be a retailer, purchasing, though, from a producer-

handl er, until that producer-handler can no | onger supply

the mlk for that period, or how much they need, and then

that retailer goes and relies on the requlated handler to

get the remaini ng supply?

A. It'd be the sane effect.

Q Yeah.

A. | nmean, it'd be getting reserve from anot her
processor.

Q And in the end, as you say, the sane effect is

that the burden has been now pl aced upon the requl ated

mar ket to provide the bal ancing for that product --

A. That's ri ght.

-- _correct?

Q.
A. That's ri ght.
Q And talking -- speaking of 7 U.S.C. 608(c)(5)(k),

you woul d agree that that provision is put in, as you

vourself said, for a specific probleminvolving a foreiqn-

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2515

owned entity; correct?

A. Ri ght .

Q And that the effect, as opposed to what you said,

that this shows that there's no charge to the producer-

handl er, the effect of that is that under those

circunstances, mlk received, under the statutory provision,

fromsuch an entity, because it's treated as other-source

mlk, results in a charge to the requl ated handl er that

purchases that mlk, because it's treated as other-source

ml k and that pushes other nmlk out --

A. If it goes into Cdass |, if it's used for fluid

use it will get charged, otherw se there would be no charge.

Q Well, but let's say it goes into a | ower-class

use; does that not nean the remmining mlk of the requl ated

handl er has been pushed up into, let's say, dass |, whereas

before, sone of it was not dass | and it will pay nore for

that mlk to the pool as a result?

A. Try ne again.

Q Let's take a sinple exanple of, you know, a

t housand hundr edwei ght - -

A. Ckay.

-- _and 990 hundredweight are in dass | --

A. Ckay.
Q -- and 10 hundredwei ght are in class 4.
A. Ckay. Al right.
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Q It's a CQass | operation. And let's say the

pl ant purchases from a producer-handl er --

Uh- huh.

-- 10 pounds.

Ckay.

That's going to be class 4; correct?

> 0 P> ©o »

He --

It's going to be allocated other-source mlk and

it

S going to be --

A. You nean it doesn't --

Q -- subtracted --

A It's not in 10, he just gets that --

Q Yes.

A. -- 10 froma producer-handler, sone other source?
Q That's right.

A. So it's not -- producer mlk and 10 producer-

handl er m | K.

Q That's correct.
A. Ckay, all right. R ght, |'"'mwith you
Q It's a slight change to ny exanple but |'ll take

the change. Now, the 10 pounds, that's other-source mlKk,

results in the 90 pounds of producer mlk being all dass I;
correct?

A Yes.

Q And that results in a charge to the handler on
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that 90 pounds of mlk at all Cass |; correct?

A. Well, he pays the dass | price for it, is
producing milk in Cass I, but the fact that they can
produce 100, | don't see --

Q You don't think it results in --

A -- change in the obligations --

Q Okay, but you agree that if any of it's allocated

to Cdass | it's going to result in a charge?

A. | f producer-handler mlk gets into dass |,

there's a charge, but it's not the dass | price.

Q But vou agree there can be a charqge
A. If it -- if producer-handler nmilk gets into d ass
|, there'll be a charge to the procedure who brought the

mlk and put it into Cass |

Q So at |l east you agree that on sone sort -- that

at | east under one circunstance, that there are

circunstances in which nmlk from producer-handl ers ends up

bei ng char ged.

A. As ot her-source mlKk.

Q But does result in a charge to the handl er who

pur chased the mlk:; correct?

A. Yeah, because the assunption is that he bought

that mlk at class 3 price or lower price and use it at a

hi gher price.

Q Now, any - -
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A. But | don't -- | don't understand the

significance of it.

Q Let ne take you to your point that sonehow this

provi sion would have to be anended. Is it vyour

understanding that if the proposals from proponents are

adopted, that there would no | onger be producer-handl ers?

A. Oh, ves. You'd have pool producer-handlers and

you' d have unrated producer-handl ers.

Q Well, no, is it --

A. They'd all be producer-handlers. You're not

goi ng to change the spots on a | eopard, he's going to be a

pr oducer - handl er - -

Q Isn't it the case --

A. He's going to be a producer-handl er whether it's

pool or not.

Q Well, but for purposes of requlation, they wll

no longer be -- if the proposals are adopted, an entity that

is presently a producer-handler, that has, say, 8 mllion

pounds - -
A. Uh- huh.
Q -- would no |l onger neet the definition of being a

pr oducer -handler: right?

A. He'd be called a pool handl er.

Q That's correct.

A. Ri ght .
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Q But there would still be, according to the

exhibit we just saw, Exhibit 51, producer-handlers; correct?

A. | don't know about the exhibit, | can't talk to

t hat .

Q Vell, we know fromthe exhibit that there woul d

be entities that have | ess than 500, 000 pounds, which by

definition is less than 3 mllion pounds, which by

definition neans they're not affected by this provision;

correct?

A. That's right, if it's less than 3 nmllion.

Q And so those entities would still be producer-

handl ers; correct?

A. They' d be exenpt producer-handl ers, vyes.

Q Correct. And so the provision 7, US.CF

608(c) (5)(k), would nmake perfect sense with reference to

those entities; correct?

A. Vell, | -- 1 don't know what the Departnent calls

a producer-handler if it's pool.

Q Well, if you read the proposals, do they not --

and you' ve said vou' ve been here for half the hearing, does

it nean that they're no | onger called producer-handl ers?

A. But the point of it is, M. English, that

Congress, in putting that provision in, probably intended

t hat producer-handl ers not be requl at ed.

Q And you conclude that sinply fromthe | anquage
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you -- or if you go back and | ook at the provision --

A. | didn't go back and | ook at anything --

Q So vou didn't go back and | ook --

A. -- because ny resources are limted, | don't have

access to anythi ng anynore.

Q So we'd have to rely on what Congress actually

said about that --

A. That's ri ght.

Q -- _correct?

A. That's ri ght.

Q And the fact that producer-handlers over tine

have, in sone circunstances, becone reqgul ated; correct?

A. I f they m sstep.

Q VWell, but under vyour construction, they can't

m sstep because Congress has said they can't be regul at ed;

correct?

A Well, if they buy mlk from unauthorized sources
and things of that nature, they'll |lose their exenption

Q And they |lose their exenption because they're no

| onger defined as a producer-handler: correct?

A Wll, | presune you're right, | concede you that
poi nt .

Q Thank you. Now, you -- this next question
think was nore -- | either msheard or perhaps you m sspoke.

You were referencing the mlk industry docunent --
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A Uh- huh.

Q --_and | thought | heard you say 1992.
A '72.

Q 1972. Thank you

A. Copi es of those are in each market

adm ni strator's office.

Q But it's not been updated since 1972, has it?

A. Not to nmy know edge.

Q It hasn't been updated factually, it hasn't been

updated legally, and it certainly hasn't been updated based

upon changes in the marketpl ace; correct?

A. That's ri ght.

Q You referenced the Kansas City producer-handl ers

and that they were not a disruptive or disorderly marketing

condition and you reached sone concl usi ons about that.

Based upon what vyou've read about the Kansas City history

back in the 1950s, isn't it true that not one, not one, of

t he producer-handlers that was exenpted in the 1950s in

Kansas Cty would fall under requl ation based upon this

pound lim¢t?

A. Ch, |'"'mpretty sure (chuckling) -- pretty sure

it's -- you're telling the truth. In fact, back in those

days, nost of the farners, back in those days, their node of

transportati on was horse and wagon, so they didn't have very

many CoOWws.

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2522

Q Precisely, sir. A couple questions about reserve

supply. Since vou've traveled recently to California, and

since you've certainly in your tinme have studi ed sone of

t hese issues: when mlk from say, Arizona or Nevada npbves

into California, do you have an understanding as to how it

is effectively priced under the California systenf

A. Let nme think. | know it would be -- it wouldn't

be quota mlk, it wouldn't be quota mlk --

Q It's not quota mlk but does not effectively

receive a credit, and the fact of the matter is, the credit

to the handler is what the producer receives; correct? The

handl er receiving that mlk --

A. In California?

Q -- in California receives a credit. W'Ill talk

about what that credit level is in a nonent.

A. Acredit? | don't understand -- you nean under

the California | aw?

Q Under the California provisions. You've studied

them vou've tal ked about themwith them You were just out

t here.

A. VWll, | knowthat if a handler, A gets his

receipts froman out-of-state producer, then original that

mlk wasn't priced, as | recollect.

Q Wel |, okay.

A But - -
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Q But that was before 1997: correct?
A. Yeah, it was before -- and then, you know, after
1997, I've lost -- I'm|l ost.

Q Al right. So you don't know what can happen to

Arizona mlk and how it mght be priced in California today;

correct?

A No, | really don't. | really don't.

Q Ckay. | think I heard you saying -- and let ne
see if | can recharacterize it and get it right, |I'm not

trying to recharacterize it wong --

A Sur e.

Q -- that you're tal king about the nmarket reserve

and reserve milk, and | thought what you were saying is that

in your opinion, the federal order market reserves that have

resulted in recent years are too large for actual d ass |

needs.

A. Oh, absol utely.

Q Isn't that a criticismof general pooling rules,

as opposed to treatnent of producer-handl ers?

A. | think that's the fault of producers that want

to expand, and Congress, going along with the producers, put

in this advertising pronotion that hel ped increase

production for cheese, and that increased nore nilk

production, and -- which obviously wasn't, in ny opinion,

produced for reserve for fluid use.
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Q But sir, haven't we, since federal order reform

effective January 1, 2000, had no fewer than siXx

proceedi ngs, not counting this one, that have to do with

pooling provisions?

A. Yeah, but | -- you're gonna |lose ne on this

reform because | --

Q Al right.

A. -- | retired before that went into effect.

Q But vou understand enough to know that there has

been sone criticismof federal order reformas to how the

pooling provisions actually work; correct?

A. | know what a | ocal producer told ne, he told ne,

after this reformwent in, he used to understand how mlKk

was priced but he does not understand it anynore, and I'm

kind of in his light, I don't understand, really, all this
stuff.

Q Well, | nean you've -- you've talked about market
reserves --

A. It's nore -- it's nore -- rather than nmake it

nore sinple they made it nore conplicated, in ny opinion.

And | have sone understandi ng, but go ahead.

Q All right. But if rather than nmeking it nore

sinple they nmade it nore conplicated, that could be viewed

as a commentary on the pooling provisions; correct?

A. The pool provisions have al ways been conpli cat ed,
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to sone peopl e.

Q Now, we've had sone discussion this norning and

you've already said that in your opinion, that you think

federal order narket reserves are too |arge. Do _vyou

under st and the so-call ed doubl e pooling issue?

A Uh- huh.

Q You understand what it is?

A. VWhen vou tal k about pool, vou nean like the pool

under two different orders?

Q The nilk being pooled on a federal order and

si mul taneously being pooled on a state order, and let's be

candid about it, California.

A. Yeah, but that's -- that has no concerns to the

federal requl ation, we have no concern as to where the other

m |k goes.
Q Well, but are you famliar, since 1998, that,

agai n, we've had a nunber of proceedi ngs that have concerned

t hensel ves with what happens there?

A. Maybe so. | don't know, |'mnot --

Q If mlk can receive a formof a pool price in

California and sinultaneously be pooled in Arizona but not

physically received in Arizona, is that not yet another

exanple, in vour opinion, of the federal order market

reserve being too large for dass | needs?

A. VWll, it may be a problemwith state requl ati ons
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of California.

MR ENGISH | have no further guestions of this

W t ness.

THE COURT: M . Beshore?

MR. BESHORE: Marvin Beshore, for Dairy Farners

of Anerica.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BESHORE:

Q Good norning, M. Albright.

A. Good nor ni ng.

Q You're the first witness which M. Yale has

call ed since he entered his appearance for two additional

conpani es this norning, Select MIK Producers. Do you know

anyt hi ng about Select M|k Producers?

A. | _know about them that's about all.

Q Ckay. Are they involved in Order 131, to vour

know edge?

A. Not while | was nmarket admi nistrator, no.

Q Ckay. Wiat do you know about Select MIk

Pr oducers?

A. VWll, they started out in New Mexico, and | think

they're now in Indiana, and they got the filtration system

on the plant, on the farm to filter the nmilk, then nove it

to the Mdwest for cheese, which indicates that if a -- when

they put those filtration systens in, they knew they weren't
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producing mlk as a reserve for fluid mlk, | can tell you
t hat nuch.
Q Ckay. Do vou know -- he also entered his

appearance for Continental MIk Products.

A. | don't know that nane.

Q So you wouldn't know -- were they involved in the

Ari zona order when --

A. | don't recognize the nane.

Q Do vou know what interests Select M|k Producers

woul d have in this proceedi ng?

A. What interest they would have?

Q Yes. Since they're now represented by counsel in

t he proceedi ng.

A. Well, they're primarily a cheese producer. They

can ride the pool when they can and they can get

[indiscernible] of fluid and narket it as nuch as they can,

that'd be their interest.

Q And do vou know how that would relate to the

pr oducer - handl er provisions of Order 1317

A. |'mnot foll owi ng you.

Q |'mnot -- |'masking for your help.

A. (Chuckling.)

Q Do vou know what interest Select MIk Producers,

as you' ve described their operations, would have in the

issues in this hearing, relating to the "producer-handl er"
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A. VWll, there'd be nore noney for himif a

pr oducer - handl er was requl ated --

Q So - -

A. -- if a producer-handler's utilizations was

hi gher than the nmarket average.

Q So your -- it would be your indication that a

cooperative in the position of Select, which is primarily

supplyving mlk for cheese production, would have an interest

in seeing the utilization, the dass | wutilization that

producer-handl ers be part of the pool.

A. VWll, in effect they wouldn't affect Sel ect

because he's not part of the Arizona order. He doesn't --

as far as | know, he has no mlk under that order, so it

wouldn't affect himat all.

Q One way or the other

A. Unless it was universal

all over the country,

this proposal, then he nmight get sone to sonme other

mar keti ng area.

Q Ckay. If they wanted to -- if Select wanted to

go i nto the producer-handl er business in another part of the

country, might that be a reason for thembeing interested in

what happens here?

A. If they were interested in becom ng a producer-

handl er ?
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Q Yes.

A Oh, certainly. Certainly.

Q They might want to see that door kept w de open
A (Chuckling) That's right. That's right.

Q Sane thing for Continental, if they were |ocated

in Indiana, Mchigan, GChio, in that area?

A. That's right. And it nay be -- the consuner

m ght have sone interest in this proceeding, if they were

here, you know, keep conpetition

Q Now, one of the -- one of your prinmary

responsibilities as a person involved in the adninistration

of federal nmilk orders over the years was to assure price

- mnimumprice uniformty anmong handl ers; correct?

A. Pool handl ers.

Q Pool handlers. And there have been sone -- sone

previ ous di scussion in the hearing about the del eterious

i mpact of unpriced milk in a federal order narket. Do _vyou

recall that?

A. Well, there would be, if you had unpriced mlK,

it would, it would not --

Q That woul d be harnful, if you had unpriced --

A. VWll, it'd be conpetition, it'd be a matter of

conpetition, if you put unpriced milKk into an order. I

don't know that that would be disorderly nmarketing but it'd

be --

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2530

Q Wll, it could be disorderly nmarketing, could it
not ?

A Only if there's a threat of drying up local -- or
nati onal supply of -- adequate supply for fluid use.

Q How woul d unpriced -- well, isn't it the case
that -- as in previous decisions by the Secretary which have

been guoted in this proceeding, isn't it the case that the

entry into federal order nmarkets of unpriced nmilk has al ways

been viewed as potentially disorderly?

A. Well, | don't know how it would have been put,

but | don't know that they had an understandi ng when they

use the word "disorderly," in ny opinion

Q Isn't -- hasn't it been the case, M. Al bright,

during the vears that you were with the Departnent, that the

Department consistently viewed the entry of unpriced mlk

into the marketing area as a danger to disorderly -- to

orderly nmarketing?

A. If it was a threat to requl ated producers which

mght result in a shortage of milk, it would be disorderly

mar keting, but | don't know how nuch unpriced nmlk can get

into the market. M/ mind's turning here. | think there's

conpensatory paynent on any nilk that cones into the

mar keting area from an unrel ated source. | don't know --

can't think of how unpriced mlk can get into the market

t oday.
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Q VWell, how about producer-handler mlk, isn't that

unpriced m |l k?

A. VWll, the Secretary decided he doesn't want to

requl ate the producer-handler and he's -- on the basis

that's his reserve, it probably equals the other handl ers'

reserve, and you break even

Q Onh the --

A. Now, that's -- see, and that's the job of the

Secretary. He's chose not to requlate them

Q Wthin his definitions.

A. He's chose to exenpt producer-handlers from

pricing provisions.

Q As he defines them

A. As he defines them And | can't argue with what

he does, | have to accept that as infinite wi sdomfrom

above.

MR. BESHORE: Thank vou.

THE COURT: Any other questions on the

proponents' side?

(No response.)

THE COURT: Any redirect at all, M. Yale?

MR, YALE: No.

THE COURT: Ms. Deskins, you don't have any

questions?
MS. DESKINS: No.
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THE COURT: Okay. You nmay -- very carefully --

step down.
THE WTNESS:. Very good. | can't slip now.

(Wtness excused.)

THE COURT: Wiy don't we take a five-ninute break

and then I'll have M. Yale call -- who's your next wtness

goi ng to be?

MB. DESKI NS: Duane Br andsna.

THE COURT: COkay. Let's take a five-ninute break

and then we'll have M. Brandsna.

(O f the record and reconvened.)

THE COURT: On the record. Before | start, | do

want to say that Ms. Deskins has given ne copies of Exhibit

48, so Exhibit 48 is available. That was the notification -

- was it the notification docunent?

MB. DESKINS: Yeah. The certification of

mai | i ng.
THE COURT: The certification of mmiling, okay,

and that's Exhibit 48, and we do have that, and a copy was

given to the Reporter, but it's adnmitted into evidence and -

MB. DESKINS: [|'ve got sone extras |'ll put at

t he back.
THE COURT: Ckay.

(Exhi bit No. 48 was received.)
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THE COURT: At this point, Ms. Reed, call vour

W t ness.

MB. REED: Thank you, Your Honor. Kristine Reed,

calling Duane Brandsnma, and M. Brandsnma has a statenent

t hat we have circul ated and woul d be offered as an exhibit,

which | believe is Nunber '52.

THE COURT: Okay, and I'mgoing to mark this as

Exhi bit 52.

(Exhibit No. 52 was marked.)

THE COURT: Are you going to -- well, | should

swear himin first, probably.

NMG. REED: Yes.

THE COURT: |If you could raise your right hand.

DUANE BRANDSMVA, OPPONENTS' W TNESS, SWORN

THE COURT: Could you pl ease state your nane and

spell it for the record.

THE W TNESS: My nane i s Duane Brandsma

D-u-a-n-e, B-r-a-n-d-s-ma.

M5. REED: And M. Brandsma will proceed to read

his prepared statenent first.

THE COURT: And do you want nme to -- | can adm't

it nowwhile we're thinking about it if you want. Since

he's going to be reading it | can't inmagine there'd be an

objection. So I'mgoing to adnit Exhibit 52 into evidence,

and vou nmay proceed, M. Brandsmm
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(Exhibit No. 52 was received.)

DI RECT TESTI MONY

BY THE W TNESS: My nanme is Duane Brandsma, and

am an owner and pl ant nanager of Edal een Dairy, located in

Lynden, Washington. Qur plant is |located just south of the

Canadi an border and east of Bellingham Wshington. W are

entirely a famly-owned and -operated business. The

busi ness was founded by ny nother and father, Ed and Ail een

Brandsma, who remain owners. MW/ wife and |, ny sister and

her husband, Probably Heerspink, and ny other sister and her

husband, Mtch Morlag, are also owners. W are opposed to

all of the proposed anendnents subnitted at this hearing.

As | began to develop ny testinony after hearing

ei ght days' worth of testinobny in Phoenix and Seattle, | was

not sure whether | should stand up here and tell the

Secretary that we are an efficient plant, delivering product

at a reasonable price to the consum ng public, or should

try to explain to the Secretary that we have inefficiencies

and therefore we deserve sone kind of requlatory break to

deal with those inefficiencies.

Frankly, the last is an absurd position. | do
not believe -- and, after hearing the testi nbny of Ron
Knutson, | am convinced -- that producer-handlers are no

nore or less efficient than other handlers. The sinple

poi nt of a producer-handler is that he is not purchasing
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mlk fromanyone: he is handling his own nilk, produced on

his farm and is taking the full risk of being both the

owner of the farmand the owner of the plant.

This risk cannot be overstated. If you're only a

producer and one mlk plant can no | onger process vour mlKk,

you can deliver that mlk to another handl er and you have no

econonic responsibility for the future success or viability

of that milk plant. [If it fails, it fails, and you have a

| ost custoner, but no nore.

Simlarly, if you are operating a mlk plant and

t he producer cannot supply mlk, you are not out anything;

you are able to acquire that mlk from sonme other source,

and vou have no |l egal or econonic obligation to take care of

t hat producer or continue to provide at a narket or

otherwi se deal with its production.

Let nme give you sone exanples. If | am operating

nmy plant as a producer-handler, which we are, and sone

health or environnental issue arises that nmakes ny mlk --

that makes mlk fromour farnms unavailable, | may be able to

purchase nilk fromother sources at a price. Nonet hel ess, |

have a continuing obligation to keep the plant operating and

profitable, but also available to the farmthat we own.

Moreover, | have double cost, | have the cost of

the milk that | purchase fromthe outside supplier, but |

still have the cost of producing the mlk that we have
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rejected fromour own farm

Anot her exanpl e explains this. If | am operating
a farm as a producer-handler, and | lose a sale at the
plant, | still have the mlk production coning fromthe

farm which | have to pay for even though |I do not have a

mar ket for that product.

A requl ated handl er does not have that risk but

can change its production as it w shes based upon its sales.

Davi d Beene testified exactly what can happen when those

stars align. Wen it does happen, the producer-handl er

faces the loss of its plant.

W were alnpbst in that sane situation when

St arbucks term nated our contract, but Starbucks gave us

enough tine to replace that sale with nunerous other sal es,

and we worked hard to find new custoners.

The reason that there is risk to both the farm

and the plant is because a producer-handler is a single

econonic entity, a producer-handl er does not "l ose noney" at

the plant or at the farm At the end of the day, the entire

busi ness either | oses or nakes npbney. Cost accounting does

not change that reality.

VWhen the proponents tal k about creating sonme

assessnents that would have to pay into a pool, it is a cost

that is going to be borne by the whole enterprise, so when

the Secretary would require us to nake paynents into the
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pr oducer pool, based upon our own production that we are

marketing, it would be an inposition on the producer as nmuch

as it would be on the handl er.

Ot her discussions at this hearing heave dealt

with the cost accounting and the fact that producer-handl ers

get the difference between Gass | and the blend price.

This argunment only cones fromthose who do not operate

producer - handl ers and have no under st andi ng what producer-

handler is or how it operates.

For a producer-handler, the blend price is a

meani ngl ess nunber. That figure has no bei ng what soever in

terns of the cost of operating our farmor the price at

which we sell our milk. The only relevance in this hearing

is that we would pay into the pool the difference between

Class | and the blend price, which would necessarily be a

reduced price because we do not sell our nmlk on the basis

of a blend price.

In fact, our efforts are to sell mlk at the

hi ghest price the market will bear, and we do not

intentionally sell mlk at less than class price. If it

happens it happens, but the Cass | price is not a basis for

pricing our nmlKk. Instead it is to our advantage that the

mar ket price be as high as possible.

It is also to our advantage to have the market

pri ce exceed our cost. That is what business is all about.

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2538

In the | ast several vyears, plants who are requl ated have

only had to pay the dass | price for their mlk. 1In sone

cases that price has been |lower than the cost of production.

VWhen that happens, the producer-handler is placed

at a distinct di sadvantage, but that situation has not been

menti oned by the proponents.

What really matters to Edal een Dairy and all of

t he producer-handlers is that the revenue we earn fromthe

sale of our mlk exceeds the cost to produce the finished

product. We try to nmake an overall profit on the operation.

If our cost of producing mlk and bottling the nmlk or the

cost of disposition outside of Cdass | is less than the

ampunt _of noney earned through the sale of such products,

then we are a profitable enterprise.

The blend price is irrelevant to the standard

financial equation for any enterprise. Sale mnus cost of

goods sold equals gross profit. To illustrate the policy of

the relevancy of the blend price to a producer-handler, a

conparison of costs of mlk production to the blend price

shows how different they are.

Where classified pricing clearly defines the cost

of raw product to a pool distributing plant, the producer-

handl ers' costs of raw ml Kk enconpasses its cost of

production, including fee costs, land costs, livestock

costs, and other farmrel ated expenses and i nvestnents.
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The idea that the producer-handl er can nake a

profit by receiving the blend price for its nmilk is false.

Regul ar reports are prepared by the California Departnent of

Food & Agriculture, docunenting the costs to a producer --

the cost to produce a single hundredweight of mlk in

California.

Li kewi se, the Econonic Research Service of USDA

conpiles simlar infornation for other areas of the country.

| would ask that the Secretary take official notice of the

ERS data, which can be found at the internet at the

WWW. er s. usda. gov_website. The ERS data for California and

| daho, the two states closest to Oder 124 and 131, has been

i ncorporated into the tables acconpanyi ng this statenent.

The first two tabl es acconpanying this statenent

summari ze the cost of production information. It conpares

for various nonths, when cost data was avail abl e, the cost

of production as reported by the previously-identified

sources agai nst the FMVO [ phonetic] blend prices for Oders

124 and 131.

The final colum in each table shows that not

i nfrequently the cost of producing mlk exceeds the bl end

price received by producers. In Idaho, which is the cl osest

state to Order 124 for which data was avail able, ERS reports

that the cost of production exceeded the blend price by over

$4.50 per hundredweight for the first 11 nonths of 2003.
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In markets such as these, producer-handl ers have

been stressed to sell at conpetitive prices, which did not

meet their production costs. | f producer-handlers were

required to pay additional funds into the pool, these

expendi tures would be nothing but pure | osses, assessnents

that would drive them out of business.

Sone accounting firns that specialize in dairy

accounti ng produce periodic conposite statenents for their

uni verse of clients, which includes the cost of production

on_a per-hundr edwei ght basis. These conposite statenents

are consistent with the data and concl usion on the attached

tables. The fact that the cost of production has exceeded

the blend price is recent years is well-known in the

i ndustry.

| would seriously doubt that any of the

cooperative components would testify that their nenbers have

been consistently profitable, receiving blend prices. 1In

fact, the cost-of-production squeeze has been so great in

recent years that we feel that handl ers payi ng m ni nrum

pri ces have had a cost advant age over producer-handl ers.

Unnentioned so far in this hearing is the ability

of cooperatives to use their ability to rebl end and pay

producers less than the blend price, to subsidize their

bottling operations, such as those plants -- such that those

pl ants are paying |l ess than the nm ni mum prices.
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The proponents have offered testinbny to prove

the all eged negative inpact that producer-handlers are

havi ng on those nmarketing areas. Their arqunents have been

that the quantity of dass | market produced by producer-

handl ers i s grow ng unabated, and producer-handl ers have

exerted such fierce pricing pressure on the narketpl ace that

ot hers cannot conpete.

Attached to ny testinmony is a chart which was

prepared by Charlie Flanagan, of Mullorie's Dairy, using the

i nformati on found on Exhibit 5. This shows the trend |lines

of both the Cass | usage in the market by pool plants and

the dass | by producer-handl ers.

Based upon the change in the relationship in the

last two vears, | estimate the producer-handler mlk wll

equal processor nilk in the year 1950. Yes, | said 1950:

because the percentages are goi ng down and not going up.

If this is the kind of unbridled qgrowh that the

Secretary wishes to nake deternminations, then | hate to

thi nk of what type of growth it would take to show

ot her wi se.

W woul d have to show a declining nmarket share of

10 percent or 20 percent to show that we cease to be a

nmenace. There is sone repeated assertion that there are

nanmed and unnaned producers of such a size that they could

becone producer-handl ers and take over significant C ass
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sales. This potential has existed in the Arizona for many

vears, and the current situation is no different.

It would be premature to enact reqgul ati ons

dealing with marketing conditions that do not currently

exi st. |f and when a | arge producer would decide to enter

the market as a producer-handl er, the nmarketing conditions

may be such and that producer-handl er's operation designed

so that the orderly nmarketing i s not only nmintai ned but

enhanced.

Specul ati ng now puts the Secretary in the

position of potentially creating inefficiencies in the

system based on ignorance of future results. M. Ritchey

testified in Phoenix, and there was specul ation that he was

exanm ning the possibility of becom ng a producer-handler.

However, | have been inforned that he has since sold his

herd and is no | onger dairying.

There's other testinobny, about Vitanm |k, and how

producer-handlers allegedly did Vitamlk in. There is

absolutely nothing to that clai mwhatsoever. | have

attached to ny testinobny two news releases that discuss the

downfall of Vitamlk. One article is fromthe Novenber 23,

1998, edition of The Puget Sound Business Journal. The

second article is fromthe August 16, 2003, edition of The

Seattl e-Ti nes.

As was known in the industry and recognized in
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each of the docunents, Vitamlk lost a sale to QFC when QFC

nerged with the Kroger Conpany through Fred Meyer, which is

owned by the Kroger Conpany. Since the Kroger Conpany has a

captive plant, Vitanmilk sales were lost to the Kroger

Conpany. Simlarly, Vitanmlk lost sales to Carr Stores in

Al aska, when Carr Stores were purchased by Safeway. Saf eway

al so operates a captive plant.

The end of Vitamlk has nothing to do with the

price of the nmlk or producer-handl ers. In an extrenely

short period of tinme Vitanmlk found itself with 50 percent

| ess sal es. Before the |l oss of these sales, Vitamlk sold

20 mllion gallons of mlk a vear. Afterward it sold only

10 mllion gallons of mlk per year.

Vitanmi | k needed to find custoners renmining in

the market to pick up those sales. Well, all that would be

left in the marketpl ace would be sales that are not sold or

controll ed by Saf eway and the Kroger Conpany and not

ot herwi se being supplied by other dairies in the industry,

i ncludi ng Dean Foods, W/l cox, West Farns, and others.

During that period, after the loss of the OFC

account, Edal een Dairy picked up a new account that had been

supplied by Vitamlk. The total sales to that account

ampunted to one |load of mlk per week. A load of mlk per

week represents 50, 000 pounds of mlKk. In a nonth that is

200, 000 pounds. As a percentage of Vitanmilk's 14-mllion-
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pounds-per-nonth operation before the |1oss of QFC and

Carr's, that represents less than 2 percent of their total

sal es.

None of us own our custoners. Account sw tching

of this nature and of this size or larger are reqular

occurrences in the dairy industry. The loss of a single

smal |l account by Vitam |l k anpbunted to a fraction of the | oss

occasi oned by OFC and Carr's.

G ven the real facts on the denmise of VitamlKk

per haps the scope of this hearing should be changed to

elimnate captive plants instead of to elini nate producer-

handl ers.

Anot her i ssue was raised dealing with school

pricing, and the facts that schools have contracted, with

flat pricing, as opposed to index pricing. Under flat

pricing, a distributor or a plant would give a bid to a

school, that would be fixed for the rest of the school vyear.

Under an i ndex plan, the schools wll purchase

the mlk and the price will be adjusted in accordance wth

the formul as and that use the Cass | price in the

mar ket place. Flat pricing is not a creation of producer-

handl ers. Until a few years ago it was al nbst the absol ute

rule in terns of how mlk was sold to schools, regardl ess of

suppli er.
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In the late 1990s and early this decade, when

there was great volatility and high mlk prices, sone

handlers tried to get schools to purchase nmlk on an i ndex

formula. Sone schools agreed to consider that, but when

school s requested bids on mlk, they would specify whether

they wanted a flat price or an index price.

As in any forward contracting, there are risks

for both buyer and seller. For us, an index price does not

shift the risk or protect us fromany risk because our cost,

as | nentioned before, is not the class price or the blend

price but is the cost of production, which or nmay not nove

in the sane direction and to the sane deqree as classified

pricing.

At the sane tine, the use of flat price exposes

us to risks, and if our cost of production goes up, we wl|

be exposed to an unprofitable sale, as has happened from

tinme to tine in our pricing.

But when it cones to bidding on that contract, we

are no better or worse positioned than any other handler in

the market, be it a fully priced and requl ated handl er or a

requl at ed producer-handler in the market.

Al so, there has been sone attenpt to estimate the

price at which producer-handlers store their nilk, based

upon the store price for a gallon of mlKk. My experi ence

has been: there is little correlation between the price at
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whi ch Edal een sells its mlk and the price on the store

shel f.

Anot her i ssue has cone up, as to whether there is

a good nunber for a cap that can be used. The problemw th

any cap or limtation -- and a 3-mllion-pound cap is

totally unacceptable -- is that it inposes a hard linmtation

on any future growth of a producer-handl er

First let ne explain what the inpact of a cap

would be. A plant is at 10 mllion pounds of mlk and is a

producer-handler and the cap is set at 11 mllion pounds.

To go over that 11 nmillion is substantial. Once at

11, 000, 001 pounds, all the milk is now subject to the

difference between CQass | at the plant and the bl end price,

at an average of about a dollar twenty a hundredwei ght.

That one pound could be very, very expensive, to the tune of

hundreds of thousands of dollars.

The proposed limtation of 3 mllion pounds nmeans

that if a producer-handler has 3,000,001 pounds of

production, he becones fully priced under the order.

Assune a difference between the blend price and

the Cass | of a dollar twenty. At 3 nmillion or |ess pounds

per nonth, the producer-handler has no obligation to the

pool. Once he reaches one pound nore, he is obligated at

$1.20 on all of his mlk. The total is $36,000.01. On a

per - hundr edwei ght basis, this pound represents $3, 600, 001
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per hundr edwei ght .

All this assessnent will be borne by nilk owned

and produced by the producer-handl er. If the Secretary were

to adopt a higher cap, the rate would only go up on this

mar gi nal _pound of mlKk.

The penalty associated with this assessnent nmeans

t hat producers will take substantial steps to avoid reaching

that level, including keeping their sales substantially

below 3 nillion pounds, to avoid an accidental occurrence.

| would estinmate that the target would be about

10 percent less. This is because the scheduling of delivery

of orders and actual receipt at nonth end would be the nost

li kely cause of a producer-handler being trapped. One day

is approximately 3 percent of nonthly production, and three

days represent a weekend with a holiday.

The current requlations linmting the ability of

pr oducer-handlers to produce -- to purchase nilk from ot her

producers, to a hundred fifty pounds of mlk per nonth, have

the sane effect.

For exanpl e, assune that a producer-handl er has

nmonthly dass | sales of 5 mllion pounds a nonth and for a

gi ven nonth purchases three loads of mlk, as is all owed.

For simplicity, we assune that the cost of these three | oads

of mlk is $15.00 per hundredwei ght. |f one of those

trailers is overl oaded by one hundredwei ght, that producer
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is not in conpliance with the qualification requirenents and

w il be assessed a pool obligation on the entirety of its

own farm production. Again, at the rate of $1.20 per

hundr edwei ght, that extra pound, in addition to the paynent

required to the producer, result in an assessnent of $60, 000

on all the producer-handler's mlk. This is $6 nmillion per

hundr edwei ght on that nmargi nal pound of mlK.

Anot her way of saving that this is the effective

cost of the 15 hundred and one hundredwei ght to purchase

mlk would be $54.97 per hundredweight. The noney coll ected

fromthis assessment would be paid into the producer's

settl enent fund and the producer-handler would receive

absolutely no benefit fromthe assessnent.

Even if the AMAA permts the Secretary to require

settlenent fund contributions on mlk that i s never

purchased from a producer, the new requl ati ons woul d t ake

mllions of dollars per year from producer-handl er

operations, redistribute the noney to other producers, and

return absolutely no benefit to the producer-handl er

oper ati ons.

Edal een's mlk price to our custoners cannot be

i ncreased to nmake up the substantial cost we would have to

incur if the anendnent were adopted. Qur pool paynents just

cannot be recouped. The assessnment will be a direct

reduction fromthe bottomline. My father, nother, sister
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brothers-in-law, wife and | have invested the tine, capital,

and effort to devel op our business on the | ong-standi ng

policy and requl ati ons of the Departnment.

We also bear the risk of having to nmmintain our

own supply of mlk, largely independent of outside sources.

Edal een Dairy would be destroyed if these unreasonabl e and

unnecessary changes were nade to the order.

Anot her problemwith caps is that what nay be

reasonabl e today may not be reasonable tonorrow. The size

of custoners that we are dealing with is rapidly changing,

and for the dairy to be in business in the future, they wll

have to handl e larger and |l arger units or go out of

busi ness.

Agai n, assune the cap is at 10 nillion pounds and

a handler is at 8 nmllion pounds; he would now be in a

position to have to turn down a sale of 2 and a half mllion

pounds because it would take hi mover the cap, but the

producer-handler will never know if tonorrow he could get a

call froman existing custoner, canceling an order that

would put himin a position to accept that new |l arge

cust oner.

Edal een Dairy is very much a snall business. |t

is a small business because we have | ess than 500 enpl oyees

in the plant. The exhibit by the narket adni ni strator that

categori zes producer-handlers as |l arge enterprises does not
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acknowl edge the fact that producers are on both sides. W

may be a |l arge producer, but we are not a | arge producer-

handl er.

There is a fear -- this fear of producer-handlers

is really unfounded. All that is really being done is that

sone players in the market want to have a bigger share of

the market and they are trying to define sone basis to put

ot hers out of business.

On the part of West Farns Foods, the benefit to

them woul d be double. One, they would get the higher d ass

| sales, they think, because they think they could pick up

sone _of our custoners; second, they know that under current

situations we would have to join West Farns as a producer if

we continue to operate the farm which would nmean we woul d

have to pay for to cover the | osses of their plants and

otherwi se participate in their econom c unit. Until now, we

have chosen not to do so.

There has al so been tal k about a | arge producer -

handl er being created in western Oregon. Al though we are

al ways unhappy with the possibility of a new conpetitor

conming into the marketplace and we worry about whose sal es

it will take, we see no reason to fear a producer-handl er

any nore than we would any other entrant.

That is because we understand producer-handl ers

and we understand their econom cs and do not believe that
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t hey have any advantage that any other plant would not be

able to use. If we are going to fear producer-handl ers, why

don't we fear the Krogers and Saf eways, that are inteqgrated?

Wiy don't we fear the Dean Foods, that have national sal es,

they can use profit fromone plant to reduce the sale price

at _another to gain nmarket share? Wy aren't we worried

about West Farm Foods, that bl ends individual producers 5

and 10 cents on all of their mlk, regardless of class, to

offset | osses at their bottling plant?

Anot her often-repeated phrase in this hearing has

been that producer-handlers do not play by the sane rul es.

This is untrue. Every single producer-handler -- every

singl e producer and every single handler has a right to

becone a producer-handler at any tinme. Their choice is not

to do so -- their choice not to do so is one that they have

made to their best econoni ¢ advant age. Based on the decline

in the nunber of producer-handlers over the years, it is

obvi ous that few have taken the steps to be done, and even

f ewer have succeeded.

Finally, | want to talk about selling mlk to

Al aska. We sell mlk to Alaska in 50,000-pound tankers. W

pasteurize it and sell it to Matanuska Maid Dairy. I1f we

bottled it in cartons and sent it up there, we could stil

be a producer-handler, but if we sell it raw, we | ose.

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2552

The only basis for this is to take away a sale

fromus, but since Alaska is not in a marketing area, the

Secretary should not exercise any authority for pricing that

m | K.

In conclusion, Edaleen Dairy has operated for

decades in the Pacific Northwest w thout causing disorderly

mar keting conditions. W nake good and whol esone products

that are sold at fair prices.

The proposed anendnents shoul d not be adopted.

MB. REED: Thanks, Duane. Your Honor, the

witness would be available for Cross at this point, and I'm

sure there's going to be sone questions; | didn't know if

vou wanted to proceed at this point or take a break.

THE COURT: Let's proceed. Who wants to start

with Cross-Exanination? M. Beshore, vou want to go first?

MR.  BESHORE: Sur e.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. BESHORE: Thank you. Narvin Beshore, for

Dairy Farners of Anerica.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BESHORE:

Q &ood norning, M. Brandsna

A. Good nor ni ng.
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Q You' ve stated early on in your testinony that

you' re opposed to all of the proposals at this hearing. Dd

you nean to include Proposal 4?

A. VWhich is --?

Q VWhich is the proposal alluded to or referred to

by Ms. Deskins this norning, which would prohibit what's

been call ed double dipping in the Arizona order; that is,

prohi bit producers fromhaving nmlk pooled both on the

federal order and on the California state order at the sane

tine.

A. | don't have a position on that as -- because

we're not involved in that order

Q So you would -- vour statenent should then be

corrected to reflect you're not tal ki ng about Proposal

Nunber 47?

A. No, I'll take that back. | believe that we are

in this all together, and I'mgoing to have to be in favor

of that, so --

Q So you do oppose Proposal 4.

A Yes.

Q Because vou're in it with M. Hettinga, who

opposes Proposal 4; is that correct?

A. That woul d have to be correct at this tine.

Q Ckay. Are you also together with Select MIKk

Producers and Continental, M. Yale's other clients in this
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pr oceedi ng?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And what -- could you tell us what their

interest is. By the way, is Select in your nmarket --

A No.

Q -- Select MIk Producers?

A No.

Q Continental MIKk Products, are they in your
mar ket ?

A No.

Q Okay. And what interest do they share with you

in opposing these proposals, to vour know edge?

A. As far as | know, they -- their interests are

that they do not feel that it's right for the Secretary to

make these changes and they feel it takes away rights from

farners to be able to market their own nmlk, and | believe -

- yeah, that's as far as | know.

Q Do you know what narkets they operate in?

A. Just that was nentioned earlier and what |'ve

read about them

Q Is it your understanding that they want to

preserve the options to be |arge producer-handlers in the

mar kets in which they operate?

A. That | do not know.

Q Let me ask you, then, to turn to Edaleen Dairy:
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your position with Edaleen is plant nmanager, | take it.

A. (Nods head.)

Q Can you tell us what your -- duties and

responsibilities are enconpassed as plant nmanager at

Edal een.

A. A lot of the stuff other people don't want to do.

(Laughter.)

Q VWhat's in that category?

(Laughter.)

A. | would say a lot of it has to do with -- sone of

it has to do with sales, sone of it has to do with

distributing the mlk and | ooking over the plant crew and

witing the orders for everyday production and those ki nd of

t hi ngs.

Q How nmany enpl oyees does Edal een Dairy have?

A. Like the -- the whol e business?

A. About 70.

Q And how many of those are at the farmlevel and
how many of themin the plant operation?

A. | think it's about 60 percent are farm and --
well, it's hard to -- | nmean, we had a little store there

too, so | don't know --

Q But can you just break it down for us, the 70

enpl oyees?
A. 70 people, | would say probably 10, 12 people in
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the plant, and then we've got 10, 12 route people, office

staff of 3, and probably about 40 on the farm

Q How many days a week do you run vour plant?

A. 6 days a week.

Q VWhat products do you process at your plant? Do

vou have just one plant or do vou have nore than one?

A. Just one plant. W process fluid mlk and

buttermilk and ice cream chocolate mlk, sone fruit juices,

things like that.

Q Okay, let's take those products. Fluid mlKk.

VWhat do you -- do vou produce the full range of fluid mlk

products, whole nilk, 2 percent, 1 percent?

A. Yeah, whole mlk, 2 percent, 1 percent, skim

hal f -and-hal f, whip cream

Q What type of containers?

A. Anywhere fromhalf-points to 200-gallon totes.

Q And everything in between?

A. Yeah. | nmean, pints, quarters, half-gallons,

gal |l ons, dispenser bags, for restaurant use, that type of

t hi ng.

Q Do you use plastic containers or cardboard, or a

conbi nati on?

A. Pl astic for the gallons and then cardboard for

hal f-gallons, quarts, pints, half-pints.

Q Can you tell us anything about your product m x
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volunme mix, in fluid mlk, what portion is gallons versus

the smaller quantities?

A. | would say that's proprietary.

Q When you're running -- what's the -- you run

6 days a week. Do you bottle 6 days a week?

A. Yes, we do.

Q How many shifts?

A. Two, two and a half, right in there. W start at

-- probably -- we start at 2 o'clock in the norning, and the

last guy'll |eave, depending on what day it is, sonetines as

|late as midnight and sonetines 8 o'clock in the evening.

Q Wul d vou say vour plant's essentially running at

nearly full capacity?

A. Pretty close, just -- when you throw the clean-up
in and everything, it's -- not nuch room
Q I's vour ice creamproduction at the sane plant?

A. Yes, it is.

Q Do vou produce ice cream 6 days a week al so?

A. Not during the winter. 5 days a week. If we

were in Phoenix we would do it all the tine. But 5 days a

week. And then during the summer, we, vou know, of course

increase it to 6 days a week.

Q What's the mix of fluid milk products versus
Class Il products, such as ice cream at the plant?
A. |'d have to say that's proprietary.
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Q How many days do you run vour fruit juices?
A. During the summer -- they're pretty snmall
batches. During the summer we'll do it nmaybe 1 day a week,

and that's a couple thousand gallons; and during the w nter,

once every 2 or 3 weeks.

Q You say you have a store. You sell your mlk

products, ice cream at vyour store?

A Uh- huh.

Q Is that on -- at the farm at the plant, or at
a --

A The processing plant, yeah.

Q Are the farm and processing plant in the sane

|l ocation, or can vou tell us a little bit about that.

A. They' re separ at ed.

Q How far apart are they?
A. A couple mles.
Q And vou are -- you're located in, what, the

northern part of the state of \Washi ngton?

A. Yeah, quite northern.

How far fromthe Canadi an border?

A. Amle.
Q Par don?
A. Amle.
Q Amle.
A. Yeah.
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Q What's yvour average nonthly volunme of fluid mlk

product s?
A. That's proprietary.

How many cows do vou have at the dairy?

A. Al so.

Q Al so?

A. Confidential .

Q Do you know your average production per cow?

A. Yeah, but it's also confidential.

Q Do you sell -- besides your own -- your custoners

for your processed fluid mlk products and Matanuska Mi d,

whi ch you' ve referred to, do you have any other sal es of

bul kK m | k?

A. G her than like to West Farm Foods or to anything

like that?
Q ['mjust asking --
A. | nean --
Q -- are there any other sales?
A. There is --
Q To _anyone.
A. There is sone sales, | nean to like West Farm or

sonething like that.

Q Okay. Do you sell on a reqular basis to Wst

Far m Foods?

A. No, we don't.
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Q You don't have sales to themevery nonth, then.

A. No, we do not.

Q Are they seasonal, nostly?

A. Yeah. It's hard to tell. | nmean we're at --
nean, |'mat the nercy, | quess, of cows fluctuating up and

down, cows go up and then, vou know, we probably would have

sone, but when the cows are down | wish | could take the

mlk back again, so |l'mat the nercy of the cows going up

and down, you're at the mercy of accounts calling and

sayi ng, you know, "all the grocery stores have specials on

right nowso | don't need two trailers this week" and then

you're stuck with extra mlk. So things like that, when

t hat kind of stuff happens.

Q Ckay. And if | understand your testinony

correctly, that happens, but it doesn't happen frequently,

on _a reqular basis.

A. It depends on narket conditions, it's a lot

dependent on that.

Q But you don't sell to West Farmreqularly every

nont h; correct?

A. No, not currently.

Q Is there any other bulk custoner that vou sell to

on a reqular basis every nonth?

A No.

Q Do vou sell surplus creamreqularly?
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A No.

Q Do you ever sell surplus creanf

A Haven't for a few years.

Q It's used in your own creaners or ice cream

pr oducti on?

A. Yeah. Yeah.

Q | take it, then, there are nonths that go by when

you sell no products, no bulk mlk, to anyone as surplus

di sposal from your operation

A That is true, yeah, when -- like during the fal
and wintertinme, generally, when the cows -- cows don't give
as much and we -- we don't have -- we'll go nonths, yes.

Q You referred to -- correct me if | get the
nunbers wong -- 10 or 11 or 12, maybe, route enpl oyees?

A. Yeah.

Q Do you have your own -- do you do distribution of

your products through your own routes?

A. Mostly, veah. What we -- we have routes within

our own county, which is Whatcom County, and then outside of

VWhat com County we nore or | ess depend on distributors,

because it gets too expensive, trying to deliver to all the

stores outside of that.

Q What portion of vyour sa

es are distributed within

What com County, on your routes?

A. |'d have to say it's probably confidenti al
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Q How many distributors do vou sell to reqularly?
A. That's confidential as well.
Q Do any of your own enpl oyees deliver fluid mlk

products outside Whatcom County?

A. Yes, they do.

Q What's the furthest you go with products on your

own routes?

A. The furthest we go is QA ynpia.

Q And how far is that fromyour plant?

A. Oh, 140 niles, maybe.

Q VWhat's the furthest distance, that you're aware

of , that your distributors go with your products?

A. | honestly don't know (chuckling).

Q What's the furthest you know of ?

A. Well, | can only, you know, quess what the
A ynpi a people do, and that wuld be to the -- southern
Washi ngton, | qguess.

Q When yvou say "the O ynpia people" --

A. The A ynpia distributor.

Q Ckay, that's the nane of a distributing conpany

that vou sell to.

A. No. It's just the --

A distributor who's fromd ynpi a.

Q
A. Yes. Yeah.
Q

Ckay. Are any of -- what retail -- do you do any
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honme delivery?

A No.

Q VWhat type of retail outlets are your products

sold in primarily?

A. Primarily, | would have to say c-stores --
Q Conveni ence stores?
A. Yeah, conveni ence stores. And to restaurants.

|'mtryving to think if we're in any grocery stores and I'm

not sure that we are. And then to sone nmanufacturing

conpanies. So that's --

Q What are your -- what type of sales do you have

t o manuf acturi ng conpani es, bul k, bul k sal es?

A. The di spenser bags that maybe they use for m xes

for soups and stuff like that.

Q Ckay. In the conveni ence stores to which vou

distribute fluid milk products, is Edal een the sole supplier

of fluid mlk products in those stores?

A. Sonetines we are, sonetines we aren't, | qguess.

| guess it depends on the distributor, if he wants our full

line of product or not. So | quess -- yeah, it's up to the

distributor. Sone of our distributors take our full line of

products and sone of themdon't, sone of themjust take

di spensers and gallons, and other ones take our full line,

SO --

Q Ckay. Now, when you talk -- when vou refer to
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sone of your distributors, do you nean your own enpl oyees or

third-party distributors --

A. Third-party.

Q How about your own -- vyour own enpl oyees, | take

it, sell to convenience stores, distribute your mlk to

conveni ence stores in Watcom County.

A. Yeah. They're enployed by us. They don't have

their own routes, they're --

Q Ri ght .
A. Yeah.
Q Ckay. Now, to yvour know edge, those custoners

that are direct custoners of your dairy, those conveni ence

stores, do they purchase fluid mlk products from other

dairies as well?

A. None that | can think of.

Q Do vour distributors -- now, |'mtalking about
i ndependent. | ndependent distributors to whom you sel
product, | think vou've indicated that they nmay handl e

product fromother dairies as well.

A Yes.

Q What ot her dairies mght they also handl e

products fronf

A. Any other dairies in our federal order. | nean,

Q W 1 cox perhaps?
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A. Wlcox, Smth, West Farm | nean -- their

choi ce.

Q Do the distributors, the independent distributors

to whom vou sell product, do they purchase the product at

your dock, at your plant?

A. One snall one does, and the rest of themwe

deliver to.

Q Ckay, so vou deliver, what, trailer-loads of mlk

products fromyour plant to a distributor's distribution

center?
A Uh- huh.

THE COURT: You've got to -- | know what you're
saying, but when you say -- "uh-huh" doesn't cone across too
well.

THE WTNESS: All right.

A. Yes, we do.

Q (By M. Beshore) Thank you. Do you have a fleet

of trucks of your own?

A. Yes, we do.

Q How many delivery trucks do you have, of what
Sizes?

A. Oh, we got anything fromsmall cube vans, that

have a little ranp out of the back, to a 48-foot trailer.

W've got a 48-foot trailer and a 53-foot trailer, and the

rest of themnostly are like 45-foot normal delivery
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trailers.
Q Did | understand you to say previously that
Adynpia -- you would deliver products fromyour plant to a

distributor in dynpia?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q VWhat ot her points outside Whatcom County do vyou

deliver products to distributors?

A. Points in between us and dynpia, points in

between M. Vernon, which is an hour drive away, to d ynpi a,

which is 3 hours away, just -- anywhere in between there.

Q Do you set the products at -- which vou sell, the

whol esale price to distributors? That is, are you invol ved

in that price setting?

A Yes, | am

Q Do vou have a -- vyou know, a price schedul e that

you circulate, publish to distributors if they're interested

in handling your product?

A. That -- no, | would say not, just -- it's about

i mpossible for us to solicit nore busi ness when you can't

really take on nore business, so | don't -- you know, |I'm

not out there being -- I|'mnot out there on the streets,

what vou would say, with price lists and things like that.

Q Okay. Well, you're running, basically, at ful
capacity --
A. Yeah.
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Q -- so you're not really out to get new business;
right?

A. Yeah. And then -- | nean even new business is so
involved for us that -- | nean, by the tine we build a barn,

add cows, and everything like that, we've just got to be so

sure of that business, and then -- | think we're alittle

gun-shy, with what we did with Starbucks, and the ranping up

and then | osing that business, that -- yeah, we nake doubly
sure now, | quess, if you can.
Q Ckay. But setting aside soliciting new business,

do you have a published price list that your distributors

know i n advance what their -- what the price for the

products is going to be?

A. They know what their price is going to be.

Do you change it nonthly?

That's confidential.

No, it has not.

How often have you changed it in the |ast year?

Q
A
Q Has it been the sane for the |ast year?
A
Q
A

That's confidential as well.

Q VWhen vou change prices -- what | eads vou to

change prices when you do?

A. Oh, anywhere fromour costs that we are having at

the tine, perhaps, whether it's feed costs or increased

costs in packaging, to the Cass | price, to narket
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conditions out there, so --

Q Now, when you say the Cass | price, you're
tal king about -- what are you referring to there?

A. The published Cdass | price for our marketing
or der.

Q That is the mninumdass | price that your

conpetitors nust pay for fluid mlKk --

A Uh- huh.

-- for dass | use; correct?

A Uh- huh.

Q Ckay. And when it --

A. | _nean yes.

Q So with reference to the Class | price, when your

conpetitor's mninmumprice goes up, you consider raising

your prices, then, as well, | assune.

A. Yeah, sonetinmes we do, sonetines it finally

brings it to where we are, if the price has been in the

gutter, like it has been for the |l ast couple of vyears.

Q And when the mninmumprice under the federa

orders conmes down, then your prices cone under pressure as

well, do they not?
A. Uh- huh. Yes, | nean vyes, they do.
THE W TNESS: |'lIl stop doing that.

THE COURT: Do vour best.

(Laughter.)
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Q (By M. Beshore) Let ne draw your attention

M. Brandsma, to the first table, the "Cost of Production"

i nformati on that vyou've attached to Exhibit 52. It's the

first page after your -- it would be page 13, although it's

not nunbered, the first page after your witten -- the

witten statenent you read. Do vou have that?

A Yes.

Q Did you conpile this?

A. No, | did not. | did make notice of it when |

saw it on the internet.

Q VWhat did vou see on the internet, the ERS costs?

A. Yes, | did.

Q Did vou see the full series of ERS data on the

i nternet?

A. Yes, | did.

Q So you noted that, as has been referred to in

sone earlier testinony, ERS breaks out its cost-of-

production figures by the size of the farns.

A. Uh- huh. Yes.

Q Okay. Now, did you show the applicable cost for

the size farmthat Edal een Dairy has on your exhibit?

A No.

You did not.

Q
A, ( Shakes head.)
Q

WAs there any reason for that? Wuldn't that be
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the right nunber to use?

A. |'mnot aware of exactly what nunmber this was,

but it -- the nunbers that were used were the total costs

for produci ng hundredweight in California or in |daho.

Q If one was to use ERS data for -- to conpare

bl end price, for instance, for purposes of analyzing vour

- you know, the econonics of vour producer-handl er

operation, wouldn't it be nbst accurate to use the ERS

information for facilities with dairy operations with over

500 cows?

A. Yes, and |I'm not aware that these nunbers were

used or not used with 500 cows.

Q kay, so you're not sure which nunbers were
used --

A Uh- huh.

Q -- on your exhibit, then.

A. Yes.

Q It would make a difference, though, wouldn't it?

A Generally it does, just like it makes a
difference if produce -- mlk plants can bottle 10 mllion

20 mllion pounds of mlk per nonth, or per weeks, and this

makes a difference as well.

Q Ckay. So vou had know edge that at the farm

| evel you've got sonme econonies of scale with a herd that's

producing nore than 3 mllion pounds of nilk a nonth, you
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agree you're producing nore than 3 mllion pounds of mlk a

nont h; correct?

A Yes.

Q So you've got sone econonies of scale, sone

efficiencies of operation, at the production |evel, that

pool producers with Iess -- producing less than 3 nmillion

pounds a nonth don't have; correct?

A. That's our choice. Yes.

Q Ckay. It's their choice to produce |ess than

3 mllion pounds per nonth; correct?

A. It is.

Q And by vou choosing to do that, your cost of nmilk

production per unit has gone down, conpared to them

correct?
A. It depends, | -- it depends. | can't say that
for sure. | nean, |1've got friends that mlk 2,000 cows

that are less efficient than friends that mlk 500 cows, so

-- | nean, that's a hard statenent for ne to nake.

Q Okay. Are you -- vou do agree, do you not, that

as a general matter, given the sane managenent efficiency,

there are econonmics of scale in production of mlk on a

dairy farn? |f you apply the sane managenent principles,

t he sane managenent practices, to a 3,000-cow herd as to a

300-cow herd, vour cost of production per hundredwei ght's

going to be less on the 3,000-cow herd, would it not?
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A. Sonetines it is, sonetines it isn't. | ' m not

going to go there, because if a 300-cow herd has all --

evervthing paid for and has no debt, then vou're talking

different -- vou're talking a different story.
Q Do vou have -- what's vour debt |evel at Edal een
Dai ry?

A. That's confidential (chuckling).

Q Do vou know your capital invested, whether it's

debt or equity, per cow at Edaleen Dairy? Just on the

production side, not the plant side.

A. | don't, off the top of ny head, no.

Q Now, let's talk about the plant side a little

bit. You're aware, as the nmarket adm ni strator has

testified this norning that -- well, first of all, | think

you just told ne that there are econonies of scale in plant

operations. Correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And basically that means that the |arger

you are, all other things being equal, your cost-per-unit of

producti on may be | ess.

A. You surely hope so.

Q Ckay. Now, vou're aware, then, of course, as

M. Mkrantz testified this norning, that Edaleen is |arger

t han a nunber of fully-requlated pool plants in Oder 1317?

124, 1'm sorry.
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A | was not here during his testinony.

Q You were not?

A | was not.

Q Ckay. Well, let me -- just assune with ne for a

nonent that information in the record, provided by t

he

mar ket adni ni strator, shows that there are a nunber

of

fully-requl ated pool plants under O der 124 that are snaller

than the average size of Smith, Edaleen, and Mallorie, which
has al so been provided, for the record.

A Conbi ned or separately?

Q Average, the average of the three of them GCkay?
There are plants that are smaller than the average. Okay?

A. Ckay.

Q Now, you would have a conpetitive advantage

versus them would you not, in econom es of operation?

A. | wouldn't think so.

No?

Q
A, ( Shakes head.)
Q

Didn't you just tell ne that the |l arger the

pl ant, you've got econonies of scale?

A. Well, when they're purchasing mlk for 11

and a

half dollars a hundredweight at dass I, and | -- |

can't

purchase nilk at that price, | think the econonies of scale

change there.

Q How does that affect the econonies of sca

ing the
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pl ant operation?

You nean if -- go ahead.

| was trying to just focus on the plant side.

Ckay.

o > O P

Ckay? Because you had nade the contention, the

argunent, in your testinony and in response to sone

questions that, yvou know, bigger handlers are -- can be nore

cost-efficient in their econonm es of scale.

A. Ckay.

Q Correct?

A Yes.

Q So if you're bigger than fully-regulated -- sone

fully-requl ated pool handlers, you would have a conpetitive

advantage in terns of cost of plant operation, would you

not ?

A. If -- are all these pool handlers, are they
Separate -- | -- separate plants, are they part of co-ops,
are they -- what are they? | nean are they -- are they a

separate stand-al one plant or are they --

Q Does that nake a difference in terns of what the

pl ant costs are?

A. VWll, veah. | nean, if vou're part of --
Q It does?
A. If vyou're part of a co-op and you've got a plant

here and a plant here and a plant here, your production --
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or _your buying power is great.

Q How does that affect -- how does that make any

difference in terns of plant operation itself?

A. VWhat vou purchase product, what you purchase

i ngredi ents.

Q So you're assunming --

A. -- if you're able to blownold. | nean, there's
just -- there's a lot of things that play into that. |
nean, there is a plant and -- that's bigger than we are, and
we buy blow nolded jugs fromthem | nean, that's --

t here' s advantages they can have.

Q And a smaller fully-requl ated plant has got the

sane chall enge that you have in purchasi ng bl ow nol ded j ugs

for its production, does it not?

A. Well, | quess -- tell nme -- tell nme who the
plants are, | nean -- | can tell you then.

Q | don't know the nanmes of the plants --

A. Well, thenl -- 1 nean, | can't --

Q Do you know the -- okay. Do you know the -- we
can go down the handler list, | guess. Do you know the

operations of all the fully-regul ated pool plants in your

order?
A. Sonme of them | know about, sone of them | don't.
Q Ckay. And do you know the -- the ones that are

-- the three that have less than 4 nillion pounds per nonth?
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A. Wul dn't have a cl ue.

Q Ckay. Do vou know the nine that have from4 to

10 mllion pounds per nonth?

A. | don't keep track.

Q You just told nme that you know about the plants

in the order.

A | said one plant that we buy milk from--

Q That's the only one you know --

A -- that we buy bottles from

Q Ckay. |Is that the only one you know anythi ng
about ?

A. Alittle bit about, vyeah.

THE COURT: |I'mwondering if it's getting to be

that tine, for lunch that is. It's just about 12:15. 1'm

not exactly sure what the lunch facilities are around here,

so I'Il give us an hour and a quarter and say we'll cone
back at 1:30. W'IlIl be resum ng M. Brandsma's
Cross- Exani nation, and then | guess we'll be hearing from

M. Hettinga after that. Of the record.

(Of the record at 12:15 p.m and reconvened at 1:30 p.m)

THE COURT: On the record. M. Brandsma is still

on the stand, and M. Beshore still has the floor for Cross-

Exam nati on.

MR. BESHORE: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor.

Q (By M. Beshore) M. Brandsma, | want to ask vyou
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first a couple of questions about your sales to Matanuska

Mai d Dairy.

Do vou have -- do vou sell themmnmlk like every

%
D
~
N

A. No, we don't.

Q Ckay. Do vou have sal es every nonth?
A. That, as | said before, tends to go up and down
with the cows and how their production is and if | |ose

sales or gain sales.

Q W<th your cows in your production
A. Uh- huh.
Q So basically do vour sales to Matanuska Maid then

vary with the availability of mlk from Edal een Dairy to be

supplied to Matanuska Mii d?

A. A nunber of things, | nean it even bases on if

they need mlk, | nean they've turned ne down many, nany,

many, nmany tines, so it's just a variety of things | nean

that can play into the picture there.

Q Are vour sales, sales to Matanuska Maid, of

pasteuri zed bulk mlk greater than the Cass | price in the

order?
A. That's confidential.
Q Do vou know how vyour sales prices conpare to

Mat anuska's ot her suppliers'?

A. No, | don't.
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Q Do vou know how your vol unes conpare to

Mat anuska's ot her suppliers'?

A. | don't know.

Q Ckay. You're aware that they're supplied by

Smith as well, you heard that testinony in the hearing?
A If -- yeah. That they are supplied by Snmith as
wel | 2
Q Yes
A Yes

Ckay. And vou're aware that they're also

supplied by West Farm Foods?

A Yes.

Q Do you know if -- how the relationship of vour

sales to Smth are handl ed, Mt anuska Mi d?

A Qur sales to Smth?
Q No. I'msorry, | msspoke.
A Ckay.

Q Do they buy fromSnith first and then Edal een, or

Edal een first and then Smth, do you have any idea?

A. | don't know what he does, actually.

Q Ckay. Are vour sales on the basis that when vou

have sales [sic.] available you call him or does he call

you with requl ar orders?

A. It's been both, in the past.

Q Have you -- do you sell to them nore during the
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winter than you do in the spring?

A. Once again, it goes against what | said before, |

mean up and downs in production and sales, so it's really

hard for ne -- | nean, if | | ook back over various vears,

there's strong areas sone nonths and then the next vyear it's

none those nonths but in different nonths it's nore.

Q Now, et ne -- how |l ong have you been selling

bulk mlk up to Al aska?

A. Ei ght years?

Q Have your sal es gone up or down during that

period of tine? Are they greater now than they were eight

years ago?

A. | can't really recall. | nean, it's hard for ne

to keep track of the yvears and how nuch it goes up and down.

Q Does anyone at Edal een keep track of that other
t han you?

A No.

Q That would be your nmain area? Are you the main

person that's responsi ble for that account?

A. Yeah.
Q Now, vou've nade the statenent in your testinony
that -- it's on the bottomof Page 8 of 12, "There's little

correl ation between the price for which Edaleen sells its

mlk and the price on the store shelf." Have you nade a --

you know, done a study of that?
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A. No.
Q What's the basis for your statenent?
A. The basis of the statenent woul d probably be the

there's been sonme testinony here that we undercut the

mar ket, and that would be the basis of that.

Q VWhat does whet her you undercut the nmarket or not

have to do with the correlati on between your price and the

price on the store shelf?

A. That people would say our price is cheaper on the

store shelf.

Q You don't price the milk on the store shelf, do

you, or do you?

A. No, | do not.

Q If vou don't set that price and you haven't nade

any study, how can you say that there's little correlation

bet ween vour sales price and the price on the store shelf?

A. Because a |l ot of our accounts use nilk as a | oss

| eader [ phonetic].

Q The conveni ence stores that you sell to?

A Uh- huh.

Q Do they sell it for less than you sell it to them
for?

A | don't -- sonetines they mght, sonetines they
don't. It's -- it's up to them

Q | understand it's up to them but have you
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observed occasi ons when they've sold it for Iess than you' ve

sold themfor?

A. Yes, | have.
Q Is that routine?
A. | think it depends on circunstances, what they're

-- what they're trying to do. For us, being along the

border, a lot of the -- alot of the c-stores along the

border try to draw in Canadians, and if they do a really --

take a discount on their nmilk, then they get the Canadi ans

in to buy their gas.

Q What's the current going price for a gallon of

m | k out of conveni ence stores in Whatcom County?

A Hmm
Q Let's talk 2 percent gallon
A. | think nost of the stores we deliver to in

VWhat com County are around 2.19, 2.29.

Q For 2 percent whole mlk?

A. For 2 percent. And then like alot -- for a lot

of places, | nean -- and then they struggle with that

because they feel their conpetition is Wal-Mart and then

Val -Mart's always got it at a dollar ninety-nine, so it's--

(Pause.)
Q Do you -- what | abels do you sell your fluid mlk

pr oducts under?

A. That's confidential.
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Q The | abels? Aren't they -- | nean they're nmade

available to the public; right?

A. Well, then ook it up. | just said it was

confidential.

Q Wll, |'mwondering what you nean by confidentia

when they're on the store shelves and anybody can read them

A. VWll, then read it. | nmean --

Q Well, we're not in the store.

THE WTNESS: |If | say if it's confidential

can't it be confidential?

THE COURT: | can't order you to answer

questions. | believe if you say sonething is proprietary,

don't think I have the authority to order you, but, vou

know, it's a close call. |If sonething' s obviously to the

public and yvou don't want to tell what it is, then there's

not nmuch | can do about it, other than hope -- let the
Secretary decide what he wants to do with it -- she wants to
do with it.

Q (By M. Beshore) You don't want to tell us what

your labels are. You're not saying that they're secret;

right?
A. No.
Q Do vou have nore than one | abel ?
A Yes.
Q Do vou package nmil k products under |abels of a
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buyer ?
A. Like a --
Q A store --
A No.
Q -- that you're selling to.
A No.

Q Do any other fluid mlk plants package fluid mlKk

products with the sane | abel that you use on sone of vour

product s?
A. Maybe one, and | don't even know if they do it
anynore. | nmean, a few years ago they did, but |'mnot sure

if they do anynobre or not.

Q WAs that a store or a distributor --

A. That was a distributor.

Q The distributor in Qynpia, for instance, do you

supply themwi th products under their | abel ?

A Yes.

Q Do they buy products with their |abel from other

pl ants al so?

A. They used to, but that plant no | onger wants to

give thema private |abel.

Q And are there other distributors that you supply

themwith products under their | abel?

A. Yes, there is.

Q How nany?
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A. |'mjust going to say it's confidential.

Q Do vou know if any of those distributors also

acquire fluid mlk products under the sane | abel from other

pl ants besi des Edal een?

A. No, they don't.

Q They do not.

A. (Shakes head.)

Q Ckay. Do vou have agreenents with themthat they

will supply only products purchased from Edal een?

A. Can you repeat that?

Q Yeah. The distributors that you know do not

acquire products -- that you've said did not acquire their

| abel ed products fromother sources, is that by virtue of an

agreenent that you have with themthat they will only

pur chase those products fromyou?

A. That they only purchase --

Q -- fluid mlk products under their |abel from
you.

A No.

Q You' ve indicated that you're presently operating

your plant at basically full capacity. How long has that

been the case?

A. Si nce 1999.

Q Now, during that period of tine, when you're

operating at full capacity, there's no -- you've not been -
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- | think you testified to this. You're not out soliciting

busi ness because you can't handle any:; right?

A. Yeah, just for the expenses that it takes.

Q Are vou -- so there's really no cost to Edal een

in foregone business by virtue of vour producer-handl er

status, it's just a matter of your plant capacity?

A. | wouldn't say that. If | -- I'mbasically

saying no to sales for a nunber of reasons, and that would

be farm and plant capacity, and I think if we | ose an

account, I'mnot going to go get that account that has

fulfilled their needs el sewhere.

Q You're not going to go get it back, try to get it

back.

A No.

Q Wiy wouldn't vou try to get it back?

A. Well, vou're going to try to get it back, but it

doesn't generally set well with people when they want mlKk -

- or if they want anything and you tell them no. It's a

hard sale to make again.

Q You nean if you refuse to supply sonebody because

you don't have the supply --

A Uh- huh.

Q -- if you turn down a sale because you can't
provi de --

A Uh- huh.
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Q And -- what are you saying, that you can't -- you

can't supply themin the future if you do have supply?

A. Oh, vou tell them"nmaybe in the future," but they

-- they don't understand the process of a PD a ot of the

tines, that we're not allowed to buy nmlk from other people

and everything, so -- | nmean, it's just a hard one to go
back to.

Q But if you were part of the pool you coul d;
right?

A. If we were part of the pool --

Q R ght.

A. -- yeah, then we could.

Q Right. And that would be one of the benefits of

being a pool handler: vou wouldn't have --

A Vell --

Q -- the limt on -- the linmt -- there'd be no

i npact on your price, of purchasing suppl enental supplies

fromother sources than your own farni correct?

A Wll, then we'd have to pay the cost of being in
t he pool.

Q R ght.

A. Which -- you'd have pool costs, but you'd have
the countervailing -- one of the benefits would be that you

could service additional accounts by acquiring suppl enental

supplies fromother farns.
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A. Yes and no, | quess. The hard part for ne is,

you know, we're allowed to buy that 150, 000 pounds of nmilk

but West Farns will never sell it to us, so then we have to

buy it out of eastern O egon. So, vou know, if they're not

willing to sell us milk, it's kind of hard for ne to say |

can just get mlk fromanother farm

Q If vou were a producer-handler you could enter

into a contract with another farmin Wiatcom County, to have

them supply you.

A | have to go through the co-op.

Q Well, they're not indentured to the co-operative,
are they?

A. Yes.

They have contracts but they --

A Yes, they do.

Q They can term nate those contracts, can they not?
A None of them seemtoo willing to do that.

Q Well, they'd need to have another market before

they'd do that, wouldn't they?

A. They could, but their contracts are with Darigold

and -- | don't know a | ot about the whole -- who buys nilk

fromwho and how that goes, but |I'mnot aware of anybody

right nowthat is buying mlk directly from producers

wi t hout goi ng through the co-op.

Q Real | y.
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A. Yeah.

Q kay. Let ne ask you this, you've raised -- nade
sonme comments in your testinony about Darigold being -- or
West Farm Foods, |'msorry -- being able to blend 5 or 10
cents off of their producers, for |losses at the bottling
plant. You recall that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So basically what you're talking about
there is that the cooperative, when it has |losses at -- or
reduced earnings at its bottling plant, it pays its nenbers
less for mlk fromtheir farm correct?

A. Yes.

Q And when you have reduced profitability, reduced

revenues, in your fluid mlk plant, you have |l ess to pass

back to the bottomline at your farm isn't that correct?

A. Well, it's all considered one, so -- you know, |
nmean - -

Q Well, isn't the cut-off the same -- sane thing?

A. Well, we don't have the --

Q It's nultiple producers but --

A. Yes.

Q -- they're either -- if the co-op's profitable,
they -- the farnms receive nore noney, and if it's not
profitable, they receive less noney. 1Isn't that correct?

A VWll, we'renot -- | think -- if we purchase
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mlk, | don't think we're going to get 5, 10 cents off the

price of the mlk we purchase.

Q Well, what | was asking you was if -- isn't the

allocation of profits and losses fromthe plant to the farm

in the cooperative the sane as fromthe plant to the farmin

t he producer-handl er?

A. | don't know how t hey work.

Q In any event, the way you work is, if it's --

it's one entity, if you make noney at the farmlevel it

cones to your bottomline, if you nmake noney at the plant

level it cones to your bottomline, if vou |lose at either

pl ace, that cones to your bottomline also.

A. Yeah.

MR. BESHORE: Thank yvou. | have no further

questi ons.
THE COURT: M. English, you have sone questions?

MR. ENG.I SH: Yes, Your Honor. Charles English,

for Dean Foods and Shanr ock Foods.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Afternoon, sir
A. Good afternoon.
Q | just have a few gqguestions, | hope. On Page 3

of vour prepared testinony, near the bottom you have a

statenent that says: "In the |l ast several years, plants who
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are requl ated have only had to pay the dass | price for

their mlk."

Are you aware -- and perhaps you're not, since

you are not a reqgqulated handler -- that requl ated handl ers

routi nely pay over-order premuns in your narketplace?

A Not awar e.

Q So you don't know whether routinely over the | ast

nunber of vyears that federal order handl ers have been payi ng

upwar ds of 60 cents a hundredweight for their dass | mlKk.

A. And that is because --

Q -- _as an over-order prem um

A An "over-order premum" explain it to ne.

Q Well, I'"'masking you. |'mnot the one doing the

testifving. So |'m asking whether you know whet her over --

whet her processors who are requl ated have to pay nore for

their mlk than the nmininumprice obligation fromthe

f ederal order.

A. | am not aware of that.

Q And if that occurs, and if that is in the record,

then to the extent that occurs, vour statenent does not take

that in consideration; correct?

A. That is correct.

Q Simlarly, on Page 5, the short paragraph at

about the mddl e, maybe just below the niddle, vou have a

statenent that "In fact the cost-of-production squeeze has
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been so great in recent years that," quote, "'we feel that

handl ers payi ng mnimum prices have had a cost advant age

over producer-handlers.'" Now, that statenent is true, sir,

in light of sone of what | just said, only if the handl ers'

raw mlk costs are actually bel ow vour costs of production;

correct?

A. Say that again.

Q The statenent that you nake there, that you fee

t hat handl ers paying mni mum prices have had a cost

advant age over producer-handlers, is only true if those

handl ers' raw mlk costs are actually bel ow your raw -- your

costs of production.

(Pause.)
A. So that if -- | just want to get this straight,

okay?
Q (Nods head.)

A. You're saving that when the Class | priceis

11.50 and our cost of production is higher than that, then

handl ers have an advant age.

Q No, actually, it's what you're saying, but |'m

also trying to add --

A. No, no. I'mtryingto -- I'mtrying to get

straight in ny mnd what you are trying to say to ne.

Q Let's try to conbine the two concepts. I f the

Class | price is $14.00 and there's a 60-cent over-order
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premum - -
A. If there is.
Q -- and therefore the cost is 14.60, if vyour cost

of production is lower than that 14.60, the statenment you

make here isn't true; correct?

A Is not true?

Q Is not true. |If your cost of production is |ess

than that 14.60, then vour statenent is not correct.

A. This statenent does not have to do with every
si tuati on.
Q Fine. So let's talk about costs of production

for a nonent. The costs of production, the unnunbered page

following Page 12 of 12 of your statenent, these are not

your costs of production; correct?

A. Are we on -- I'msorry. Ckay, | gotcha. I

flipped too many tables. Yes.

MR. ENGISH And, Your Honor, |'mnot sure

whet her these were included as part of the exhibit when you

admtted it.
THE COURT: Well, | didn't know they were there
when | admitted it. | thought it was the witten statenent.

| admitted Exhibit 52, and this was all stapled together,

and, you know, if there's --

MR. ENGISH | may have sone guestions about

that and - -
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THE COURT: If there's questions on the

attachnents to the witten testinony and whether they should

be admtted, we can hear them before the witness is done.

MR. YALE: W're going to nove that these

exhibits -- if you wish to renunber them separate nunbers,

that's fine.

THE COURT: | think that your co-counsel noved

t he whol e package that was stapled together into evidence,

but it was characterized as witten testi nony when she did

it, she said, Here's his witten testinony, |'d nove it into

evi dence, so --

MR. ENGISH And that was what |'d understood,

and then | nmissed the boat and | --

THE COURT: So with these attachnents, we can

di scuss whether they should be admtted as well. At this

point I'd just as soon have hi mquestion himand then at the

end of his testinobny ['Il nmake a ruling.

MR. YALE: That's fine. Just as long as you know

that we're noving this to be admtted as well.

THE COURT: | truly understand that.

MR. ENG.ISH  Just so vou know that at the end of

it 1'mgoing to object to at | east a couple things, but be

that as it may.

Q (By M. English) You now know what we're

referring to --
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A. Yes.

Q -- M. Brandsma, there's sone pages after your
st at enent .

A Yes.

Q And the very first one after the statenent, an

unnunber ed page, has two tables, characterized as "Cost of

Production - Order 131" and a snaller chart, "Cost of

Production - Order 124." Do you see that docunent?
A Yes.
Q And ny question is: These are not your costs of

production; correct?

A. No, they are not.

Q Now, do you know how ERS conpil es the data that

you have listed here?

A. Just fromwhat |'ve seen on their website.

Q And do you know, based upon what vyou've seen at

vour website, that ERS does not include the value of cull

cows as part of its ERS cost-of-production table?

A. No, | did not know that.

Q Do vou know that ERS does not include the val ue

of the sale of veal calves as part of their cost-of-

pr oducti on data?

A. No, | do not know that.

Q Do vou know that ERS does not include, in the

cost-of -production data listed on this page, any other
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governnent paynments received, such as, but not linmted to,

M LC?
A. No, | did not know that.

MR. ENGISH. | think, Your Honor, since they

haven't -- | quess they've been noved. |'m going to object

to the portions, at least for ny part, the portions of this

docunent here.

At the end there's an article from sonething

call ed "The Puget Sound Busi ness Journal," Novenber 23rd,

1998, that purports to nmake statenents from sone investnent

banker | have never heard of, about ny client, Dean Foods,

and | would object to the extent that any of that is to the

truth of the assertion regardi ng Dean Foods, especially

given the fact that any of the statenents nade about Dean

Foods in this are about what we call Legacy Dean, a non-

exi stent conpany, and now what we call New Dean, and | wil|

make that ny representation, that it be refers to a conpany

call ed Chi cago-based Dean Foods. There is no Chi cago-based

Dean Foods in 2004.

So therefore | would object to the paragraphs

respecting Dean Foods. Frankly, | think all the materials

init, you know, tend to be hearsay. | under stand what vyou

said earlier, but especially as to Dean Foods, the

references are sinply incorrect, referencing a different

conpany.
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THE COURT: And M. Beshore has an objection

also, and then I'll hear you, M. Yale.

MR. BESHORE: Yes, | want to join the objection

and nove to strike, if it's already in, the two newspaper

articles at the back of 52, which were provided for the

specific purpose of -- by newspaper articles attenpting to

i npeach M. Vander pol [phonetic], who testified earlier in

the hearing and could have been confronted with these if

they're used for that purpose, but he didn't, and he's not

here, and they're just newspaper articles, and if we're

going to have hearings by clippings, you know, | don't know

what the witness stand's about. | think they're really not

probative and should not be adnmitted for any purpose.

THE COURT: I'Il hear fromM. Yale.

MR. YALE: First of all, do we have a nunber for

these exhibits so that | can --

THE COURT: Well, right now the whole --

MR. YALE: The whol e packet, all right.

THE COURT: | have a package called Exhibit 52.

MR. YALE: Al right. The issue -- first of all,

we' ve made no reference, you know, in terns of Dean Foods in

this issue of his testinony. The essence of his testinbny

was that there's been a change in Vitamlk and that he as in

the industry has, first of all -- firsthand this -- he tal ks

about the transaction between himand Vitanm |k, but the rest
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of the transactions that occurred, he wanted to point out

that here was some suggestion that it was not their fault,

there was sonething else that's going on

Now, in terns of the weight of whether this is,

vou know, a newspaper clipping or whatever else, | nean,

that's for the secretary to weigh, you know, how nuch they

want to use that, but | nean the purpose of the testinony -

- he's just supporting what the source of his information

was that Vitanmilk sales had nothing to do with PDs, it had

to do with sone |l arger transaction that went on.

And the other part of it is -- | neanit's --

it's reliable information that could be used to at | east

gi ve that support, and | think it's consistent -- | don't

know whether it's so nmuch inpeachnent; | think it's sonewhat

consi stent with what Vanderpol said. They did acknow edge

that they'd | ost QFC and sone of these others in there.

So, vyou know, we're not -- it just cones down to

that issue --

THE COURT: |'ve got it, you can stop. ' m goi ng

tolet it in under the sane theory that I've let a |l ot of

ot her docunents in here that aren't worth a whole lot, and

this is -- yvou know, this has sone very limted value, |

would think, to the Secretary, but the Secretary can give it

the weight that it's worth, to the extent that it's sonewhat

corroborative of the nain statenment of the witness and it
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may be of sone value; at least it shows you where he got

sone of his thoughts.

What | would like just to -- I'mgoing to call it
Exhibit 52(a), the attachnents, just in case sonebody -- the
adm ni strator _or the Secretary decides to -- that they want

to toss it, but I'mgoing to mark it as Exhibit 52(a).

MR. YALE: All three of themas 52(a)?

THE COURT: |'mgoing to call the attachnents as

52(a), yeah.

MR_YALE: Al right.

THE COURT: And if sonebody wants to toss a few

pages out of that, that the Secretary doesn't want to | ook

at, or not, it's up to her.

Go ahead, M. Beshore.

MR. BESHORE: | just want to note briefly an

additional objection to the first page of 52(a). It's a

table that he didn't prepare. There's no expl anation for

how it's been prepared. It's got, you know, nonthly -- or

you know, annual data, nonthly data, sonme of the colums are

half full and half enpty. | don't think it has any

pr obati ve val ue.

THE COURT: Well, 1 think you made cl ear what you

think it's worth, and, vyou know, if the Secretary agrees

with you on that issue, she just won't pay attention to it,

she'll rely on other information to -- but, you know --
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MR._ BESHORE: That was just a different part of

the exhibit.

THE COURT: | understand. Are there any other

questions for this witness?

MR. BERDE: Yes.

THE COURT: M. Berde, go right ahead.

MR. BERDE: Sydney Berde, for United Dairynen.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR BERDE:

Q | don't think the record reflects the requl ated

handl ers with whom you conpete. Can you nane thenf

A. The requl ated handl ers?

Q The requl ated handl ers with whom you conpete.

A. Most of the conpetition is either Wst Farm Foods

or our distributors. |I'mreally not sure who they all would

conpete with. They conpete with a nunber of dairies.

Q Well, I'mtal king about -- when you refer to vyour

distributors, do those distributors distribute mlk that

t hey purchase from other requl ated handl ers?

A "Do they purchase milk fromother requl ated
handl er s?"

Q Yes, or deliver mlk froma producer.

A. Sone of them do, sone of themdon't.

Q So they would -- those other sources of fluid

distribution wuld be the requl ated handl ers who supply
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those distributors; isn't that correct?

A Yes.

Q And that would constitute part of vyour

conpetition; isn't that correct?

A Yes.

Q Al of whompaid C ass prices established under

the order; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q | want to ask you about a statenent again, about

the rebl ending by West Farnms, that M. Beshore inquired

about. You agreed, as | recall, that to the extent that

West Farns reblends in order to cover losses at its

distributing plant, in effect you do the sane. 1Is that
right?

A. | don't recall that.

Q Well, if you have losses in your operation at the

distributive level, there has to be sone reflection of those

| osses in your operation; isn't that correct?

A. | quess so, but, you know, what --
Well, | think --

A. No, no, no, let nme --

Q Let me follow it up.

A. Well, can | finish?

Q And you've indicated --

A. Can | finish?
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Q Yeah, go ahead. Al right.

A. Ckay. You know, there cones a point where in a

busi ness, either you have to raise vour price or vou take it

out of the farmer's check, and | guess that's where |'m not

following why it's being taken out of the farner's check.

Q Well, if you can't raise your prices, you take it

out of your farnmer's check, don't you, as a producer?

A No.
Q No?
A. | nean, I'm-- I'mone entity.

Q Well, vou take it out of the check of the

enterprise, don't vyou, the returns of the enterprise?

A. Wher ever that mght be. | nean --

But the --

Q
A. O vou try to cut cost.
Q

VWll, the difference, however, between \Wst

Farns' rebl endi ng and how you handl e your | osses is that

West Farns pays into the pool the dass value of their mlk

but you do not.

A. That's why we have so nmny other risks involved

in being a PD

Q But that is a difference between your operation

is it not, and West Farns?

A. One of many, many, nmany differences.

West Farns' plant is owned by its producer
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menbers, is it not?

A. It's supposed to be, yes.

Q It isinfact -- or one description of it m ght
be: a producer-handler.

A | think that's a stretch, but --

Q You think it's a stretch? 1|s that what you said?

A. Yeah. | don't think Darigold owns all the farns.

Q Well, the farners own the plant, do they not?

A Yeah, but they -- they don't all own each -- they

don't own the plant and the farnms together.

Q But they own the plant.

A. But they don't own the farns. |It's not all --

Q Who's the "they" we're talking about? Aren't the

producer nenbers of West Farns the owners of the bottling

pl ant ?
A. They have all got a small stake in it, ves.
Q And they all suffer |osses or gains of the

operation of the bottling plant.

A. O the cheese plant or the powder plant or

what ever plant --

Q Ri ght .
A. -- of all the different plants they have, of
their $1.1 billion worth of business.

Q But the difference is that Wst Farns pays the

mar ket adninistrator a cost for mlk that you do not bear
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isn't that correct?

A. That is one of the things they do.

Q Can you explain why that difference should occur?
A. Because that is what has been stated since 1937
and that is the rules we play by, and they -- and every

farnmer has played by. They have a choice of whether they

want to be a PD or not a PD. |'mnot sure why this is --

needs to be taken away.

Q Let nme ask you where it has been stated?
A. Fromwhat |'ve seen in 1937.

Q What did you see, in 1937, that led you --
A Well, not personally back then.

(Laughter.)

Q What di d whoever --

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: [Indi scernible.]

THE WTNESS: Yeah, | wasn't going to say so.

MR. BERDE: Unfortunately, | was around in 1937,

yes.
(Laughter.)

Q (By M. Berde) Are vou referring sinply to the

fact that the Departnent has defined sone kind of an entity

call ed "producer-handl er" and exenpted that entity from

pooling in pricing and application of uniformprices, as the

Act provides?

A. As far as | know, ves.
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Q |s that the source of what you call 1937 --
A. As far as | know.
Q And isn't that the reason we're here now. to

reexam ne that issues?

A. You gquys are, I'mnot really not (chuckling).

MR. BERDE: Thank vyou.

THE COURT: Anything else fromthe proponents?

(No response.)

THE COURT: M. Yale, do you have Redirect at

MR. YALE: Yes, | do. Thank vyou.

THE COURT: Oh, and | also want to give the --

let ne give Ms. Deskins and M. Rower a chance first, |

guess. I'msorry. Go ahead, M. Rower.

MR. ROVNER:  Jack Rower.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ROVER:

Q M. Brandsma, on Page 7 of vyour testinony, you

introduced a term "captive plant."

A Yes.

Q Coul d you expand on what you nmean by "captive
plant."

A A captive plant would be soneone like Safeway or
Fred Meyer, which Fred Meyer is -- | don't knowif they're
nationwi de or not, but they're by -- in our neck of the
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woods, but they would be plants that have sales to their own

stores, they bottle the mlk and are able to send it to

their own stores, thus elimnating a nmddleman, | quess you

woul d say. So they kind of have a captive source for their

m | K.

Q To your know edge, do captive plants have other

custoners beyond the retail custoners at the groceries?

A. Yes. Safeway, for instance, has a |l arge

distributor in the Seattle area, and they al so have the

St ar bucks accounts, which they distribute to a warehouse,

and for -- when we lost the Starbucks accounts, it was

probably, just in Seattle, nine trailers a week, so |I'msure

it's far and above that, so -- and the other account | know
takes -- well, |I've been told -- takes six or seven trailers
a week, from Safeway, and -- and from being around and with

the conpetition and nmlk prices being fairly shared, there's

very few people that can conpete with Safeway because of

what t hey have.

Q Well, as vou've said, only sone portion of the

retail sales, what you call the captive sales --

A Yes.

Q -- are part of that operation, is that what

you're --
A Yes. Yes.

MR. ROVER: M. Tosi has sone questions for you
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR TOSI:

Q Thanks for appearing today, M. Brandsma. A few

questions, just to build alittle bit off of what Jack here

was j ust asking.

MR TOSI: I'msorry. M nane is Gno, Gi-n-o,
Tosi, T-o0-s-i. I'mwth USDA Dairy Prograns in Washi ngton
D.C_
Q (By M. Tosi) | heard sone Cross-Exam nation a
little bit here on -- and I"mnot sure that | understood

everything that you were saying, but 1'd like to ask a

question or two about the relationship between the price to

a consuner, when a consuner cones to a store and buys ml Kk,

and what you sell mlk for to retail outlets. Could vou

pl ease go over a little bit about things that you observe or

what vou think you know about that rel ationship.

A. For what we would sell to retail stores for and

what they would sell mlk for and things like that, a | ot of

the things | observe there is a lot of the c-stores -- and

there's a pretty fierce conpetition between c-stores, and

what | see a lot of themdo is A-frane signs and so nany of

themtake mlk and use mlk as a draw to get people in the

store, and | think what | see a lot of is: at-cost, |ess-

t han- cost, just-above-cost pricing in a |ot of those c-

stores.
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Q Thinking in your capacity as a busi nessperson
maybe this is asking you to think nore in terns of -- in
your capacity acting as a handler -- no, I'Il strike that
questi on.

In your testinony here vou talk a little bit

about orderly marketing, you nake reference to that.

A Yes.

Q Wul d vou please start off by saying -- based on

how vou understand mlk orders to work and what sone of

their objectives are.

A. Based on what | think?

Q What vou think orderly marketing is.

A. Well, | think orderly marketing neans that you

have conpetition in the nmarketpl ace, and when you have

conpetition in the marketpl ace, you have basically consuners

t hat benefit by conpetition, and if we have orderliness in

the marketplace, | think you see good conpetition between
all menbers involved in that marketplace, and if -- yeah.
Q Let ne -- 1'll ask it alittle bit differently.
A. Ckay.
Q If you were a producer --
A. Yes.
Q -- you're a dairy farmer --
A. Ckay.
Q -- and you're in an area where your nmlk can be
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priced under an order, froma producer's point of view, what

woul d you think orderly marketi ng would nmean to you?

A. From a producer's point of view, orderly market.

So if | was just a reqular farner, say shipping to the

C0-0p~?
Q Sur e.
A. Oderly market, if | was a producer, would nean

that we see nilk at the sane price | evels between all the

pl ayers in the narketpl ace.

Q You nean that the price you're receiving would be

simlar, like for exanple, to your neighbor's?

A. Uh- huh, ves.

Q And then in your thinking as a handl er, what

woul d that nean, what would orderly nmarketing nean to you?

How woul d you descri be that?

A. As a handler. Oderly market as a handl er woul d

nean that -- just a fair conpetition, | guess, in the

mar ket pl ace, between all the handlers in the marketpl ace.

Q Wul d that nmean that you're paying a simlar

price with all other handlers? Simlar price for mlk,

excuse ne.
A. Well, that's a hard one for ne to answer. |'m
not famliar enough with just being a handler. | really
can't answer that, I'mjust not famliar enough
Q If you were a producer, what would be an exanple
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of sonething that would be disorderly fromyour point of

view as a producer?

A. As a producer?

Q Yes.

A Sonet hing that would be disorderly, as a
producer.
(Pause.)

| haven't thought about that before. Sonething

that woul d be disorderly as a producer

(Pause.)

| quess, vou know, disorderly would probably be:

your nei ghbor getting $2.00 a hundredwei ght nore or $3.00 a

hundr edwei ght nore for their nlKk.

Q What's disorderly about that, in your opinion?
A What's disorderly about that?
Q Yes.
A Vell --
Q | nean that you wouldn't like it is obvious.
A. Well, you wouldn't like it, but | nean -- yeah.
| nmean, that's nothing really disorderly about it, I nmean -

- the nei ghbor got a good deal, you know.

(Pause.)

| haven't -- | have no answer, |I'msorry, on
that.

MR_TOSI: That's all | have.
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THE W TNESS:  Ckay.

MR. TOSl: Thank vou, | appreciate vour

testinony.
THE W TNESS: Sorry.

THE COURT: Counsel, over here, M. Cherry,

Ms. Deskins, any other questions?

(No response.)

THE COURT: Go ahead, M. Beshore.

MR. BESHORE: One other question.

FURTHER CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BESHORE:

Q You testified, | think, that the price of nlk

out of conveni ence stores in Whatcom County is 2.19 or 2.29

a gallon. |Is that at the present tinme?
A. From nost of the accounts we deliver to.
Q Ckay. And are you delivering to them-- are

those profitable sales for you presently?

A. | would say so, yes.

Q So are they selling your mlk as a loss | eader or

is there sone nmargi n between your price to the stores and

their out-of-store price?

A. |'mnot going to comment on -- that's

confidential.

Q In any event, your sales to themare profitable

at the present tine.
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A Yes.

MR. BESHORE: Thank vou.

THE COURT: Okay, M. Yale, you have guestions?

MR. YALE: Sure. Ben Yale, on behalf of Smith

Brothers Farns, Edaleen Dairy, and Mallorie's Dairy.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR YALE:

Q You nade a coment -- there was a question here

about the captive plants.

A Yes.

Q All right. Are vou aware of whether Kroger is

selling mlk to anybody other than to its own stores?

A. |'mnot aware that they are.

Q You testified that Safeway is selling to sonebody

ot her than Safeway; right?

A. Yes:; they are.

Q And there's kind of an integration between the

Saf eway plant and its stores?

A Yes.

Q Do Safeway Stores buy mlk fromany other plants,

to your know edge?

A. | sawjust a little bit of like Darigold in our

local store, at Safeway, but it's like a shelf or sonething,

not very nuch.

Q But vyou nmade a comment that -- said that based on
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the prices you saw with Safeway, that they're selling to

t hese other conpanies that aren't -- that their prices are,

what, better, worse? Wat's the situation that you're

seei ng?

A. Fromwhat |'m seeing, they're definitely bel ow

the pricing that we currently supply to our custoners.

Q And are vou asking the Secretary to limt

Safeway's ability to be integrated as stores and al so sel

to other custoners?

A No.

Q Now, there was a question, | think by M. Berde,

that tal ked about the risk that West Farns was like a

producer-handler. | think you renenber the gist of that.
Ri ght ?

A. Yes.

Q If you have a loss of production at your farm
tell me what the inpact would be, | nean a significant |oss

of production, maybe feed was bad or bad weather or, vyou

know, all these other variables that hit, tell ne what the

ram fications --

A. A |l oss of production either is going to nean a

|l oss of sales, that you're going to |l ose a custoner because

they can't -- you can no longer supply them or it's going

to mean that you, in order to supply them join the pool.

Q But vour whole enterprise takes the risk of that
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loss: right?

A Yes.

Q Now, vou've got neighbors, | understand, that are

menbers of like West Farns or DF -- NDA?

A NDA.

Q NDA. And do those nenbers fromtine to tinme go

bankrupt and out of busi ness?

A. Yes, they do.

Q And do the other farners have to pay for the

| osses that occurred as a result of those farners' -- | nmean

do they have to pay for those other cows or the creditors or

anybody else that -- of that farmthat went bankrupt?

A. No, they don't.

Q But in vour case, if sonething happens in your

producti on, you have that full risk; right?

A Yes.
Q Now, vou nentioned, | think, on this issue of
this disorderly marketing that if a producer -- vyou thought

maybe if they got $2.00 nore than their neighbor or

sonething, that it could change things; right?

A Yes.

Q The point is, is that if there's an economc

value to nmake a business decision to join a cooperative or

to sell to a distributing plant or to be a PD, that

producers will make that if there's an econonic advantage to
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them right?

A. Yes, they woul d.

Q Al right. And if there was an econonic

advantage to them as they sawit, to be a PD, they could

make the sanme decision their dad did and vou did; right?

A. Yes, they coul d.

Q And isn't the fact -- or first of all let me ask

you this. |In WatcomCounty, let's just |limt it there,

have you seen any producers decide to becone PDs?

A. No.
MR. YALE: | don't have any other questions.
(Pause.)

THE COURT: Okay, you nmy step down,

M . Brandsnsn.

(Wtness excused.)

THE COURT: Who's the next witness, M. Yale? |

thought M. Ricciardi --

MR._YALE: We're done with ours. | think that
the next one they were going to bring, | think, was M. --
THE COURT: -- was M. Hettinga, brought by
M. Rcciardi. | don't see either one of them here.
MR_YALE: | nean, | can go get them they may
not be aware -- they may have thought that we wouldn't be
done at this tinme. 1'Il go get them

THE COURT: If they're right outside, bring them
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in, otherwise we can take a short break. | wasn't planning

on breaking this early, though

(Pause.)
THE COURT: O f the record.

(O f the record and reconvened.)

THE COURT: On the record. GCkay, M. Ricciardi,

['ll let vou call vyour next wtness, please.

MR. RICC ARDI: Your Honor, Al Ricciardi, for

Sarah Farns. The next witness would be Hein Hettinga, and

Your Honor, | have provided to everyone in the room

i ncluding you and the Court Reporter, four documents: a

statenent of M. Hettinga; an article fromDairy Foods

entitled "' A Decade of Change' Dairy Foods 100": there's

al so a docunent fromthe Progressive Dairynen, Sout hwest

Di vi sion, for Novenber of 2003; and then, finally, an

article regardi ng Shanrock Foods, with M. Kroger's picture

painted on it right there.

THE COURT: Do vou want all four of these

docunents marked at this tine?

MR. Rl CCl ARDI : | would, Your Honor, and | would

suggest that we mark them-- | believe that we're up to 53.

THE COURT: 53.

MR. RICCIARDI: The statenent would be 53: the

"Dairy Top 100" article 54, the Progressive Dairynen 55; and

t he Shanrock Article 56.
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THE COURT: Ckay, that's how |'ve nmarked them

(Exhi bits Nos. 53 through 56 were nmarked.)

MR _RICCIARD : Appreciate it, Judge.

THE COURT: And |'mgoing to swear M. Hettinga.

Wul d vou pl ease rai se your right hand.

HEI N HETTI NGA, OPPONENTS' W TNESS, SWORN

THE COURT: Pl ease state your nane and then --

THE WTNESS: Hein Hettinga.

THE COURT: Spell it for ne too, please.

THE WTNESS: Hein, He-i-n, Hettinga,

He-t-t-i-n-g-a

THE COURT: Ckay. Go ahead, M. Ricciardi.

MR. RICC ARDI: Your Honor, |I'mgoing to nmake a

sonewhat unusual request, but hopefully it will be

acconmodat ed.

M. Hettinga, although never fornmally di agnosed

as dyslexic, has a reading difficulty in the nature of

dyslexia. He has a difficult tine in reading. The

statenent that he is to give today will be his statenent,

but ny request is that to the extent it needs to be read

into the record, that the Court allow ne to red that

statenent into the record and then M. Hettinga would be

avail able for cross-exam nation or exam nation by the

proponents' counsel. | would request, however, that to the

extent that anyone's going to ask himto | ook at a docunent
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or review a docunent, that we be given sufficient tinme to do

t hat .

THE COURT: That sounds okay to ne. | nean, |

assune that these folks are just getting the statenment now,

t hey haven't had them overnight, so they can't -- we can't

like just go right to cross-exan nation, the statenent

hasn't -- they haven't had a chance to read the statenent;

is that correct?

MR. RICCOARD : That is correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: In that case | think the statenent

m ght as well be read. It's going to take people 15 or 20

mnutes to read it, and you speak at a reasonably good pace,

and unl ess soneone objects, I'mgoing to let M. Ricciard

read the statenent of M. Hettinga. Anyone have a probl em

wth that?

UNI DENTI FI ED FEMALE: Maybe at the end, once he

finishes, if he could confirmthat that --

THE COURT: | would think we'd do sonething like

that, but --

MR RICOARDI: And | intend to do that, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead.

MR RICCOARDI: As indicated, Judge, this is the

testinony of Hein Hettinga.

DI RECT TESTI MONY

BY THE WTNESS (as read by M. Ricciardi):
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"My nane is Hein Hettinga, and | amthe founder

and co-owner with ny wife of Sarah Farns. Sarah Farns is

naned after ny daughter and is a famly conpany which was

f ounded about ten years ago. | have been dairying about 30

vears. Along with nmy two sons, | run the operation, and ny

daughter, Sara, serves as the conptroller.

"Sarah Farns believes that the real purpose of

this hearing is to elinmnate Sarah Farns fromthe

mar ket pl ace. The inposition of a cap would restrict the

future growh of Sarah Farns, whatever that may be.

Meanwhi l e other farners, other cooperatives, and other

handl ers would retain the ability to expand, w thout any

such restriction.

"Furthernore, the inposition of any cap based on

what marketing conditions mght be in the future is

unj ustified and speculative. The inposition of the proposed

3-mllion-pound-per-nonth cap, which is |ower than the

current nonthly production of Sarah Farns, would force Sarah

Farns to exani ne whether to continue as a producer, whether

to continue as a handler, or whether it wuld be feasible to

conti nue operations at all.

"These proposals would dramatically injure or

term nate our business. This is true even though there is

no real evidence that Sarah Farns hol ds an unfair advant age

as a producer or a procedure. In fact, the evidence
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establishes that in exchange for requlation as a producer-

handl er, Sarah Farns bears costs that are not usually borne

by other market participants.

"l have been in a nunber of agricultural

busi nesses throughout ny life. | owned a hoof-trinmng

busi ness and a cattle-trading operation before | began

dai rvi ng sone 30 vears ago.

"About 8 vears ago a new state-of-the-art

processing plant was built in Yuma, Arizona. The origina

intent of the plant was to process mlk and the sell the

mlk into New Mexico. In reality, the primary sal es of

Sarah Farns occur within the borders of the state of Arizona

and the New Mexico market represents a snmall percentage of

t he conpany's business.

"The custoners of Sarah Farns include Bashas,

specifically its Food Cty stores, as well as Samis dub

Costco, and sone snmall er independent retailers. Wthin the

first vear or so of the operation of the integrated dairy

and ni |l k-processi ng operations Sarah Farns wel coned

Food City as the first nmjor custoner. Wen Bashas

pur chased the Food City stores and began to expand its

operations, the sales of Sarah Farns began to grow.

"Sarah Farns currently produces in excess of

3 mllion pounds of mlk per nonth, and the business would

suffer substantially if any of the current proposals or
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revised proposals were to be adopt ed.

"Since 1995 Sarah Farns has operated as a

producer-handler in Oder 131 without creating disruptive or

'"disorderly' marketing conditions, and there is no evidence

that any disruptive nmarketing conditions, however defined,

are now occurring. Instead, Sarah Farns has consistently

operated its business under the quidelines that the

United States Departnent of Agriculture, the 'Departnent,’

has left virtually unchanged and that Congress has

consi stently protected for decades.

"Sarah Farns has been able to successfully

operate by controlling the source of its nilk and by

providing a quality product and good service to its

custoners. For exanple, although nore expensive to produce,

Sarah Farns uses a tanper-proof cap, with a foil seal, which

prevents | eaks and air contanination, as well as increasing

consuner safety. Sarah Farns delivers nmlk fromits cows to

the custoner's store within 24 hours, which provides for a

17-day shelf |life on delivery, as opposed to the 10-day

shelf life offered by others.

"In addition, as part of the services provided to

several of its major custoners, Sarah Farns ships its gallon

mlk containers in cardboard boxes. As far as | know, no

other distributors in the marketing area have been willing

to provide this service to their custoners. The use of the
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cardboard boxes insulates the mlk fromlight and al so keeps

the mlk cooler. These exanples of quality issues exenplify

the type of services provided by Sarah Farns to its

custoners.

"As noted above, Sarah Farns operates as a

producer-handler within the current federal requlations, has

nmade a substantial and continuing financial investnent, and

has also built its operations to ensure continued conpliance

with the current rules and requl ati ons.

"Over the vears, Sarah Farns has been presented

with nunerous challenges to its status as a producer-

handl er. For exanmple, the Departnment received comments from

the industry during the course of federal order reformthat

suggested the curtailnent or elinination of the producer-

handl er exenption. The Secretary properly concluded that:

""I't has been a long-standing policy to exenpt

fromfull requlation many of those entities that operate as

both the producer and a hander. ... A prinmary basis for

exenpti ng producer-handlers fromthe pricing and pooling

provisions of a mlk order is that these entities are

customarily small busi nesses that operate in a self-

sufficient manner. Also, during the history of producer-

handl er exemption fromfull regulation, there has been no

denponstration that such entities have an advantage as either

producers or handlers so long as they are responsible for
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bal ancing their fluid mlk needs and cannot transfer

bal anci ng costs, including the costs of disposing of reserve

mlk supplies to other market participants. 64 Fed. Req.

16135 (April 2,1999).'

"The Secretary also discussed the small changes

that were nmade to producer-handler requlations for the sole

pur pose of standardi zing the consolidated orders.

| nportantly, the Secretary noted that, quote, 'no changes

have been made that would intentionally requlate a producer-

handl er that is currently exenpt fromrequl ati on under

current operating procedures.' The Secretary also took note

of Congress's unwavering support of the producer-handler

exenpti on.

"Fromthe inception of its operation as a

pr oducer - handl er, Sarah Farns has faced a nunber of

chall enges from sone of the proponents of the current

proposals, including the United Dairynmen of Arizona, UDA,

and Shanr ock Foods Conpany, Shant ock. Fromthe tine that

Sarah Farns was established as a producer-handler in the 131

mar ket, both UDA and Shanr ock have continuously attenpted to

have the Departnent disqualify Sarah Farns as a producer-

handl er. Both UDA and Shanrock filed litigation in the

United States District Court, for the District of Arizona,

in an attenpt to contest a decision by the Departnent that

Sarah Farns qualified for the producer-handl er exenption.
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"As | understand it, the United States D strict

Court disnmissed the action for | ack of subject matter

jurisdiction and the 9th GCrcuit Court of Appeals held that

the disnissal for lack of subject matter jurisdiction was

correct, referencing United Dairynen of Arizona, Shanrock

Farns, v. Venenan matter, 279 F.3d 1160 (9th Crcuit 2002).

"Sarah Farns is now faced with yet another

challenge to its continued existence from UDA, Shanrock, and

sone of the mmjor cooperatives and publicly-traded conpani es

in the dairy industries. Large grocery chains and dairy

retailers, including Dean Foods and Kroger, are supporting

t he proposed changes to the Departnment mlk nmarketing orders

that requlate dass | fluid mlk and are seeking to inpose

reqgul atory restrictions on independent producer dairy farns

to require those producer-handlers, including Sarah Farns,

to set mnimmprices for fluid mlKk.

"Despite no significant change in nmarketing

conditions since order reformand wi thout any substanti al

subst anti ve evi dence of disorderly marketing, the proponents

seek to effectively shut our doors. The proposals, if

adopted, would force Sarah Farns to change the way it

operates, and Sarah Farns woul d i ncur increased costs.

Dependi ng on narket conditions, if the proposals were

adopted, the ability of Sarah Farnms to continue its

operations will need to be exam ned.
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"The i npact of the various proposals would force

Sarah Farns to incur additional costs in the formof dass |

settlenent fund contributions, fromwhich it is now

exenpt ed. However, the proponents' own testinony

establi shes no basis for this dramati c change in policy.

"Instead, the reality is that being a producer-

handl er i nvolves a substantial anpunt of risk that the

typical dairy farner does not bear, and the 'unfair

advant age' clainmed by the proponents is a fallacy. I f being

a producer-handler was the fast-track to wealth that the

proponents claim then why aren't there nore of themin this

mar ket and in the other parts of the United States? The

nunber of producer-handlers in the dass 131 nmarketing area

has declined six in 1980 to just two in the year 2002.

Moreover, it appears that in the dass 131 nmarketing order

has the | east nunber of producer-handlers in the entire

country.

"For the reasons cited by the Secretary in

support of the |l ast decision on this topic, the Departnent

shoul d not adopt these proposals. The requl ation of

producer - handl ers contradi cts not only Congress's stated

i ntent that the producer-handl er exenption be preserved but

woul d al so constitute a change in the |ong-standing policy

of the Departnent.

"The proponents seek to cl ose our business
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despite the fact that Sarah Farns bears all of its bal ancing

costs, is entirely self-sufficient, and is a small business

under the provisions of the Reqgulatory Flexibility Act as a

dairy products manufacturer that enploys | ess than 500

enmpl oyees. Mor eover, the growth of our production in recent

vears has been due to increased efficiencies and the growth

of our custoners.

"As noted above, the growth of Sarah Farns is

reflected in the growth of its nmain custoners. In this

regard, over the |ast five yvears there has been a

significant shift in the retail industry from snal

operations to | arger warehouse stores and/or | arger

super nar ket s.

"As previously nentioned, sone of the mmjor

custoners of Sarah Farns are Bashas/Food Cty, Costco, and

Sam s d ub. Each of these custoners has grown in the | ast

five vears. Wth regard to Food Cty, Sarah Farns has gone

fromserving a small nunber of stores to serving a

substantially | arger nunber.

"Moreover, discount retail outlets such as Costco

are challenging traditional mlk processors and grocery

chains. The large national cooperatives, dairy processors,

and food retailers are attenpting through these proposals to

limt conpetition, which would ultimtely inpact the

consuner both in the quality of the milk that will be

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2626

available in the market and in the increased price of the

m | K.

"Sarah Farns relies principally on the sale of

fluid mlk in gallons, half-gallons, and quarters. |ndeed

nost of Sarah Farns' sales are fromthe sale of fluid mlKk

in these size containers. Sarah Farnms also has a limted

nunber of sales in sour cream

"Sarah Farns has chosen to integrate both its

dairy and m | k-processing operation and to concentrate on

the sale of fluid mlk. Sarah Farns expended significant

capital in reliance upon the exenption fromrequlation as a

pr oducer - handl er.

"Sar ah Farns expended substantial capital and

took the risk of building a fresh nodern processi ng pl ant

with the | atest equi pmrent and technol oqgy. Based upon the

t echnol ogy and equi pnent that is avail abl e today, Sarah

Farns is able to utilize these efficiencies to process mlk

in a nore efficient manner and, | believe, |less than

expensi ve than our conpetition

"Mor eover, since Sarah Farns focuses on just one

product, fluid mlk, rather than having to run a pl ant

producing certain itens at certain tinmes and others at other

tines, Sarah Farns can run its plant consistently and

wi t hout any significant down tine. These savings in

processi ng costs can be passed on to Sarah Farns' custoners
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and ultimtely to the consuner.

"The proponents suggest that our operation

threatens their ability to market nmilk in the 131 O der area

and that Sarah Farns is sonehow a threat to their busi ness.

These clains are nande despite the fact that those testifying

in support of the requlations are all significantly |arger

t han our operation. | ndeed, Sarah Farns does not have a

pri ce advant age.

"As noted in the conpilation of statistical

material for Federal M1k Marketing O der Nunber 131, the

Ari zona-Las Vegas marketing area, prepared by the

United States Departnent of Agriculture, Agricultural

Marketing Service Dairy Program there are four handl ers

operating pool plants within the nmarketi ng area: Kr oger

Conpany, Safeway Stores, Inc., and Shanrock Foods Conpany

operate distributing plants; United Dairynen of Arizona has

a co-op pool manufacturing plant.

"In addition, handlers operating partially-

reqgul ated distributing plants in the area of this federal

order include Dean Foods of California, Inc., Mrningstar

Foods, Inc., General MIls, and Alta Dena Certified Dairy.

| believe that Sarah Farns is snaller than each of the

non-exenpt plans in the state of Ari zona.

"The August 2003 edition of Dairy Foods, in an

article entitled, 'A Decade of Change...and a Year of
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Chal | enges,' which has been marked as Exhibit '54, lists the

100 conpanies with the largest fiscal year sales in the

dairy industry, on a list entitled the ' Annual Dairy 100.'

The Kroger Conpany Dairy operation is listed as nunber 7 on

the Top 100, Safeway Dairy Division is nunber 23 on the

list, and Shanrock Farns is listed as nunber 58.

"While UDA is not listed in the Top 100, 18

cooperatives are anong the top 100 conpanies with the

| argest anpunt of fiscal year sales in the dairy industry.

There is not one producer-handler in the Top 100 I st.

"What this list exenplifies is that the conpanies

that are challenging Sarah Farns and neki ng these proposals

are in a nmuch better financial position than Sarah Farns.

Therefore, this is really an effort by the |arger conpanies

to elimnate conpetition in Oder 131, which, in ny opinion,

woul d have the effect of increasing the cost of mlk for

consuners in the marketing area.

"There has been a seisnic shift in the | ast

several years in the marketing of milk. WArehouse stores

have decided to market mlk at a smaller mark-up or profit

margin. This is direct conpetition at both the retail and

whol esal e | evel for conpani es such as Dean's, Safeway,

Kroger, and, locally, Shantrock. This is a war at the street

level to limt conpetition, which the proponents have now

brought into this hearing.
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"I ndeed, there has al so been hei ght ened concern

anong consuner advocacy groups, federal |awrakers, and state

attorney general that | arge national cooperatives, dairy

processors, and food retailers are attenpting to take

advant age of declines in raw mlk prices but not passing

t hese cost savings on to the consuners. This is the reality

and the factual backdrop for the proposed changes in the

requl ati ons nmade by these proponents.

"The proponents also testified that Sarah Farns

possesses an advant age as a producer-handler that gives us a

conpetitive edge not available to other market participants.

First, that advantage sinply is not there. Second, even if

it were areality, there are no barriers that prevent a

handl er frombuying a dairy herd or that prevent a dairy

farmer fromopening a bottling facility.

"For exanple, as shown in a recent article from

the Progressive Dairyman in Novenber of 2003, a copy of

whi ch has been narked as Exhibit 55, Shanrock Farns Dairy

has recently built a 10,000-cow mlking facility near

Stanfield, Arizona. Based upon ny experience, the financial

investnent in this dairy is in the mllions of dollars.

Thi s anpunt has increased because | believe that Shanrock

has recently purchased cows and began its operations at this

dairy.

"Gven this investnent in a dairy production
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facility, Shanrock Farns could nake a business decision to

construct a processing plant near that dairy and to then

operate as a producer-handl er under the terns of the current

requlations, if it chose to do so. Wile |l amnot privy to

the financial information for Shanrock Farns, since it is

confidential and privileged, it is apparent that Shanrock

has decided that it is in its best econonmc interest to

operate as a requl ated handl er rather than a producer -

handl er, even though it has now spent substantial anpunts of

noney to construct a state-of-the-art dairy.

"One of the proponents to the changes to the

requl ations i s Shanrock Foods Conpany. As noted in an

article titled 'Shantrock Foods: A Famly Conpany with

Foresi ght, a copy of which has been marked as Exhi bit 56,

Shanr ock Foods has the largest dairy in the Sout hwest and

among the largest five privately-held Arizona conpani es.

"The article indicates that Shanrock has a herd

of approximately 7500 cows. However, that was before

Shanrtock conmpleted its new dairy near Stanfield and added at

| east 3,000 additional cows. In total, Shanrock processes

70,000 gallons of mlk annually.

"I n June 2001, Shanrock opened an extended shel f

life (ESL) plant facility, which gives Shanrock the ability

to put 82 days of code life on its products, which in turn

allows it to serve a |larger geographic area with its
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products. Shanrock produces 12-, 20-, and 32-ounce plastic

bottles of white milk and flavored mlk in its ESL facility.

Sar ah Farns cannot conplete with Shanrock on a head-to-head

basis given the conpetitive advantage that Shanrock has in

the sale of, anong others, ESL products.

"Shanr ock al so has the size and fi nanci al

wherewithal to sell its products in Arizona, Col orado, New

Mexi co, Utah, Nevada, and Texas. Sarah Farns is not here

conpl ai ni ng that Shanrock has an unfair conpetitive

advant age, al t hough Shanr ock may have a conpetitive

advantage in many areas, including in Arizona.

"(Cbviously Shanrock has a certain business plan

that it continues to follow. Sarah Farns cannot directly

conpete in the ESL narket and has chosen not to do so.

Based upon the argunents nade by the proponents, Shanrock

has an obvi ous 'unfair advantage' over Sarah Farns because

of its ESL pl ant.

"Neverthel ess, Sarah Farns attributes this

advantage to the tine, effort, and substantial nonetary

contribution made by Shanrock in order to grow its business

t hr oughout the Western states. Li kewi se, Sarah Farns has

nade a substantial nonetary contribution and tinme

contribution to becone a producer-handler. Sarah Farns and

t he ot her producer-handlers should not be forced to bear the

risk of a change in the rules in the mddle of the gane.
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"Moreover, the clains of unfair conpetition ring

hol | ow because producer-handl er status places linmts on the

types of custoners that Sarah Farns can effectively serve.

First, Sarah Farns can only serve those custonmers who

require less mlk than it can produce. Unli ke a poo

handl er, Sarah Farnms cannot purchase nore mlk to fill the

| arge or growi ng needs of a custoner. Sarah Farns cannot

serve custoners whose denmand for mlk is irreqular. | ndeed,

the profitability of Sarah Farns depends on our ability to

effectively control our surpluses and its disposition. Wen

a custoner has needs that exceed our farm capacity or would

upset our ability to balance, we are faced with the choice

of |l osing our producer-handler status or our custoner.

"The proponents have suggested that paynents from

producer-handlers into the producer settlenent fund are

necessary because Sarah Farns, and other |ike-situated

producer - handl ers, enjoy an unfair advantage because we can

acquire our dass | mlk for the blend price. This is not

accurate. Sarah Farns does not, as is suggested, enjoy an

advant age equal to the difference between the Cass | price

and the blend price. This sinplistic calculation does not

take into account our cost of production, for instance,

whi ch exceeds the bl end price.

"Repeated all egati ons have been nmade about the

pricing of our products, which the proponents 'determn ned
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by analyzing retail prices of our products at the store.

The specifics of our pricing schene is proprietary

information, but | will state that Sarah Farns does not sel

its mlk for less than the dass | price, plus the cost of

processi ng, packagi nqg, and transportation. W do not

undercut the market by selling our product for less than the

Class | price.

"In fact, | was recently asked to price mlk for

Costco, to be delivered to a market outside of Order 131.

The estimate | gave was based on the sane fornul a Sarah

Farns uses to supply other custoners. Sarah Farns did not

get the new order. | was told that our price was not

conpetitive -- not even cl ose.

"At the hearing, the testinony of Carl Herbien,

that was used to suqggest that our prices were unattainable

by a requl ated handl er, were based on plants whose product

m xes were not disclosed but were alnpost certainly nore

di verse than that of Sarah Farns'. My _experience has shown

that the cost of processing, packaging, and labeling is

about the sane reqardl ess of the size package that is run

"A plant running straight white mlk gallons wll

have a | ower overall cost per gallon than will have a pl ant

running a product mx of nmultiple sizes and SKUs. The

conposite cost information provided to the Secretary is

neani ngl ess as a basis for conparison. Sarah Farns' cost
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per white gallon should be no nore than the cost of

Shant ock. In fact, it should be |ess.

"M. Herbien's study | ooks only at 2 percent

white gallons. Wthout knowi ng what the same store was

charging for whole mlk or skimmnilk, it is possible to know

whet her or not the stated price for 2 percent represented a

mar kup over the actual cost fromthe plant or a nmarkup over

sone blended mlk cost to the plant.

"Also, the stated period of tine is stated to

represent January through June 2003, there is nothing stated

to indicate the days of the nonth or the dates of the nonth

these costs were surveyed. This is relevant because the

store may be pricing nilk based on prior nonths' costs or

anticipation of the foll owi ng nonth.

"As a dairy processor, butterfat costs ne noney.

A gallon of whole mlk costs nore than a gallon of reduced-

fat mlk, which costs nore than a gallon of skimmlKk.

Sarah Farns prices its products based on the butterfat

content. | have noticed that the stores price mlk rather

uniformy.

"To the consuner, there isn't nmuch difference

bet ween the cost of a gallon of skimmlk and a gallon of

whole mlk, even though the whole nilk costs the store nore.

Also, the fiqures cited by M. Herbien for transportation

are highly overstated, based on ny experience. Finally,
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pall et costs do not correlate to those for Sarah Farns

because we offer a pallet exchange program The whol e

purpose is to keep the cost of ny product low -- and it

wor ks.

"The bal anci ng costs incurred by producer-

handl ers are also significant. In addition to the cost of

bal anci ng, producer-handl ers have expenses in transportation

t hat ot her producers do not bear. Pr oducer - handl ers bear

huge ampunts of risk in the event that there are problens at

their processing facility. A stoppage in production can

nean the loss of raw mlk that cannot be replaced by a

pur chase from another farm Li kewi se, problens on the farm

such as illness, are not only a loss to the producer but can

nean the loss of mlk to the plant, that cannot be repl aced.

The result can be | ost custoners. Managi ng the tim ng of

deliveries to the plant is also critical, or we must incur

addi ti onal cleaning costs and difficult scheduling.

"These demands, in addition to increasing our

operating costs, effectively reqgulate the size of producer-

handlers. At the farmlevel, we are required to carefully

mai ntain the | evel of our herd. Herd fluctuati ons pose the

ri sk of causing large pool plant purchases, which would

require us to lose our status or, alternatively, |large

surpluses, which nust be disposed of, often at a substanti al

| 0ss.
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"Wth regard to the other portions of the

proposals, Sarah Farns firmly believes that limting mlk

distribution to cooperatives and mlk processors only works

to deny whol esal e custoners neani ngful choi ce. Due to the

state of the dairy industry today, there needs to be a third

participant in the market in order to foster conpetition and

prevent npnopolistic tendencies.

"Sarah Farns believes the Departnent should

consider the foll ow ng:

"Dairy Farners of Anerica is being investigated

by the Justice Departnent for nunerous antitrust violations.

"Dean Foods controls nore than 20 percent of the

nati onal narket and has driven up the prices of mlk for

consuners in Southern California by buying up conpetition.

"Mbost processors began as producer-handl ers and

grew out of their role as a m |k producer.

"Cooperative associations, fornerly a nethod of

protecting dairy farners in the nmarketpl ace, are now | ess

f ocused.

"The exenption of dark County, Nevada, fromthe

federal order system has enabl ed Dean Foods to establish a

pl ant which will be far nore disruptive to the federal order

system than any single producer-handl er or producer-handl ers

in the aggreqgate.

"Furthernore, the Dean Foods plant is not limted
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by the requirenent placed on producer-handl ers to produce

and market all of their own mlKk. Under the UDA/ Shanr ock

proposal, a snaller independent dairyman will be requl at ed

and conpeting with a |arge, national conpany that is not

required to be regqul at ed. How is that fair?

"Moreover, as stated before, every producer can

under the | aw, beconme a producer-handler. Also, ever

handl er can integrate with a producer. The fact that Sarah

Farns is the only producer who has chosen to do so in the

131 Order does not nean that our practices are unfair or

that the playing field is not the sane for all participants.

Instead, it reflects that operating as a producer-handl er

i ncl udes inherent risk that others have been unwilling to

accept.

"I n short, the proponents expect Sarah Farns to

pay millions of dollars to other producers who have not

i ncurred our investnment costs nor have borne any of our

risk. By definition, Sarah Farns nust be able to produce

all the mlk it utilizes.

"The upper floor on the size of any producer-

handl er's operation is the point at which it can no | onger

produce enough nmilk internally to neet the demand for its

products. Wen that point is reached, only then should

there be a forced decision as to whether to maintain current

| evel s of sales or abandon the status of a producer-handl er.
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"As technol ogi es are devel oped and econom es

change, such that producers are able to increase the nunber

of cows that can be m |l ked, producer-handlers are perntted

to take advantage of these advancenents, as all other

producers m ght. The proposals advanced by UDA, Shanrock

and other |arge cooperatives and national conpani es deny

pr oducer - handl ers the benefits of those advancenents.

"It is ny understanding from M. Albright's

testinony that the AMAA was intended to protect dairy

farnmers frombrutal conpetition that resulted when mlKk

pl ants could play farmagainst farmto drive down prices

bel ow a sustai nable | evel. Because a producer-handl er

cannot conpete with other producers for the sale of raw

mlk, it nade little sense to requl ate producer-handl ers.

Indeed, if the proposals were to be accepted, this would

work to insulate the entire narket area from any further

conpetition and require producer settlenent fund paynents

for any mlk produced by a handler on his own farm

"Finally, UDA/ Shantock and the other proponents

have arqued that Sarah Farns has sonehow caused di sorderly

mar keting conditions in the Arizona-Las Vegas Order. As

stated above, this is not true in fact, nor do any of the

statistics cited by any of the proponents hold water when

viewed in the context of the producer-handler's historical

nmar ket presence.
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"In sum there was no disruption in the

mar ket pl ace found during order reform There have been no

changes in the marketing conditions in the nmarketing area

since order reform There are no facts supporting a finding

of disruptive marketing now. Therefore, the proposals

shoul d be denied."

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR R CC ARDI

Q M. Hettinga, | have read vour testinmony. 1Is

that your testinony that you adopt at this hearing?

A. Yes, it is.

MR. RICOARD : Your Honor, | would nove then

into adni ssion the statenent and the three exhibits, which

| believe are 53, 54, 55, and 56, respectively.

THE COURT: Any objection? M. Beshore?

MR. BESHORE: | object to the newspaper articles

on the sane basis.

THE COURT: Okay. |I'maqgoing to allowit in on

the sane basis, |'mgoing to admit Exhibits 53 through 56.

(Exhibit Nos. 53 through 56 were received.)

THE COURT: Do you have any further questions of

the witness, M. Ricciardi, at this tine or is he ready for

Cross-exani nati on?

MR. RICCOARD : Your Honor, at this tine | don't

have any further questions for M. Hettinga. Cboviously |
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reserve the right to ask questions on redirect and

ot her wi se.

THE COURT: Gkay. Any cross-exam nation? o

ahead, M. Berde.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR BERDE:

Q M. Hettinga, good afternoon.

A. Good afternoon.
Q My name is Sydney Berde. | represent United
Dai rymen of Ari zona. I'd like to ask you a few questions

about your testinony.

First, I1'd like to know sonethi ng about your

background, how vou got into the dairy busi ness, how | ong

you' ve been in the dairy business, and where it started.

A. | mlked cows for two vears as -- when | got out

of high school: and then | hoof-trimed cows, which is

physi cal work, for about seven --

Q Uh- huh.

A. -- and then | traded cows for tw or three, and

when | was trading cows | spent a day buying, a day selling,

a week collecting the noney; so when | got a dairy, | didn't

have to spend that tine, | just bought ny own cows and

m | ked them

Q Where did you go to high school ?

A. | went to Artesia Hi gh School.
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Q In California?
A Yes.
Q And any education after high school ?
A No.
And the first dairy that you established was
wher e?
In Artes- -- Chino. Chino.
Q How | ong ago was that?
A |'mgoing to say thirty-four, -five years ago.
Q | see.
A Ti me_goes by.
Q Whuld you agree, M. Hettinga, that the words

whi ch appear in Exhibit 53 are not in fact your words?

| did not wite the article, yeah.

A
Q Who wote it?
A

My attorney.

Q | want to ask you sonethi ng about how you

established your original dairy and the additional dairies

t hat vou established afterwards, starting, | think you

i ndi cated, about 35 years ago?

A Uh- huh.

The first one was Artesia?

A. No. Chi no.
Q Wher e?
A. Chi no.
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Q And then vou bought or established additional

dairies, did you not?

A. After several vyears.

Q And now you operate a nunber of dairies in

California, do you not?

A Yes.

Q And in Arizona.

A Yes.

Q One of your dairies is AH Dairy?

A Andy Hettinga, nmy son, runs it.

Q Andy Hettinga --

A. Yeah.

Q --_your son?

A It's not -- they call it EIl Mrage Road Dairy

[ phoneti c].

Q Yeah. But the legal nane is AH Dairy?

A. No. It's Hein and Ellen [phonetic] Hettinga. It

has to have a nane because otherwi se they'd all be running

t he wong pl ace.

Q Is that the dairy that's owned by -- well, first
of all, where does that mlk go?

A. To Sarah Farns.

Q To Sarah Farns?

A Uh- huh.

Q The AH Dairy -- milk produced on AH Dairy goes to
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Sar ah Far ns.

A Correct.

Q That, AH Dairy, is in fact a general partnership,

isn"t it?
A. No, it is not.
Q It consists --
A It's a sole proprietor by ny wife and 1.
Q Isn't that the one that's owned by Andrew, Ellen,

Jill Gerben [phonetic]?

A. It is not. It is owed by ny wife and ne.

Q | see. You're fanmliar with the Farm Credi t

Services of Southern California?

A Correct.

Q And you have filed a financing statenent, did vo

u

not, a UCC statenent?

A. | don't know. | don't take care of the
paper wor K.
Q Well, the -- one of the -- the entity naned as

the borrower, 3H Dairy, a California partnership?

A. Yes. That's not A & H.

Q That's not A & H.

A. That's not A & H.

Q Ckay. And you have an A & Hthere, don't you?

A. Not -- it's called that. It's called that. It

S

called that and EI Mrage, one of the two.
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Q Bear with ne for a ninute

A. Surely.

Q |'m ]l ooking at a docunent, "Capital Services,

Inc., UCC Search Report" --

A. Ckay.

Q -- which lists AHDairy, a California genera

part nership, debtor; second debtor is Andrew Hettinga.

You're fanmliar with that?

A. Andrew s ny son

Q And anot her debtor --

MR RICCARDI: Let nme object to the entire line

of questi oni ng.

UNI DENTI FI ED FEMALE: Say who you are.

MR. Rl CCl ARDI : | apologize. A R cciardi, on

behal f of Sarah Farns.

Your Honor, the specific business issues or

busi ness interests, whether M. Hettinga owns them whether

a general partnership, or whatever they nay be, are not at

issue in this case. \Wat --

MR. BERDE: Ch, vyes, they are.

MR_RCOARD : Can | finish?

MR.__BERDE: Yeah.

MR. RICCIARDI: \Wether or not they're entitled

to the exenption or not entitled to the exenption is not at

issue. The only issue here is whether or not the
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proponents' change in regulations should be nade.

Therefore, to the extent that this goes to the

question of audits that may have been done by the Departnent

and confirnmed by the Departnent and i ssues concerning

whet her or not this particular dairy is owned or not owned,

if it isn't an issue in this case we shouldn't spend tinme on

it, Judge, and I'mgoing to tell ny client that to the

extent it gets into proprietary information like this, not

to answer the question.

MR.__BERDE: Well --

THE COURT: Go ahead, M. Berde. Tell himwhere

you are going with this, please.

MR. BERDE: | beg your pardon?

THE COURT: Wiere are you going with this?

MR. BERDE: |I'mgoing with it as to the source of

mlk for the Sarah Farns Dairy and the ownership of that

mlk, the ownership of the source of that mlk, which is

relevant, critically relevant, to these proceedi ngs.

THE COURT: M. English, you have sonething to

say?
MR. ENGAISH. Yes. Charles English, for

Shant ock.

Just as an exanple, just leafing through the

docunent very quickly, prepared by M. R cciardi, and read

by M. Ricciardi, on Page 12, there were two statenents nade

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2646

that | think are tested by this kind of infornmation.

One is "A stoppage in production can nean the

loss of raw nilk, that cannot be replaced by a purchase from

another farm" That can only be tested by knowi ng how many

farns, where they are, and whether or not the mlk is

avail abl e for this producer-handl er. In this case, we

believe that this statenent, that has been nmde repeatedly

in this proceeding, sinply isn't true.

The second statenent on Page 12, "Producer-

handl ers have expenses in transportation that other

producers do not bear." Wll, we need to test that out, and

one way to test it out is to find out where the farns are

and who owns them and whether or not they can ship the mlk

to this processing plant.

And finally, Your Honor, as to the instruction

not to answer: if these docunents and materials are in the

public record, | believe that instruction is inappropriate.

MR. BERDE: They are public record docunents

obtained fromthe Secretary of State of Arizona and

California.

THE COURT: | qguess they could be submtted if

t hey need be, but go ahead, M. Ricciardi.

MR. RICCOARDI: They can be submitted, Judge. M

arqgunent is still the sane. VWhat they're really tryving to

do is they're going to try to go behind the Departnent audit
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that was done and determ ned that they net producer-handl er

status a long tine ago. That's not an issue in this case,

and |'mjust going to tell ny client not to answer any

questions in this area --

THE COURT: | can't tell, as well as you say you

can in terns of where they're going with it, in terns of

that point, so given that there's been a few statenents,

they're entitled to challenge, and |'mqgoing to allow this

line of questioning and hope it doesn't go on past the point

of rel evance.

MR RICCOARDI: And | will tell ny client not to

answer at sonme points where | think appropriate, Judge.

MR. ENGISH And for the record, we will then

take that instruction as evidence that we are unable to test

those statenents on Page 12 and we will ask to strike them

Your Honor.

MR RICOARD : And, Your Honor, then I'll do the

sane, that we've had throughout the course --

THE COURT: Ckay, okay --

MR RICOARDI: -- with Shanrock Farns. | nean,

you want to go back, we'll qgo back.

MR. ENG.ISH The difference, Your Honor, is this

is material on the public record, that is available for

exani nation, not confidential.

THE COURT: COkay. Well, let's --
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MR. ENGL.I SH: It is not confidential.

THE COURT: -- see how far we go with this before

3

MR RICOARDI : It is, and I'll take the position

| need to take.

THE COURT: (Okay. M. Berde, vyou can pursue this

questioning for a while.

THE W TNESS:. Could you pl ease repeat the

question or the location so | know what we're talking about.

Q (By M. Berde) |'m asking you about whether the

debtor, listed on the UCC docunment identified as AH Dairy,

is in fact a California partnership, the partners of which

listed as debtors --

A. Coul d you --

Q --_are --
A. Could you list the partners to ne and | could
tell you.

Q Yes. Andrew Hettinga, Ellen Hettinga, Hein

Hettinga, Jill Hettinga. Those are the partners of AH

Dairy, as indicated on the UCC filing that you nade.

A. | believe -- and |' mnot sure, okay?
Q Yeah.
A. | have a partnership with a dairy in Mdesto area

with ny son Andrew, but not El Mrage. El Mrage is owned

by ny wife and |I.
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Q |'mnot -- | didn't indicate El Mrage or

descri be El M rage.

A But - -

Q | ' mtal king about AH Dairy, which you indicated

is a mlk source of Sarah Farns.

A. It also -- I'mnot sure which |location -- have

you got an address?

Q The P. O box is Chino for debtor AH Dairy:;

Andrew at Corona, California; Ellen at Corona, California;

Hein at Yuma, Arizona; Hein at Corona, California; and Jill

in Corona, California. That's the address listed by the UCC

filling.
A. | believe that's 3H Dairy.

Q Vell --

A. That is the only partnership | have with ny son

Andrew, that has -- El Mrage Dairy is totally owned by ny
wife and I.

Q | didn't ask you about El Mrage; | asked you
about - -

A. El Mrage or AH.

Q -- AHDairy, which is a partnershipin-- a

general partnership in California.

A No.

Q Yeah. No what?

A. A & His not a partnership.
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MR. BERDE: Your Honor, | think I'mgoing to have

to mark this docunent as an exhibit and I'll provide

addi ti onal copies at the appropriate tine.

THE COURT: Ckay. Well, we'll mark this as

Exhi bit 57.

(Exhi bit No. 57 was marked.)

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: What's the title?

MR. BERDE: The title is "Capital Services, Inc.,

UCC Search Report."

Q (By M. Berde) Now | want to ask you about

3H Dairy.
A. Ckay.

Q The mlk from3H Dairy, where is that narketed?

A. Northern California, | don't know who.

Q Does that milk also go to Sham -- to Sarah

A. No, it does not.

Q And that is a California partnership, is it not?

MR. RICCIARDI: (bjection now, Your Honor, he

said to the extent that there's any rel evancy, and there

still isn't any. And this is Al Ricciardi, | apologize, on

behal f of Sarah Farns. He'd already said it doesn't go to

Sarah Farns, it has nothing to do with it, it's a separate

business, why is it anything to do with this particul ar

hearing, why are we tal ki ng about?
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THE COURT: Well, he was only like one-half -- he

was only a half a question beyond that answer. | usually

give people a little nore -- 1've been giVving everyone a

little nore leeway, including you and M. Yale. So | nean -

- if another question indicates that that -- that with
respect to that property it's going nowhere, then we'll nove
-- I'msure M. Berde will npve on.

Q (By M. Berde) Wuld vou agree that 3H Dairy, a

California partnership, is a partnership consisting of Hein

Hettinga, Ellen Hettinga, Jill Hettinga, Pete Hettinga, and

Mel ody Hetti nga?

A. | think that's incorrect. It's Ellen Hettinga;

Andrew Hettinga; Pete Hettinga, nmy brother; and nyself.

It's a four-way cut.

MR. BERDE: Your Honor, may | refresh the

recoll ection of the witness by showi ng himthe docunent?

THE COURT: Ckay, | think -- did you need to

assi st on this?

MR RICOARDI: | don't, Judge. | think it's --

again, it's irrelevant to any issue in this case and --

THE COURT: You may be right, but |I'mjust giving

hima little leeway to develop it. You know, it's been

three weeks in this hearing, we'll -- if there's a couple of

wong turns, then the Secretary will sort things out.

MR RICCOARDI : WIl, let ne assist with regard
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to that.

Q (By M. Berde) Wuld you agree now --

A. Jill is not --

Q Can you understand the docunent that --

A. | can see the four signatures on the bottom
Sonmewhere -- but Jill is not an owner.

MR. BERDE: | think I'mgoing to have to have

this marked al so, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That would be Exhibit 58. | hope

you' re keeping track of which docunent is which because |

don't have copies of themto mark, so you can nmark that as

58.
(Exhi bit No. 58 was marked.)

UNI DENTI FI ED VO CE:  Could we have the title of

t hat, pl ease.

BERDE: This is a financing statenent, the

lender is FarmCredit Services of Southern California. It

bears the nunbers 0035460528, filed in Sacranento,

California, Decenber 11, 2000, with the California Secretary

of State.
MR RICCOARDI: And Judge -- again, Al Ricciardi,

| apol ogi ze again, now we get to this issue of: first, it's

not relevant to anything; and secondly, this witness has

said the information in there is wong. Now, by the way,

what a shock, the UCC filed is incorrect. He can qgi ve the
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testinony that it is -- and now are we going to go down into

this area where | have to call another witness to say the

UCC is incorrect and the infornation provided by

M. Hettinga is correct? This is why, Judge, it's a waste

of tine.

THE COURT: Well, at this point, you know, |

don't know if we're going to get useful information out of

this line of inquiry or not, but -- go ahead, M. Beshore.

MR. BESHORE: Just another point in terns of the

rel evancy. The proposals do speak to the ownership of

production facilities, anywhere by the producer-

handl er/ owner. It's part of the -- you know, it's one of

the provisions in the proposals; it's certainly pertinent to

t hat .

THE COURT: |'mfrankly having sone trouble

seeing howit's pertinent to the issue that's before the

Secretary, in terns of whether to do away with the

exenption, but I"'mwlling to allowthis line of inquiry to

a _reasonabl e degree, but --

MR. ENGISH. Charles English. Your Honor, |

under st and that maybe we get lost in the forest and trees

here very easily, but | think what M. Beshore was saying is

t hat proposals are nuch nore than what has been tal ked about

nostly, which is a volune linmtation.

The proposals | ook at ownership nore
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specifically, as to both plant and farns, and it is highly

rel evant for USDA AMS to understand why that proposal was

subnmitted in that fashion, and the only way to get at that

is to discuss an entity that has nultiple farns, and this is

highly relevant to that proposal

THE COURT: GCkay. I'mstill not -- I'mallow ng

it at this point, but |I'mnot convinced of how highly

relevant it is, and |I've got --

MR. BERDE: Judge, do | need to speak again on

the issue?

THE COURT: | qget the point. Maybe if we can get

sone _guestions and answers we can get through this so fast

that we won't even have to wonder why we're spendi ng al

this tine arqui ng about it.

MR. BERDE: |'m sure, Judge. Thanks.

Q (By M. Berde) You're famliar with GH Dairy?

Yes.

Q That's a partnership of Hein, Ellen, and Gerben

is it not?
A. Correct.
Q And that milk goes to Sarah Farns.
A. No, it does not.
Q Where does it go?
A It goes --

MR. RICCIARDI: (bjection, Your Honor, at this
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poi nt. It doesn't go to Sarah Farns, it has to do with

proprietary information. It's a business answer. He' s not

going to give that --

THE COURT: Well, let himanswer or |let himsay
it's proprietary, | nmean --
MR RICOARD : 1It's proprietary, Judge.

MR. BERDE: Well, wait a minute. Proprietary?

It's highly relevant to this proceeding to know how many

farns he owns, whether in fact --

THE COURT: No, he just said -- we're talking

about the mlk that -- he said the mlk fromthis farm does

not go to Sarah Farns.

MR. BERDE: All right, that's an answer.

THE COURT: Yeah, but he already --

MR. BERDE: He answer ed. But that doesn't nean

that the rest of the information with respect to that farm

is irrelevant to this proceeding.

THE COURT: | don't know what the gquestion was

going to be because -- | don't know what the answer was

goi ng to be.

Q (By M. Berde) \Were does that mlk go?

MR RICCIARDI : Proprietary, Judge.

THE COURT: | can't nmake hi m answer. | nmean, he

says proprietary --

MR. BERDE: He didn't say that.
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THE COURT: Well, his |lawer said -- | nean --

MR. BERDE: Well, he read the statenent, but he's

not testifying --

THE COURT: Okay, do you want to answer the

question, what do you want to --

THE WTNESS: 1'd rather keep that to nyself.

(Laughter.)

MR. BERDE: The question, Your Honor, is --

THE COURT: | can't nmake himanswer it. | nean,

no one has shown ne any authority in the rules and

requl ations that say | can order soneone to answer a

guestion or put themin the big house [phonetic], | nean
this is -- my authority is -- you know, | rule; if he elects
not to answer, for whatever reason, | can't force an answer.

The Secretary can take whatever inference she wants to take

fromhis not answering that question. Do vou know of any

authority | have to order soneone other than that?

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: It doesn't go to Sarah Farns,

it doesn't go to ny PD plant.

M5. DESKINS: Well, there's no authority to make

hi m answer, but | would point out, | don't know that

ownership would be that relevant for the guestion here about

the proposals, so --

THE COURT: Well, | still have a little trouble

with that nyself, although M. English tried to convince ne
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that it was highly relevant, but |'mstill working on that.

Q (By M. Berde) Can vou tell ne where the GH Farm

is |ocated.
A. One is in -- on Chino Avenue --
Q Wher e?
A. On Chino Avenue, in Chino. -- and the other is

in Doane Valley, Arizona.

Q And it produces raw nmilk, grade A raw m | Kk?

A. It makes grade A mlK.

Q Is that mlk marketed in Arizona?

A. |'d rather not say.

Q Is it marketed to fluid handlers in California?
A. | would rather not say.

Q Does it have a market?

A. It has a market.

Q And you have another dairy, called Aztec Dairy?
A. Correct.

Q And where is that |ocated?

A On Aztec Road, in Hoffay [phonetic].

Q In Arizona?

A. In Arizona.

Q And where is that mlk marketed?

A. Sar ah Farns.

Q And who owns that dairy?

A M wife and I.
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in Arizona, and it's

owned by ny wife and I.

And where does that mlk go?

And you have a dairy in Kingman, Arizona?

And who owns that farnf

And where does that mlk go?

And you have another dairy,

call ed Doane Valley?

Have you had one there?

GH has one,

gave that to you earlier.

And where is that nmlk nmarketed?

pardon ne.

The sane

not to Sarah Farns.

Is there an entity called GH Processi ng?

Q

A. Sarah Farns.

Q

A Correct.

Q

A. Ellen and |I.

Q

A. Sarah Farns.

Q

A

Q In Welton?

A

Q

A

Q GH has one.

A

Q

A. Sane pl ace --
answer ,

Q

A. There is.

Q And what

is GH Processing?
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It has nothing to do with Sarah Farns.

Is it a plant?

Yes.

o > O P

Is that the new plant located in Yumn?

MR. RICCIARDI: (njection, Your Honor, it has

nothing to do with Sarah Farns, it has no relevance to this

case --
THE COURT: Well, that's what his answer is.

Just ask himwhere it's located. | nean, how could that --

how obj ectionable can that be? 1 nean --

MR RICOARD : Well, Your Honor, it's

obj ecti onabl e because it has nothing to do with the

producer-handler in this case and it has nothing to do with

any issues that we're talking about. | want to put -- then

what | want to do is let's have UDA and let's have Shanrock

up here so | can ask them proprietary guestions about where

their mlk goes, what they do with it, how rmuch they

produce, et cetera.

MR. BERDE: W're willing to answer every

question relating to what you just posed, ves.

MR. RICCIARDI: You weren't when they were up

t here.

THE COURT: They said proprietary a lot, and vour

client can do the sane thing.

MR RICCOARD : And that's exactly what |'m
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THE COURT: OCkay. So if he wants to say it's

proprietary, rather -- you know, it's | ess objectionable

than it is possibly proprietary.

MR. Rl CCl ARDI : | under st and.

THE COURT: And he's objecting to it. [|If he

wants to say it's proprietary, that's fine.

MR. RICCIARDI: Fair enough

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: Proprietary.

Q (By M. Berde) |Is GH Processing the owner of

your new plant in Yuma?

A. Yes.

Q And does mlk nove fromGHd Dairy to your new
pl ant ?

A [t's not ny plant.

Q To GH Dairy pl ant.

A. |'msorry, vou'll have to -

- could you pl ease

repeat the question.

Q Does the nilk produced at GH Dairy nove to the

new GH Dairy plant in Yuna?

A It has -- it has nothing to do with ny PD status.
Q | understand that.

A So it's proprietary.

Q Okay. Does milk nove fromyour PD, producer-

handl er, operation to your new plant?
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A M/ PD mlk, wherever | can get the npbst noney is
where | bring it.

Q I ncl uding the new plant?

A Wherever | can get the nost noney for it.

Q Well, would that be including that --

A Wherever | can get the nost noney for it.

Q | see. You also own a plant, or a dairy rather

in Hopeville, California.

A

Hopevi | | e. No. No.

Q

How about Mbountain Dairy Nunber 1, is that a

dairy farmof vours?

| think it's gone.

You think it's gone?

| think it's gone.

How about ©Muntain Dairy Nunber 2?

My boy says ves. It's gone, he says it's gone.

Ckay. And you own a dairy called Citrus Dairy?

Citrus Valley, ves.

And where is that | ocated?

Citrus Street, or Avenue, in Arizona.

And where is that mlk marketed?

Sar ah Far ns.

And Pal oom Ranch Dairy.

There is no Pal oma Ranch Dairy.

o > O P O PO PP O PO PP

Is there a Pal ona Dairy?
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A. These locations, the Ctrus and the Pai nted Rock

Dairies, are on Pal oma Ranch, so vyou're doubl e-counting.

Q | see.

A. They're -- they're in those areas.

Q Okay. Now, have | exhausted the dairies that you

or vour wife or vou and your famly own?

A No.

Q You own other dairies?

A Yes.

Q And could you list those.
A. That --

(Pause.)
MR RICOOARD : Again, Judge, | raise ny question

about proprietary and al so rel evancy.

MR. BERDE: It has to do with the size of this --

THE COURT: W don't know until we know what the

answer is, so, you know --

Q (By M. Berde) Are you stating the dairies that

ship to Sarah Farns? All the dairies that you own,

anywher e, and wherever they ship? Additional?

MR RICCIARDI : Proprietary, Judge.

A. Proprietary.

Q (By M. Berde) You want to explain for the

record what's proprietary about your ownership of a dairy?

A. Vll, | can tell vou a little story. The |ast
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meeting we were in, when | was shipping mlk back into

California, Kroger got with ny co-op, Security, and

basically said if they buy any nmlk fromne, neani ng ne,

excess mlk, that Kroger was going to cut nmy co-op off, and

since then ny co-op has disinherited ne and will not work

with me. So evervthing that cones here cones back and bites

ne. And today ny co-op will -- the co-op that | was dealing
with will not take mlk fromnme because Kroger said if he
buys mlk fromne they will not do business with them

Q | take it that your milk that you own, or mlk of

a dairy farmthat you own, was marketed through a co-op.

Was that Security?

A Yes.

Q And that milk had a market to a fluid outlet in

California --

A Correct.

Q -- is that it?

A Correct.

Q And you have other dairy farns in California,

that yvou fear if they have -- a market and a fluid outlet

m ght be cut off, is that it?

A. The co-op cut ne off, cut ne off. It cost nme --

the co-ops have the right to do things that other busi nesses

woul d be sued for.

Q We'll get to the co-op relationship with vyou in a
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nmonment .
A. Ckay.
Q Bear with ne a little bit.
A. Ckay.
Q | take it that your fear is that the mlk

production fromall of the farnse we've tal ked about, that

are not marketed to Sarah Farns, m ght lose a fluid outlet

in California, is that it?

MR. RICCIARDI: (bjection, Your Honor. [It's the

backdoor way of trying to get to the proprietary information

t hat he declined to give.

THE COURT: | think he's just asking why he

doesn't want to answer those guestions --

THE WTNESS: You're correct.

Q (By M. Berde) 1Is that correct?

A. You're correct. Anything | give you can hurt ne.

Q Ckay. So --

A It already has.

Q Now, sone of the mlk had been marketed through
Security; isn't that correct?

A. Correct.

Q And you were a nenber of Security.

A Correct.

Q And | take it you're now indicating that you are

no |l onger a nenber?
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was an associ at ed nenber
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is what they called

B

Q Wi ch of vyour

arns were nenbers of Security?

A. That's proprietary.

You'll be able to read a

court case on it

pretty soon.

Q Vel l,

it's going to be published; you may as wel

| et us know now.

A. VW'll wait.
Q Those were California farns that were nenbers of
Security?

A. That's proprietary.

Q | see.

You al so are involved in the operation of

a dairy with Anps

Decrute [phonetic], are you not?

A Correct.

Q | see. You also are involved in the operation of
a dairy with Anos Decrute?
A. Correct.
Q Is that Parunph, at Parunph, Nevada?
A. Correct.
MR_BERDE: That's P-a-r-u-mp-h, in case the

recording nachine didn't get it.

Q (By M. Berde) \Were does that mlk go?
MR _RICCIARD : (bjection, Your Honor.
Q (By M. Berde) |Isn't that part of public

information in a lawsuit?
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A. It hasn't got there vet.

THE COURT: The objection -- well --

MR _RCOARDI: Two --

THE COURT: It's outside the market, it's not

material to --

MR RICCOOARD : Exactly, Judge. 1It's outside the

marketing area, it's not relevant to anything, it has

nothing to do with the producer-handl er --

THE COURT: How is sonething outside the

mar keting area relevant to this case? You tell ne.

MR. BERDE: Your Honor, it has to do with the

ability of Sarah Farns nmilk or the milk that is controlled

by this witness to be marketed in a variety of outlets,

which totally elimnates any claimof carrvying the burden of

a surpl us. If we don't that by this part of the hearing, we

never will.

MR RICOARDI: And Your Honor, it's outside the

mar keting area, he just said it's a general partnership,

therefore he doesn't control the mlk, the mlk itself is

not part of the disposition, therefore it has nothing to do

with this case, it has nothing to do with the producer-

handler, it also contains proprietary information.

THE COURT: Well, I'll et himanswer the

question. If it's proprietary he can just say so.

Q (By M. Berde) Parunph is in Cark County,
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Nevada, isn't it?

A. |'mnot sure which county it's in.

Q Cl ark County, Nevada --

A |'mnot --
Q -- is in the marketing area.
A. |'mnot sure. | don't believe it's in that

county, though.

Q It was part of the litigation involving the

controversy between the state of California and Parunph

Dairy, was it not?

Correct.

That's all public information, isn't it?

| don't know.

o > O P

It went up to the United States Suprene Court, as

a matter of fact.

MR. ENGL.I SH: | ' m not vour | awyer

[i ndi scernible].

(Laughter.)

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: | think M. Berde should ask

M. English about that.

THE WTNESS: | don't know what county it's in.

Q (By M. Berde) GCkay. Now, on sone -- you were

-- yvou were at the hearing when JimBoyle testified, were

you not, and he referred to an article in "Successful

Farm ng," a 1995 article, in which vou were ranked as the
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second | argest dairynman in the United States. Do vou recal

t hat ?

A. | know the article.

Q And the nunber then given, in 1995, was thirteen

t housand -- herd, conbined herds of 13,000 cows.

A. That's what the article said.

Q And you woul d not disagree with that article,

woul d you?

Yes, | woul d.

It was |l ess than what you actually --

| ncorrect?

A
Q
A. No, it was incorrect.
Q
A

Incorrect. The nunbers were incorrect at that

time. They estimated. Nice estimate, but it was --

Q But the second rank was correct, was it not?

A. It'd probably've been third.

Q All right. Now, vou indicated that you are a

nenber of Security M1 K Producers.

A. No, | was an associ ated nenber and they threw ne

Q VWhat do you nean by "an associ ated nenber"?

A. W di d busi ness together.

Well, in order to be a nenber of a co-op, vou

have to commt vour milk for marketing to the co-op, don't

you?
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A. Only if you're a captive in UDA.

(Laughter.)

Q Do you know what a cooperative is?
A. It's a marketing associ ati on.
Q You had a nmarketing agreenent, did you not, with

Security, which vour son, as a matter of fact, incorporated

back in 1983?

A. Could be, at that tine it was put together, ves.

Q Yeah. And he was secretary at the tine of the

i ncorporation.

A. | believe that's correct.

Q And to be a secretary of a cooperative, you're

awar e that yvou nust be a nenber of the board of directors.

MR. YALE: Your Honor, I'mgoing to object. That

is an -- he's making a statenent, and that is leqgally

i ncorrect.

THE COURT: Well, he can say that.

MR. YALE: Yeah. | nean --

THE COURT: O course, he probably -- | think you

sort of fed hi mthe answer, but, you know, he can answer the

question or say he doesn't know or whatever.

A. Coul d you repeat the question, please.

Q (By M. Berde) Wich question?

A. | don't know. | lost it.

(Laughter.)
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Q Well, you agreed that your son was one of the

i ncorporators of Security MIk Producers.

A. He was one of the Board nmenbers at Security.

Q Okay. And so he was a nenber of Security in

terns of the marketing of mlk for Security MIk Producers,

was he not?

MR RICOARDI: A Ricciardi, for Sarah Farns.

First of all, Judge, what does it have to do with anything;

second of all, how does he know.
THE COURT: Well, | guess we'll --
MR_BERDE: | find it odd --
THE COURT: 1'Ill let himanswer the question.
MR.__BERDE: -- coming fromthis witness -- or

this interrogator, to object to what is clearly rel evant

evi dence.

MR RICOOARD : Wll, you know, you and | can

debate about it, M. Berde. Ask your question, |'l|l object

if | think it's necessary.

MR_BERDE: Al right.

Q (By M. Berde) Wuat nmlk was committed for

mar keting through Security?

A. | don't renenber at that tine.
Q | see. Is lrvin [phonetic] still a nenber of
security?

A. No, he is not.
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Q Did you have a -- did you sign a nenbership

agreenent with Security?

A Sone.

Q You bal anced sone of your production, ordinarily

going to Sarah Farns, through Security, did you not?

A. | started out in California and | had contracts

in California, and as tine went by we -- sone of the

contracts were del eted.

Q Wer e what ?

A. Del eted, you know, were run out. W're not a
lifetine nenber, | nean we have the right to | eave.
Q As a nenber of Security -- I'mtalking now about

you, not lrvin.

A. Ckay.

Q As a menber of Security.

A. | amnot a nenber of Security at this tine.

Q When you were a nenber of Security, nmy gquestion
is, what milk production was marketed through Security?

A. | don't renenber.

Q O fromwhat dairy farns were marketed through
Security?
(Pause.)

A. | don't -- you know, what dairies, | don't know.

Q You're famliar with Rockview Dairy?

A. Yes.

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

Q And did vou market nilk fromyour dairy far

2672

ms to

Rockvi ew Dairy?

A. Not directly.

Thr ough Security?

A. Correct.
Q And what dairy farns?
A Not all of them but sone of them | don't know
Q A nunber of then®
A Yes.
Q Did you seek out any other fluid outlets in
California on your own, other than through Security?
A. Yes.
And about how many?
A That's proprietary.
Q That's proprietary?
A. Yeah.
MR. YALE: Your Honor --
Q (By M. Berde) But the fact is that you did seek
out other fluid mlk outlets in California.
MR. YALE: Your Honor --
A | do not work through a co-op, if I possibly can.
| would go -- like to go direct, if | possibly can.
Q (By M. Berde) And you were successful in
finding those outlets --
MR. YALE: Your Honor, can | enter -- | just have
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-- it's nore of an inquiry. Benjam n F. Yale, on behalf of

Mallorie, Smith Farns, and Edal een.

My question is: Wat's the tine frane here? One

tine we were talking 1983. Are we still talking 1983?

THE COURT: If he doesn't know he can ask for

clarification.

MR YALE: Well, I"'mjust --

THE COURT: | nean, | understand that --

MR.__YALE: For the record purposes. If | can use
it, I"'mjust trying to figure out whether it's going on now

or whether it was --

THE COURT: That's a leqgitimte point.

MR. YALE: That's all I'masking. 1'mnot

objecting to the gquestion.

THE COURT: Okay. You know, it's five nmnutes of

four right now. Here's what |1'd like to do. I'dlike to

take what | would hope would be our final break of the day,

about a 10- or 15-minute break, then | would like to go till

either 6 o'clock or until we're done with this w tness,

whi chever cones first.

Does that sound |like an unreasonabl e approach?

O 6 o' clock -- should we say 7 o'clock -- | nmean 6 o'clock

or till he's done. Okay?

MR. YALE: Is that an incentive?

THE COURT: \What ?
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MR. YALE: That's an incentive.

THE COURT: It's an incentive that -- yeah, good

luck on that one, M. Yale.

(Laughter.)

THE COURT: So let's take a 10-m nute break, and

then we're going to do that. Of the record.

(O f the record and reconvened.)

THE COURT: On the record. M. Berde, you can

resume_your questioning.

MR. BERDE: Yes.

Q (By M. Berde) Now, M. Hettinga, at sone tine

while vou were a nenber of Security did milk marketed by

Security get delivered to Sarah Farns?

A. If it went to Sarah Farns, it would not have went

t hr ough Security.

Q If it went to -- say that again.

A. If it went to Sarah Farns, it went directly from

ny dairy to ny to ny deal [phonetic].

Q Well, | think I'mgoing to have marked as the

next exhibit --

THE COURT: 59.

Q (By M. Berde) -- 59 a single-page docunent,

which looks like it's a copy of two docunents put together,

"Hettinga Dairy" at the top, and "Select M|k Producers

Associ ation, FarmPU ticket."
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(Exhibit No. 59 was marked.)

That's a pickup ticket; isn't it?

A Correct.

Q Bul k grade A raw nmlk, showing this on a farm

pi ckup ticket of Select MIk Producers, "Producer 130," nane

"Hettinga," "delivered to Sarah Farns, Yunm, Arizona." You

see that?

A Correct.

Q Can vyou explain what that -- how that happened.

A. Yes. The truck driver had Security tickets and

used it.

Q He what ?

A. The truck driver had a Security mlk ticket and

used it.

Q And used it?

A. Yes. Because the truck driver also hauled to

Security, and that was the only paperwork he had.

Q | see. And who is Producer 1307?
A. | believe | am
Q And was 130 also a dairy farmthat was a nenber

of Security?

A. An _associ ate nenber.

An associ ate nenber of Security.

Q
A. W did business with them
Q

And that's your explanation of how that so-called
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Security milk got noved into Sarah Farnms, is that it?

A. It's not Security's mlk; it's ny mlK.

Q Well, it's vour mlk, which, however, was

commtted for marketing through Security.

A. No, it was not.

Isn't that what you just testified to?

Q
A No.
Q No?

THE COURT: He's doing a fine job of answering

the question, M. Ricciardi.

(Laughter.)

MR RICCOARDI: He is doing a fine job, Judge.

W're now tal king about this docunent, he's explained, from

1997.
THE COURT: And obviously M. Berde didn't quite

understand his explanation and he's going to explain it

agai n.

Pl ease explain it again.

THE WTNESS: You want ne to explain it again?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE WTNESS: | believe the paperwork was a truck

driver using a Security ticket to pick it up.

Q (By M. Berde) How do you know that?

A. Because it would go directly fromny dairy to ny

pl ant .
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Q And the sane truck driver, you say, also haul ed

Security's?

A Yes.

How many dairies supplied nilk to Sarah Farns?

A. Gve nme the day and the tine.
Q Well, let's take today.
A. All the three dairies that you spoke of in Nevada

-- in Arizona: Aztec, Painted Rock, and G trus Valley. And

in California, | think 131 is Corona. And then we have two

or three nore, and | don't know what their nunbers are.

Q What ' s 1397

A. | don't know.

Q 124.

A. | don't know.

Q One -- how many in total, delivered mlk, let us

say in the last two, three vears to Sarah Farns?

A. We're closing sone of our dairies down in

California and noving themto Arizona, so it's -- it's kind

of a nusical chair thing.

Q Well, let ne show you a production sheet for '97,

and |'d like to have it marked the next nunber.

THE COURT: This would be 60.

MR. BERDE: 60.

(Exhi bit No. 60 was marked.)

MR. YALE: Your Honor, | really prom sed nyself |
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wasn't going to object, but | ama little concerned. W're

tal ki ng about 1997, and there's got to be sonme rel evancy

her e. | nean, thisis --

THE COURT: Well, perhaps the connection will be

made, but I'magoing to let himgo with it for a while.

MR. YALE: | nmean, the order's been reforned

si nce then.

(Pause.)
THE COURT: |If you want to ask your guestion on

Exhi bit 60.

MR.__BERDE: Ckay.

Q (By M. Berde) \Wich one of those dairies is AH?

A | have no idea. | know themby nane, | don't
know them by nunber. 1 don't know them by nunber.

Q How about -- can you -- which one is 3H?

A. 3H woul d not be on here.

Q Do you know which one is 124, for exanple?

A. No, | do not.

Q But you'll agree that a nunber of dairies

controlled by Hein Hettinga delivered nmlk to Sarah Farns.

A. It has to be controlled by Hein Hettinga, to be

shi pped to Sarah Farns.

Q Irrespective of who the actual owners of the

farns are, is that --

A. They have to be owned by ne and ny wife and we
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have to have the same entity, and they are.

Q Yeah, uh-huh. Irrespective of what the UCC

docunents show.

A. | believe, and |'mnot sure, but -- ny boy's

goi ng through a divorce, so | don't know how her nanme got on

there, and | don't even know how his nane got on there.

MR. RICCIARDI: Your Honor, Al Ricciardi again.

W' ve got docunents from'97, the Departnent has gone

t hrough and done a fornmal audit and a nore extensive audit

than with anybody el se and nmade that determ nation.

They're trying to relitigate those issues, Judge.

It has nothing to do with what we're here for.

THE COURT: At this point, | nmean, |'ve heard the

testinony is that -- you know, that only what | wote down

as HH mlk was going to Sarah Farns, and you're arquing with

hi m about what certain pieces nean and he doesn't know what

these nunbers are exactly, and |I' mnot sure what point we

can -- what can be acconplished by qgoing any further,

especially looking at things that are getting to be seven

years old.
Q (By M. Berde) Wen you first started, or |ater

on, after 1994, were you bringing |loads of California mlKk

to Yura and then turning them around and shi ppi ng them back

to California?

A. | have done that.
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And what was t he purpose of that?

To standardi ze it.

To standardi ze the m | k?

Uh- huh.

o > © P> ©

WAs that as nuch as nine, ten | oads a day?

MR RICCOARD : Wat tine frane, Judge, and

what's the rel evance?

THE COURT: | think he had a tine frame in the

questi on. Didn't you?

THE WTNESS: Yes, he did. Wat vear was it,

t hough, agai n?

Q (By M. Berde) At the tine you started and

shortly after 1984, continuing over a period of tine, |

asked you whether you brought loads in and you said vou did,

and you indicated you did it to standardize. Did you also

do it for the purpose of subjecting that nlk to interstate

conmrer ce?

A Correct.

Q Correct?

A Correct.

Q So the milk then could go back into California

and vou would -- it would be unpriced mlk and you woul d get

the utilization of that milk froma fluid plant?

A. | could sell it to a custoner that | couldn't

sell it toif | didn't doit.
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Q Over how many years did you continue to do that?

A. It was a short tine.

Q Do you recall at the time of the last hearing, in
Arizona, involving producer-handler, the Heartl and
[phonetic] Dairy hearing --

A. Correct.

Q -- _you had soneone working for you naned O yde
Edgar ?

A Yes.

Q And who is O yde Edgar?

A G yde Edgar.

Q | nean -- describe him

(Laughter.)

Sinple answer to a conplicated question, of

course, you know. O yde Edgar was your manager?
A He was C yde Edgar.
THE COURT: Did he work for you?
THE WTNESS: He did work for ne, yes.
Q (By M. Berde) He worked for you.
A Yes.
Q Was he your manager? was ny question.
A. Manager for what?
Q Well, did he have authority to wite letters to

t he adm nistrator concerning your objections to the proposed

anendnent of the order?
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MR RICCOARD : Could we have a tine frane,

Judge.
THE COURT: He said at the -- he was talking

about the tine of the previous rul e-maki ng hearing that was

in Phoenix, not ours but the -- not this. Wat year was

t hat ?

MR 1994.

THE COURT: 1994.

MR. BERDE: Yes.

Q (By M. Berde) He wote a letter to the hearing

clerk, did he not, over -- under Sarah Farns |etterhead?
A. He may have. | don't know
Q Did he have your authority to do so?
A. | don't renenber.
Q Do you renenber at the tinme he represented that

there were three producer-handlers, with a total Cd ass |

utilization of 2.1 -- 2,140,000 dass | in the order?

A. | don't know.

MR. BERDE: I'dlike to mark next, as --

THE COURT: This wll be Exhibit 61

(Exhibit No. 61 was marked.)

THE COURT: Now, vou're going to ask questions

that's going to sonehow nmake a ni ne-year-old docunent

relevant to today's hearing, M. Berde?

MR. BERDE: Absolutely, because it will establish
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the rate of growth fromthat period.

MR. RICC ARDI: Your Honor, if you don't mnd, |

am standing next to M. Hettinga, since he's got the

docunent, and --

THE COURT: | understand. You said that before.

It's no --

MR RICOARD : It's fairly | engthy.

MR. YALE: Wiile we're -- this, Your Honor --

maybe the Departnent, they can nake their decision, but the

Order 131, as we stand today and are anmendi ng [ phonetic],

took effect on January 1st, 2000.

THE COURT: And we have this 1994 letter here.

MR. YALE: We have a 1994 letter, and the

mar keting conditions that existed in 1994, even if today is

different than 1994, aren't relevant. |If they're different

t han 2000 --

THE COURT: I'll et himask it, but I'magetting

to the edge of the anmpbunt of | eeway that | was giving him

| was trying to be the sane to both sides, but | do believe

you' re pushing the envel ope here in terns of --

Q (By M. Berde) You'll agree that at that tine,

in 1984, there was about --

THE COURT: ' 94.

Q (By M. Berde) -- 1994, there was about 2 point

-- 2,140,000 of total dass | sales from producer-handl ers?
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A. | have no idea.

Q Isn't that --

A. | don't know. | didn't --
Q Well, the docunent's here.
A. Yeah.

MR RICOARD : Well, the docunent's here. The

docunent's here, and what he's said is he doesn't know.

THE COURT: He doesn't renenber what was in a

docunent nine vears ago that he didn't wite, basically, the

testinony.
Q (By M. Berde) WII you |look at Page 2

A. | have Page 2 there.

THE COURT: Do vou have a specific part of Page 2

you want himto | ook at?

Q (By M. Berde) Well, look at about the fifth

line, it says, It evidences the remaining -- it's speaking

of the federal order data for October 1994, shows the three

pr oducer - handl ers produced 2,140,140 pounds of Class | route

di sposition while total Gass | route disposition:

95,978,000 pounds. Did | read that correctly?

A. | believe so, if you said so.

THE COURT: Yes, he read it correctly.

A. You read it correctly, okay.

Q (By M. Berde) And can you tell us what vyour

rate of expansion was since then
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A. | grew because --

(Pause.)
MR RICCOARDI : And | just want to know, are vyou

finished with this docunent, because | want to sit down

and - -

MR. BERDE: Yeah.

MR. RICCIARD : Ckay.

THE WTNESS: Am | not supposed to grow, is that
sonething illegal ?

Q (By M. Berde) And you've grown, have you not?

A Yes.

Q Subst anti al | v.

A. Only 'cause UDA and Shanrock are the only two

guys on the block and they're the people that like to trade

with ne.

Q And then already in evidence is Exhibit 17, of a

letter by dyde Edgar, dated July 15, 1994, which indicated

t hat over a 90-day period 15 mllion average production by -

- served by Hein Hettinga, or Sarah Farns --

MR RICCOARD : |'msorry, could you pl ease --

couldn't quite --

THE COURT: What's the source on that? You said

it's one of the exhibits that's already in evidence?

MR BERDE: 17.

MR. RICCOARD : And what does it say?
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MR. BERDE: Well, let nme read it, a short

docunent.

Q (By M. Berde) He said, "Sarah Farns' raw nmlk

production for the |ast 90 days was 15, 835, 086 pounds.

Sarah Farns' nilk plant bottled and sold 4,290,627 pounds of

Class | for the sane 90-day period." That would indicate

t hat your average for the nonth of production was 5 and a

quarter mllion, would it not?

A That sounds like a correct figure.

Q And that your average was 1.4 nillion of O ass
sales. |Is that correct?

A. | don't know.

Q Isn't that what it says --

A. | -- yeah --

Q -- if you take an average of the -- if you take a
3-nonth -- a single-nonth average of the 4.290627 pounds,

woul d conme out to about 1.43 nmillion for that period of

tine. You agree?

A. For that period of tine.

Q Yeah.

A If that's what the paperwork says, it's probably
correct.

Q And that would also indicate a rather dramatic

growh in vour operations since that tine?

MR _RICCIARD : (bjection, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Well, | nean -- | nean, is anyone --
no one's denied that his -- his conpany has grown fairly
significantly over the years. It nay not be relevant to the

i ssues the Secretary has to decide, but --

MR RICOARDI: And it may or nmy not be

proprietary since it's obviously sonething that's

confidential based on the fact that there are Il ess than

t hree producer-handlers in the market [i naudible].

Q (By M. Berde) Do you own California quota?
A. No, | do not.

Q Did you?

A. Yes, | have.

Q And vou shi pped for how | ong a period under

California quota?

A. | don't recall

Q Coul d vou explain what the significance of the

fact is that you had California guota and were able to ship

under that quota.

MR. YALE: darification, when, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes, when. Wen are you asking him

do you have a tine period?

MR. BERDE: Well, he -- 1 don't know, and he --

THE W TNESS: | don't either

THE COURT: This could be a tough one to get a

good answer, | think, if you don't know and he doesn't know,
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then the question --

Q (By M. Berde) Do vou sell packaged products to

Sout hwest stores, or did you?

A. | have.

And stores in Tucson?

A. | have.

Q And El Paso?

A. | believe so.

Q And 52 Food City stores?

A | believe that figure's incorrect.
Q 53?2

A 54.

Q 54.

(Laughter.)

And also to Costco and Samis Club in Arizona?

A Correct.

You receive fromthe market adm ni strator of

Order 131 each nonth a breakdown showi ng the costs per

gall on, under the federal order, do you not?

A. | don't know. M/ plant mght get it, but |

woul dn't get it.

Q What's that?

A. My plant mght get it, but | wouldn't |look at it.

Q You wouldn't look at it. Do you understand the

docunent |'mreferring to?
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A. | think 1've seen it fromtine to tine, ves.

Q Do you know why proponent receives it?

THE COURT: Are you wanting this marked, is that

why you're wal king over here with it?

MR. BERDE: Yes.

THE COURT: Ckay, we'll call it Exhibit 62,

mar ked.

(Exhi bit No. 62 was marked.)

A. No, | don't know why.

Q (By M. Berde) Well, is it used in the pricing

of your gallons of fluid mlk to your custoners?

A. VWhat's the nunber?
Q 62.

A. | wouldn't want to sell any m |k cheaper than

anybody else, so | quess | would probably look at it.

Q Well, in fact don't you send out price

announcenents to vour custoners when the federal market

order dass | price changes?

And why do you do that?

A. | don't.

Q Does your -- does Sarah Farns?
A. Soneone does, but | don't.

Q Well, does Sarah Farns do it --
A. Yes. Yes.

Q

A

The custonmer needs to know what he's going to
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have to pay for mlk next nonth.

Q Is that how you establish the selling price of

vour mlk, based on the Cass | price?

A. It is part of the fornula, ves.

MR. BERDE: |'mggoing to ask the next be marked,

a si ngl e-page docunent dated Decenber 24th.

THE COURT: Okay, vou want this marked, |'m goi ng

to have it marked as Exhibit 63.

(Exhi bit No. 63 was marked.)

Q (By M. Berde) Can you recognize that docunent,

that's been marked --

A. | recoqgnize the nane, Diadley [phonetic]. Isn't

that right?

VWhat's that?

A It 1ooks like a pricing letter.

Q A pricing letter?

A. Yeah, it looks like it.

Q Jim Gardner is your general nmanager, isn't he?

A. He's ny general nanager today.

Q And this letter is addressed to Veterans Market;
right?

A. Yes.

Q And it advises Veterans Market that because of

the increase in the Cass | price you' re changi ng your

selling price; is that correct?
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A. | believe so.

Q And is that your practice, to follow the ups and

downs of the Cass | price?

A It is basically the market.
Q [t is what?

A It's basically the narket.
Q The market.

A. Yeah.

Q What kind of a margin do vou apply to the

announced federal order Cass | price to establish a selling

pri ce per gallon?

A. | basically take the dass | price, put all ny

costs in, and try to put a dine profit, and go on.

Q Do you use the -- have you used the term"10, 10,
10, and 10"?

A Yes.

Q "Four 10s"?

A. Yes.

Q What do the Four 10s relate to?

A. I'dlike to be able -- now, these are goals, they

aren't figures.

Q Uh- huh.
A. lI'dlike to be able to run it through the plant
for adine, I'dlike to buy the products for a dine, and I1'd

like to deliver for adine and I'd like to nake a dine.
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Q And you're aware that your conpetitors in the

mar ket actually pay that dass | price to the narket

adm ni strator on their own nmlKk.

A. | believe they do.

Q Whi ch you do not.

A | don't account for it. | nean, | price to ny
custoners --
Q Uh- huh.
A -- but it's all one big pot as far as the noney
oes.
Q And has that been a part of your phenonena

success in increasing your distribution?

A. No, | don't think so. | think I was very lucky

when Shanrock -- when -- pardon ne -- Carnation or

Sun Street, or what have you, went out of business. Gosh, |

don't renenber the year, but about four years after |

started, there was -- there was nore business on the street

t han Shanrock coul d take care of and there was nobody el se

to do it, and there was a trenendous -- | nean people --

Al bertson's called us and said, "W got 180,000 gallons a

week, can you handle it," and we said no, we cannot handl e

it, we don't have the ability. W picked up the crunbs

because we could digest them and that is how we got biqg, is

because Shanrock and Sun Street, or whatever their --

Carnation, fought, and one of them went broke, and there was
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-- there was too nmuch business on the street and | picked up

all | could. |1 wish it would happen agai n, sonebody el se.

(Laughter.)

Q In view of the fact that you have access to al

these outlets, California, down to Nogales, into Mexico,

El Paso, vou really do not have a problemw th what has been

described in this hearing as surplus disposal, do you?

A. At Christmas we went to ldaho with sone mlk, and

that is not cheap

Q That happens at Chri stnas, huh?

A. Yeah. Christmas only cones once a vear, doesn't

it. The holidays stay around, it's a very difficult tine to

get rid of mlk.

Q In terns of the rest of the year, vou really do

not have a probl em because you have this nunber of outlets

to which you can di spose of your surplus.

A Are you saying custoners?

Q Qutlets. Custoners, yes. Sales.

A. Custoners dictate to ne, | don't dictate to them
Q Well, that wasn't really nmy question. M

question is: You do not have a probl em di sposi ng of what

has previously been described in this hearing as surplus

because you have all of these other outlets, including d ass

| outlets, including sales into Mexico, including sales

wherever, and including all of the custonmers in the Arizona
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market. You're running at capacity, are you not?

MR. YALE: Wi ch question, Judge? -- because

there was a series of them

THE COURT: | think one was just a slight

expansi on of the other. He can answer.

A. | have to work at balancing, | have to work at

it, nyself and a couple of other people, have to work very

diligent at it. It is not an automatic. | cannot call vyou

up, UDA, neaning -- and "bring ne five | oads today, eight

| oads tonorrow," we have a very difficult tinme on Thursday,

stores take their mlk -- they want to take npbst of their

i nventory on Thursday and Friday for the weekend, Mnday and

Sunday we have to "get a glass and try to drink it."

Q (By M. Berde) And when the plants do not take

mlk, at Sarah Farns, where do you di spose of that mlKk?

A. At the best price | can get.

Q And those best-price outlets, do they al so

include fluid outlets?

A |'msorry?

Q The best-price outlets that you keep referring

to, do they include fluid outlets?

A. VWherever | can get the best noney for ny product,

however | can do it.

Q And are vou successful in doing it?

A. |'mhere, going against billion-dollar conpanies.
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MR. BERDE: Thank vyou.

THE COURT: Thank you, M. Berde. Is there any

ot her cross-exam nation of this witness? M. English.

THE WTNESS: Can | take a break? |1'mjust

ki ddi ng.
(Laughter.)

THE WTNESS: | nmoght do it alittle |ater.

THE COURT: If you need a break, you just let ne

know.

THE WTNESS: Gkay. | Kkeep drinking water

because |' m nervous.

THE COURT: |If you need a break, let ne know,

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

MR. ENGISH It's dry air.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Charles English, for Shanrock Foods. Let ne just

start off, a couple questions, where you left off. Are you

aware that fromtinme to tine your custoners go to Shanrock

Foods to purchase product that you're unable to provide

t henf?
A No, |'m not.

Q The Exhibit 63, in which you stated that the

federal market Cass | price for January 2004 will be 14. 40,
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that's the Phoenix price, correct, that you listed at 14.40?

A. | don't know.

Q Do you know that if a price were applicable at

Yuma it would be less than the price of Phoenix?

A. | -- 1 don't know.

Q And vou don't disclose to the custoners that the

price, if it is less at Yumn, would be less at Yuma by, say,

10 cents?

A. Are vou accusing ne of selling mlk too cheap

now vou're accusing ne of selling it too high?

Q No, |'mjust asking you what you tell your
cust oners.
A. "This is the price."
Q Now, in your testinmobny -- and I'Il try as much as

possible sinply to state it, but if necessary we can | ook at

it and | ook at pages, but you've referenced sales of mlk to

Mexi co --
A. Par don?
You' ve referenced sales of mlk to Mexico?
A Yes.
Q I n package fornf
A. Yes.
Q And those sales from Sarah Farns are fluid mlKk?
A No.
Q They are not fluid mlk.
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A No.

Q You did not say that -- you didn't answer

questions fromM. Berde that you're selling mlk to Mexico

i n package fornf

A. |'mselling to Mexico, package form

Are those gall ons?

A. | would say so.

Q Do they include hal f-gallons?

A. | don't know.

Q But at [east they include gallons.

A Yes.

Q And you' ve referenced issues regarding butterfat.

Wuld it be fair to say that the mlk vou sell to Mexico on

average is of higher butterfat content than the milk vou

sell in other markets?

A. The milk that | sell to Mexico is the sane as the

f ederal standards.

Q | understand that. But is it true that the mx

of products that vou would sell to Mexico would on average

contain higher butterfat?

A. As far as the nix? Wat are you savi ng?
Q Whole milk, skimmlk, 1 percent, 2 percent.
A. Mexi can people do not drink skimmnmlk or

2 percent, because in Mexico they have a uni gue way of

making it, they add water, so they don't want to buy nothing
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but whol e mlKk.

Q So that's another way of answering the question

that | asked, which is that: ves, your mx of mlk that you

sell to Mexico is different fromthe mx that you would sel

in the United States in that on average you' d have hi gher-

butterfat-content sal es?

A. No. It would be depending on the custoner, it

woul d be depending on -- if you're dealing in a Costco or a

-- a Costco or a Sanis dub wuld be 50 2 percent and 25 on

the other two sides; an Hispanic store will be 80 to 90

percent whole mlKk.

Q That's what |'m asking, sir.

A. If it's Mexico, it will be 80 or 90 percent whole

m | K.

Q And al so vou nentioned Hi spanic. Wuld that

i nclude the Bashas stores, would those also be sales of say

80 percent whole mlKk?

A. VWi ch Bashas stores?

Q Food city.

A No.

MR RICCOARDI: Let ne object to that,

Your Honor. He's asking for proprietary information. |

asked that sane kind of information regardi ng Shanrock; they

refused to disclose that.

THE COURT: He can do the sane or answer it. I
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allowed themto ask the questions and if -- yvou know, if he

pl eads proprietary and wants to so answer, that's his

privilege.
MR. Rl CCl ARDI : It is, and he's not going to

answer that.

Q (By M. English) So you're not going to answer

any further questions about butterfat-content --

A. | think it -- it makes a trenendous difference on

what store, what | ocation, what general people are around

the area. Wien you talk in general, it is incorrect.
nean, it --

Q But at stores --

A Every store, depending on the people that are

around that store, has a different m x.

Q Wul d vou agree that the stores closer -- this is
as general question -- that stores closer to the Mexican
border, in southern Arizona, would on -- would be nore

H spani ¢ and woul d on average take higher butterfat?

A. | believe that's so.

Q Thank you, sir. Now, vou referenced the sale of

products with tanper-proof caps with a foil seal, that

prevent | eaks and air contanination. | take it that vyou

view that as an advantage in your sales.

A. An advant age?

Q Advant age to you, in order to be able to offer
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that to your custoners.

A. |'"'msorry, | don't understand what vyou're saying.

Q You offer that -- you've said that it's a nore

expensi ve product to produce; correct?

A Correct.

But _you nonet hel ess produce it; correct?

Q
A Correct.
Q

So you have nade a deternmination in your nind

that that is a -- to vour nmarketing advantage, to be able t

o

offer that opportunity to your custoners; correct?

A. The advantage part | don't understand, |'msorry.
Q Do vou believe that your custoners want that
f eature?

A. Sonme do.

Q And for those custoners who want that feature

that is therefore sonmething you are offering them that you

beli eve provides vyou with an edge over vyour conpetition

correct?

A. All they have to do is buy the -- there is no

advant age, anybody who wants to do it can buy the cap and

- it's not a secret.

Q G ven the fact that it costs nore noney to

produce, you're doing it with an expectation that vou're

going to sell nore product, aren't you?

A. | believe it's a better product.
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Q | just want to ask literally one question about

GH Processing, the plant, and it is, | believe, public

information: that that plant, located, as | believe vyou

stated in answer to a gquestion fromM. Berde, in Yuma, is

not subject to either federal or state requlation of mlk

pricing; is that correct?

A. | believe that's privil eged.

Q Ckay. Thank yvou. You also stated, and I'm

certainly happy to show it to you, but I'mgoing to read it

verbatim "Sarah" --

MR ENGISH This is on Page 6, counsel.

Q (By M. English) -- "Sarah Farns is able to

utilize these efficiencies to process nilk in a nore

efficient manner and, | believe, | ess expensive than our

conpetition."

A. | believe so.
Q Is that an advantage for you conpetitively?
A. | believe | don't "put up all the," an expression

in the industry is, "dogs and cats" that Shanrock does, and

| don't make the profits, but by not changing products, it's
cheaper to make a gallon.

Q And you find that "cheaper to making a gallon" is
an advantage for you in your --

A. No nore advantage than let's say Shanrock nmaking

12 ounces of -- they've got that -- those small sizes and
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ultra-pasteurs, they nmake about 25 cents a unit, they do

about 200 units a mnute, which relates back to about $3,000

an hour, and they run 20 hours a day, which is $60,000 a day

profit on their snaller, ultra-pasteurized products, that |

can't conpete against, so | have to go to gall ons because

can't conpete on that narket. But 1'd like to make the

$60, 000 a day, don't mi sunderstand ne.

Q And vou' ve seen Shanrock's books and therefore

vou know what Shanr ock makes on that product.

A. | 've taken the product apart. In other words, |

know how nuch nmilk's init, | know how much -- how nuch the

plastic cost, I've got the pricing; | can take it apart.

They do a very, very nice job. |'m envious.

Q And you're saying you do narket research and in

t hat nmarket research you determ ne what Shanmr ock has char ged

for that product?

A | -- just like you've got billing here, we get
billing too, we break it backwards. 1It's not a big trick

Q So that's not unusual, is it, sir.

A No.

Q But going back to the question | asked, since you

said that that was an advantage for Shanrock, do you agree

that yvour specializing in gallons in such a way as to nake

your sel ves | ess expensive than the conpetition is an

advant age?

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2703

A. No nore than a football player going agai nst a

basket ball player'd have an advantage if he's playing

football.
Q Yes or no, sir: it is an advantage.
A. | don't think | have any advantages. | just

decided to do it differently.

Q Now, when vou stated -- and |'m not going to get
in specifics, but when you stated in your testinony -- and
this was at the bottom of Page 10 -- the foll ow ng:

"Sinplistic calculation does not take into account our cost

of production, for instance, which exceeds the blend price."

A. |'msorry, you -- | heard it but | didn't. Could

you pl ease repeat it, please.

Q Sure. "The sinplistic calculation does not take

into account our cost of production, for instance, which

exceeds the blend price." That's at the bottom --

MR. ENG.ISH. For everybody else: it's at the

bottom of Page 10.

Q (By M. English) Do you recall that statenent,

t hat vou have affirned bei ng vour statenent?

A. It's ny statenent, | renenber it. Could you

repeat it again, though, because |I'mhaving a hard tinme

understanding it or what vou're asking for.

Q Well, | understand you didn't wite it, but:

"This sinplistic calculation does not take into account our

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2704

cost of production, for instance, which exceeds the blend

price." So far I'mjust asking, vou know -- that's the

statenent |'m asking you to recall, that vyour counselor read

t hat st at enment.

A. Yes, he did.

Q Now, in nmaking that calcul ation, that your costs

of production exceeds the blend price, do yvou cal cul ate your

costs of production in the way that the Econom c Research

does for USDA?

A. | don't know. | don't know how they calcul ate
their prices. | basically do all ny calculations. |If it's
feeding a cow, | know how nmuch she eats and what it costs to

feed her, per cow, per day, and when | make a bottle of

mlk, | take the Cass | price, bottle, cap, |label, nv

labor, and | try to put 10 cents on top. That's how

calculate ny price

Q | apol ogize, sir, but -- and maybe if you want to

have the docunment in front of you and counsel, that's fine,

but when | -- this is areference to vour farmside. That's

why the reference to the blend price, vour costs of

pr oducti on. | had understood the statenent to be that vour

costs of production on the farm si de exceeded the bl end

price.

And so |'m speaking to the gquestion of

cal cul ation of your cost of production as stated in this
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statenent, regarding the farm side.

Q Are you sayi ng everybody knows -- the mlk

pricing that has gone by, the dairies have actually been a

di sadvant age to have. |'d have been better off to have a

processing plant and no dairies for a certain part of the

| ast two years because the nmilk price was too cheap.

Q Now, | -- and |I haven't actually gotten there
yet --
(Laughter.)
(Pause.)
MR YALE: Your Honor, | object to the fun next

door.

(Laughter.)

MR ENGISH |I|I'mafraid they're not cheering us.

(Laughter.)

Q (By M. English) Al right, I'mgoing to try

this a different way. | nean vou did adopt it, it

ultimately is vour statenent, but --

You have a statenent that your counsel or wote,

your counsel or read, and you've adopted, that says, in

essence: our cost of production exceeds the blend price.

And that's a frane of reference.

A. Ckay.

Q I|'mnerely tryving to get at: Wen you nake that

statenent, vour calcul ation of cost of production, and for
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t hat purpose, do you include in cost of production the val ue

of the sale of cull cows?

A. Let me state it differently. | don't know

exactly how all the nunbers are put together, but |'d have

been better off last year not to have dairies, just a

processing plant. So how they cane with the figures and how

they accounted for it, | really don't know, but it was not

positive to have a dairy. It was a positive to have a

processi ng plant but not a dairy.

Q Let me try to get to the bottomline, then. You

don't know how your costs of production were calcul ated for

t he purposes of this statenment; correct?

A. | _know what it costs to produce a gallon of mlK.

Q Do vou know whether in the cost of production on

the farm side you include the value of cull cows?

A. | think it's offset with heifer replacenents, and

|'mnot sure about that, but | think heifer replacenents are

at cost, and then | believe the beef cows are going into the

cost of the -- but basically the dairy business didn't work
| ast year.
Q But vou can't tell us that you know for --

A. The vear before, really bad.

Q G her than the fact you cone to the concl usion,

you can't tell us how you know that that is cal cul at ed.

A How?
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Q The met hodol ogy that you use to reach the

conclusion that cost of production exceeds the blend price.

A. You take your cost and you take your mlk --

through the -- if it's a negative it's a negative.

THE COURT: Well, he's asking vou specifically

whet her vou included certain factors in nmaking that

calculation, and | guess he's not getting the exact answer

t hat he was hopi ng for

MR. ENG.| SH: |'mnot getting any answer.

Q (By M. English) Do you wish to add or clarify

in any way to that?

A. | know they added and subtracted, cone up with

the bottom nunber, and it was read.

Q You nade the follow ng statenent, bottom of Page

12, top of 13, again, I'lIl read it inits entirety: "At the

farmlevel, we are required to carefully maintain the |evel

of our herd. Herd fluctuati ons pose the risk of causing

| arge pool plant purchases, which would require us to | ose

our status or, alternatively, |large surpluses which nmust be

di sposed of, often at a substantial |o0ss.”

A Correct.

Q For the purposes of calculating "a substanti al
loss": conpared to what, the sales of ddass |?

A | try to mlk -- price ny mlk -- or -- pardon
ne. | try to market ny milk to get the nost noney, and if
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it -- the nobst noney is: putting it in a bottle.

Q VWhether that's in sales to Mexico or sales to

California or sales in your Arizona operations; correct?

A. Sarah Farns does not sell any nmilk in California,
bottled --
Q But GH Processi ng does; correct?

A. Privil eged.

Q You're going to say it's privil eged when we've

all been trooping up to Capitol H Il for a vyear, talking

about the sales of GH Processing to stores in southern

California, you're going to say that's privil eged?

A. | believe that that's none of this hearing's

busi ness, if we're tal ki ng about PD st at us.

Q It is none of this hearing' s business, sir, how

you actually dispose of your surplus fromyour --

A. No, because you'll plug the hole.

It's our hole, sir.

Q.
A. This isn't the conmuni st party vet.
Q.

You referenced -- you told us about it, so we'll

see what vou'll tell us about it, that you were recently

asked to price mlk for Costco, to be delivered to a narket

outside of Order 131

A Yes.

Q Can you just tell us which nmarket?

(Pause.)
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A. | don't think | should. Costco m ght be mad.

(Pause.)
Q When Parunph Dairy sells mlk to California,

isn't it true that the noney paid for that milKk is equal to

the credit provided under CDFA rules, which is "the | ower of

end plant" [phonetic] "usage or nodified gquota not | ess than

nodi fi ed overbase" [phonetic].

MR RICOARD : Your Honor, it's Al Ricciardi.

Let me object, for a variety of reasons. One, | don't think

it's relevant to anything in this hearing; twd, |'m

concerned that M. English may be using confidential

i nformati on that he may have obtai ned during the course of

representation.

Now, whet her he represents M. Hettinga or

represents soneone else or is sinply part of a joint

representation, | just think that's -- | don't it's fair to

bring it into this hearing.

MR. ENGISH  Your Honor, maybe a little

cl assification. | am.indeed counsel in the case styled

H llside Dairy versus whoever it's against now, because they

switched, Caracura [phonetic], and | do not represent

Par unph Dairy, another counsel represents Parunph Dairy.

In the course of that, in public docunents filed

in the United States District Court in 1997, filed in the

9th Circuit Court of Appeals in 1999, and, ves indeed,
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before the United States Suprene Court in 2000, 2001, 2002,

and 2003.

It has been stated that all the plaintiffs in
that case, including Parunph Dairy -- it has been stated,
exactly what price they receive for their mlk. It is
public information. It is now back in the District Court in

Sacranento, it has now been filed yvet again in sunmary

j udgnent docunents. It is not confidential information in

the slightest.

THE COURT: Ckay. I'Il Tet himanswer the

question, if he can answer the question, if he wants to

answer the question.

MR RICAOARDI: Judge, let ne finish. | nmean,

it's not just a gquestion of confidential and proprietary,

what we've got is M. English saying that he in fact

represents as co-counsel in the sane litigation -- and he

says he doesn't represent Parunph but he represents soneone

else, joint representation, this case. Now, |'m concerned,

| will tell you, that we have sone potential conflict here,

and say there was a direct conflict, but there may be one

regarding confidential information, |'mnot saying this is

particularly confidential --

THE COURT: He can claim-- he's already asked

what he's asked. | nmean, if the answer -- if he feels the

answer's privileged --

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2711

MR. ENG.ISH  Your Honor, | do need to speak to

t hat, because that's chall engi ng ny ethics.

MR RICCIARD : (Ilnaudible) challenge your

et hi cs.

MR. ENGISH The fact of the nmatter is that

i ssue was raised by M. Ricciardi to ne in Novenber in

Seattle and it was fully and faithfully resolved, and |

said, "If yvou have any further questions, you can get back

tonme." It is not even a close call, and | resent the fact

that it's being brought up on this public record when | have

actually addressed it.

MR_RCOARD : Well --

MR. ENGL.I SH: | am not counsel for this wtness.

The fact of the matter is it's public information.

THE COURT: Ckay, let's not repeat the other --

Seattle -- problem we had.

MR RICOARDI: W're not going to do that,

Judge. And I'mnot tryving to challenge his ethics at all,

and we did have a discussion about it, but | didn't realize

that he was going to be bringing up these issues on cross-

exanmi nation of the witness, and so | raise it sinmply because

| want to protect this witness in the record, that's all

and, vou know, Chip [phonetic] can address it, but |I'm

concer ned.

THE COURT: Okay, vyou can answer the question and
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say it's privileged or you don't know or whatever, whatever

you want to do.

A. "Privil eged" is nice.

Q (By M. English) So information in the

United States Suprene Court is privileged.

MR RICOARDI: Nowit's arqgunentative, Judge.

THE COURT: You don't need to do that, it's okay,

he's --

Q (By M. English) In addition to the products

you've listed, does Sarah Farns al so sell heavy creanf

A Yes.

Q Near the end of vyour testinony you state that "In

short" --

MR. ENGISH This is the top of Page 14,

counsel or.

Q (By M. English) -- "In short, the proponents

expect Sarah Farns to pay nmillions to other producers, who

have not incurred our investnent costs nor have borne any of

our risk."
A. That's absolutely correct.
Q That's the sane mllions of dollars that are

presently not being paid to the pool, that you have as an

advant age vis-a-vis requl ated handl ers; correct, sir?

A. | have no advant age.

Q And it's the sane nmillions of dollars that are
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not being paid to pool producers; correct?

A. They didn't build a plant. Any of themcan build

a plant.
MR. ENGAISH. | have no further gquestions.

THE COURT: M. Beshore, you have sonme questions?

MR. BESHORE: Marvin Beshore, for Dairy Farners

of Anerica.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. BESHORE:

Q Good afternoon, M. Hettinga. You nade sone

comments that | ast year you'd have been better off owning a

plant and not being in the dairy business. 1s that --
A. That's correct.
Q -- correctly stating it?
A (Nods head.)

Q Ckay. So | take it, then, that what you're

saying is that for all the other producers that are under

131, who did not have plant profits to offset | osses at

their farm they had the | osses.

A. It was probably pretty bl oody.

Q Now, if you took the difference between the blend

price and the Cass | price in Oder 131 | ast year out of

your operating statenent at the plant |evel --

A. |'msorry, | got distracted. Could vou start all

over again, please.
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Q Sur e. Last vear: are you talking about 2002 or

20037

A. | think this -- this is 2004. 2002 was bad, and

the first 60 days of Two Thousand -- or the first six nponths

of 2003 were bad, and, you know, | don't know where |I'm

going to end up the end of this year, but we're hoping to

not do too bad, but | haven't finished.

Q Well, let's talk about the period of 2002, and

the first half of 2003, when we can agree it was bad at the

farmlevel. Right?

A. Absol ut el v.

Q Okay. Now -- and it was bl oody, to use your own

words, for the rest of the dairy farners in Order 131 who

are -- just had their dairy farmenterprise as their

busi ness; correct?

A. The dairies -- and | ama dairyman first, | nean,

| was a dairynman before | ever becane a procedure --

Q Ckay.

A --and | relate to dairynen. | don't relate to
co-ops very well, but | do relate to dairynen.

Q Now, nmy question is -- but you said during that

period of tine vour plant was profitable but the dairy was

not: correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Now, if yvou took the profit & |loss
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statenent of vyour plant and yvou took out of it, vou renoved

fromit, the difference -- the pool equalization paynments

that vou don't have to pay because you're producer-handlers

-- -handler, the difference between the blend price and the

Class | price, $1.70, $1.50 per hundredwei ght. Gkay?

A. You al so have additional costs --
Q Wll, let's just --
A. Ckay. Go ahead.
Q -- take it a step at a tine.
A Go ahead. Al right.
If you took that value out of your plant, profit
& loss, would your plant still have been profitable?

MR. RICOARDI : Your Honor, | believe that's

proprietary information.

MR. BESHORE: Your Honor, he's been instructing

the witness persistently that way, and, you know,

M. Hettinga offered up --

THE COURT: It's inescap- -- | nean it's -- you
know, | nean, if he objects on that basis or nmakes a
statenent -- | nean yes, he is in effect doing that, |

agree, but he's entitled to it | think is what I'm --

MR. RICCIARDI: Your Honor, and let ne clarify

the record here.

THE COURT: There you are. Go ahead, talk.

MR RICOARDI: A Ricciardi. |'mhere
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representing M. Hettinga. | amgoing to represent his

interests. To the extent they're asking information that

| believe is confidential or proprietary |I'mgoing to nmake

the objection and | continue to nmake it.

MR. BESHORE: It's selective, you know,

revel ati on. He -- yvou know, of proprietary information. I

mean, whether he had a profit or a loss could be considered

proprietary. He offered that he'd had a profit at the

plant. Ckay? |'mjust asking himfurther about that. Now

M. Ricciardi wants to draw the line.

THE COURT: Ckay. But

still can't -- | agree

with vou that, you know, the door woul d have been opened,

but | -- by his own statenents, but on the other hand, |

can't make hi m answer a questi on.

You can ask him --

MR. BESHORE: | understand that. M objection is

to M. Ricciardi instructing himwhen he should and should

not --

THE COURT: He's not instructing him he's

objecting -- | nean it's a close question, but he's

instructing him as his attorney,

that he believes that it's

proprietary or confidential information he's being asked

for. He's entitled to do that,

t hi nk, vou know, and, vou

know, | think ny authority is limted.

MR. BESHORE: | think that the witness is

entitled to refuse to answer a guestion that asks for
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proprietary information.

THE COURT: Ri ght.

MR. BESHORE: | am not aware that counsel in

these proceedings is entitled to tell the witness with

respect to each question whether or not he should choose to

reveal the proprietary information or not.

THE COURT: | don't think a witness knows, vou

know, whet her sonething's legally proprietary or not and

that's what vou hire | awers for. | nmean, vou know, that's

-- but in any event --

MR. BESHORE: Do | understand M. Ricciardi to be

contending that that's leqgally proprietary?

THE COURT: He appears to be doing that, ves.

That's what he stated. Basically, he objected to the

question because it was asking for proprietary infornation,

is the way | interpreted it. Did |l interpret sonething

wong, M. Ricciardi, or is that what you're doing?

MR. RICCOARD : You did not, Judge. What they're

asking himto do is to lay bare his profit & | oss statenent

for everybody in this hearing. |If the proponents included

want to give all of their confidential proprietary

information, that's fine, but every time |'ve asked that on

cross-exanm nation |'ve been blunted by that whole issue. So

if it's proprietary on one side, it's proprietary on the

ot her.
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MR. BESHORE: | think M. Holland' s testinony

stands, vyou know, on the record in terns of information that

he was quite open about with respect to their operations.

THE COURT: If he was, it wasn't uniform | heard

the word "proprietary" uttered nmany tines in Phoenix and in

the first fewdays in Seattle as well, so | wasn't keeping
score. | guess maybe | should have.
W can probably -- vou know, because it's on the

internet, we can probably see how many tines the word

"proprietary" was used, but it was a lot on both sides.

MR. BESHORE: May | ask the witness if he's

prepared to respond to the question?

THE COURT: You can ask the witness, and, vyou

know, he doesn't have to listen to his attorney's -- if it's
advice like that, | nmean, but he nade his objection, it's
not for me to sustain on, | can't order himto answer a
questi on.

Q (By M. Beshore) Do you renenber where we |eft
of f?

A Yes. It's proprietary.

Q You' ve nmade a statenent -- you nade sone

contentions in your testinony about Exhibit 54, the article

fromDairy Foods. Do vou recall that?

A. VWhich one's that about? |'msorry.

Q This is the "A Decade of Change and a Year of

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2719

Chal l enges, the 10th Annual Dairy 100."

A. Okay, that's the one where they rate the dairies

for size?
Q Ri ght .
A. Ckay.
Q Ckay?
A (Nods head.)
Q Did you read the article?
A No.
Q Do you know anything about the article?

A. | had sonebody read part of it to ne, ves, and

basically the sizing of the dairies.

Q You nade a statenent, "There is not one producer

in the Top 100 list." D d you verify that in any way before

you nmade that statenent?

A. It's what | was led to believe or that's what
|'ve heard.

Q And how were you led to believe that?

A. | think we went down the Iist alittle bit and
they said there isn't any PDs, any -- is there a PD in
t here?

Q Well, you nmade the statenent under oath,

M. Hettinga, not ne.

A. | believe there was no PDs.

Q Okay. Do you recall Brauns testifying in this
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heari ng?
A. Yes, | do.
Q They're a PD; right?
A Yes.
Q Wul d you go to Exhibit 54, please.
A Tell nme they're in there if I'm wong.
Q Check nunber 85.
A Need gl asses too.
(Pause.)
Is that F & A Dairy --
Q 85.
A. 85, I'msorry. Okay, | missed.it.
Q So 85 is Braun's Ice Cream Conpany?
A | quess. They're bigger than | thought.
Q They' re bigger than you thought?
A Uh-huh. | didn't know they were here.

Did vou listen to their representatives

testi

nmony in this hearing? You were there when he testified

Yes.

-- in Phoenix; right?

Yes.

Did vyou pay attention to it?

| thought they did a nice job.

o > O P> O P

Do you renenber how big he said they were?
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No, | didn't recall that.

You don't renenber how nany cows he said they

had?
A Yes.
Q You do.
A Yes.
Q How many was that?
A | think 12, 000.
Q Less than you; right?

MR _RICCIARD : (bjection, Your Honor,

proprietary information.

A. | don't see howthey're there, let's put it that

way, they nust buy cream or sonething.

Q (By M. Beshore) WIlIl -- okay. How about ny

question? Less than you, right, nunber of cows?

A. Proprietary.

Q Did vou conpare where -- did you |l ook at the

reported sales totals on the exhibit and conpare where you

would stand? |I'mtalking now !l qguess -- let's just limt it

to Sarah Farns.

A. | thought they were all billion-dollar conpanies.
| don't get nowhere near a billion.

Q You read the article and thought they were al
billion-dollar conpanies?

A Uh- huh.
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Vell --

At | east Shanrock and what have you was --

Ch, vou were --

> 0 P> ©

| probably went down to Shanrock and -- | don't

know, don't renenber, but | --

Q Well, you really didn't read the list at all, did
you?

A W went over them yeah, | think ny boy and I.

Q In part?

A Pr obabl y.

Q Do you have the exhibit in front of you?

A No.

Q The copy that | have, the photocopy that's passed

out, it's difficult to read, but | take it that the two

right colums are sales figures of sonme nmagni tude, perhaps.

Can vou see the nunbers in the two right colums?

A. It looks like a hundred. | don't knowif it's a

hundred -- no, | cannot, | nean -- I'msorry, but ny evyes

aren't too good either

Q Can vyou tell what those nunbers represent,

hundreds of dollars?

A. Ch, okay, okay, plus or m nus a hundred percent

of prior vears | think is what that neant -- neans, | nean,

growmh. Isn't it? Onr the right?

Q | can't tell.
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A. Ckay. Nei t her can |. | think it's a growth

factor. They were the percentage of the sales. | know

Shanr ock had an i ncrease. Must have an unfair advant age.

Q VWll, assune that the second colum fromthe

right is a gross sales figure. Can vou tell us what it was

for Braun's there.

A. |'msorry, | changed the page. | was goi ng back

t o Shanr ock.

Q Well, | know you want to tal k about Shamrock; 1'd

rather tal k about Braun's for a ninute.

A. Ckay. Braun's lce Cream Conpany. GCkay, what,

what do you want to know?

Q VWhat sales figure were they estinated to have? |

think it's the second colum fromthe right.

A hundred is what | got, what | see.

A hundred mllion?

| don't know.

A.
Q
A.
Q

Ckay. What's the sales figure for the bottom

dairy there, Southwest Dairy? By the way, are --

A. | can't see it on this copy at all.

Q Are vou familiar with Southwest Dairy in Tyler

Texas?
A. No, | am not. | think 75 or 72.
Q Now - -

A 75 what ?
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Q MIlion dollars perhaps?

A Ckay

Q What did you understand it to be when you

conpared it to yourself?

A. | didn't conpare it to nyself.

Q Let's consider another statenent you nmade in your

sworn testinony, M. Hettinga. Page 13 --

A. Page 13 of this article?

Q No. I'msorry. Page 13 of vyour statenent,

Exhi bit 53.

A. Ckay. Wuld vou read it to ne?

Yeah, 1'll be glad to.

Q.
A. Thank vyou.
Q.

The statenment that you've made is that -- that |

want to call your attention to: "Dairy Farners of Anerica

is being investigated by the Justice Departnent for nunerous

antitrust violations.” And ny question is: Wat basis do

you have for that assertion?

A. | have heard, in articles that have been given to

ne since I'minthis legislation, that you quys are being

scrutinized very, very hard for trying to -- not trving to:
| personally think -- personally think, and | guess it's
"personally think," | don't knowif I'Il get in |legal deals

-- personally think that DFA is basically trying to contro

the mlk market and | think DFA and Dean's are working
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together to kill all conpetition.

Thi s hearing should never ever be here. W

represent three-quarters of one percent of the mlk, and the

other side represents, |'mgoing to say, 80 percent, |I'm

just throwing figures on that, | don't know, | don't have it

right -- but | honestly feel that we are just a pebble in

the shoe, and nyself, | probably deserve it, these other

good fanily people are -- are like salt of the earth, good

fam |y people, and there shouldn't be hearing on this,

they' re doi ng good business, they're doing the business the

Aneri can peopl e should, should be, free enterprise, do vour

own thing, and | think that this mlk legislation is

protecting the big guys and protecting the big co-ops.
Q Ckay.
A. That's what | think.

Q Three-quarters of one percent. Wat --

A. Soneone -- sonewhere in a hearing | heard that

figure, that three-quarters of one percent represents all of

the Cdass | mlk that all the PDs represent. Now, there

mght be alittle nore in Arizona, but sonewhere in this

room three-quarters of one percent today is all -- and

we' ve got enough paper pushers here, sonebody can give ne --

correct ne, it's fine --

Q Who nmde that statenent --

A. | don't renenber. | can renenber the statenent,
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| thought, "What are they talking about." Three-quarters of

one percent is all the PDnmlk in the United States.

Q You don't renenber who nade that statenent?

A. No. You know, |'m not good -- sonetines things

stick in ny head and they're there, and that's what | heard,

like | heard today, | think Joe Albright said that when he

first started, 50 percent of all the nmilk belonged to PDs.

Q Is it of interest to you what market he was

tal ki ng about ?

A. Sur e.

Q That woul d be pertinent?

A It would be -- | nean it's just a figure that |
heard today, | said.

Q Well, you took it to be significant, | take it.

A. Yeah.

Q Ckay. Wuld it be significant what the terns of

the PD requl ations were at that tine?

A |'msorry?

Q Wuld it be significant to you if that 50 percent

-- it's an inportant figure -- what the rules were for the

PDs at that tine?

A. That was the fiqure | heard fromJoel Al bright.

Q Do vou think it's an inportant fiqure?

A. | think there's less and | ess PDs conti nuously.

| nean, basically we've got -- the co-ops have gotten
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bi gger, they have the right -- you know. One of the reasons

-- we're very, very, very crucial about what we say here,

because whatever | eaves this room vyou'll go to it and

basically tell us, "Hey, if you're going to trade with Hein

or you're going to trade with a PD, you are not going to

trade with us" --

Q Well --
A. -- and the reason themquys all went to Alaska to
sell their mlk: because the local gquys won't sell it. You

wouldn't help ne out if | needed a load of mlk or wanted to

get rid of a load of mlKk.

Q You bei ng ne?

A. Sarah Farns. Well, DFA DFA would -- | would

have to feed it to ny calves before you quys would ever help

us, ever.
Q Do you -- are you testifying, M. Hettinga, that
in this record -- for instance, the Pacific Northwest, that

-- are you aware that the record shows that Wl cox, for

instance -- well, M. Holland testified that the 50 percent-

owned [ phonetic] dairy up there purchases mlk fromPDs for

the lower of Cass IIl or IV. Are you aware of that?

A. | believe | heard sone of that. But | also --

Q Better deal than they get from Wst Farns up

there, isn't it, M. Hettinga?

A. | don't know who West Farns is.
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Q Do you know who Darigold is?

That's another co-op, isn't it?

Q How about Nort hwest Dairynen, does that ring a

bel 1 ?
A. Is that another co-op?
Q ' m asking you
A. | don't know. | don't know.
Q You're the one who's nmking the accusations about

these co-ops trying to put people out of business.

THE COURT: W're getting a little bit

argunent ati ve. Let's just calmdown a little bit and ask

your questions.

Q (By M. Beshore) You're nmaking the contentions,

are you not, M. Hettinga, that the co-ops are attenpting to

put peopl e such as yoursel ves and producer-distributors in

the Pacific Northwest out of business?

A. Absol ut el v.

Q By buying their surplus nmilk at dass prices?

MR. YALE: Now we' re getting arqunentative,

Judge.

THE COURT: | know, but he's --

MR. YALE: Let himmake the argunent in a brief,
Judge.

MR. BESHORE: No, no. He can neke those
assertions and | can ask -- if he's going to make them |
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can ask hima couple of questions about them

THE COURT: | think you asked himand | think yvou

got _your answer. | nean --

MR. BESHORE: No, that question was not asked.

Q (By M. Beshore) 1Is buying surplus mlk at d ass

prices a tactic to put people out of business?

A. No, that is not.

Q Now, | think you said vou were careful about what

you say in these hearings because it's on the public record.

You nmay have said "crucial." 1 think you neant "careful ., "

didn't you?

A. | don't want to tell vyou exactly what |'m doi nqg,

as far as with Sarah Farns, which is ny busi ness, which --

Q |'mnot -- this gquestion is not directed to Sarah

Farns; it's directed to your statenents and your veracity,

M. Hettinga.

"Veracity."

Yes.

What's the word "veracity" --

Tr ut hf ul ness.

Trut hful ness. Ckay.
Ckay. Credibility.
Ckay.

Does that nean anything to you?

> 0 P> o P> O P> P

Yes.

R & S TYPI NG SERVI CE - (903) 725-3343
5485 S. Live Oak, G lner, Texas 75644




© 00 N oo o B~ W N P

N RN NN NN R B R R R R R R R
gaa »» W N P O ©O 0O N O 0o A W N +—» O©O

2730

Q Okay. Now, what antitrust violations are you

referring to when vou say "Dairy Farnmers of Anerica is being

i nvestigated by the Justice Departnent for nunerous

antitrust violations," can you cite nme one?

A. | can't -- there's been docunents --

Q Is the answer no, you can't cite nme one?

A. |'ve seen paperwork where you were -- DFA was --
and | can't renenber what the nanme was or what have you, |I'm

not qgood at that.

Q Are you opposed, M. Hettinga, to proposal 4 in

this proceedi ng?

A. VWhich is --?

Q The proposed ban on doubl e dipping. You know

what doubl e dipping is, don't you?

A Yes, | know what double dipping is. 1 also know
what -- by not being able to cross state lines and deal in
both states, the co-ops will have ne under their thunbs, so
yes, |'m opposed.

Q So could I ask: Since, as a producer-handler,

you're not part of the pool, you don't claimor want any

part of the pool, or the blend price, why yvou would be

opposed to there being a prohibition on a producer being

pooled with the same milk in two pools at the sane tinme?

A. As -- as | understand it, it would -- you know,

if they ever requlate ne, | would not be able to buy mlk
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out of California and blend it in the total picture and draw

fromthe pool instead of putting into the pool, is how
understand it. Now, | may have ni sunderstood it. But ves,
| ' m opposed. It's nore trade restrictions, nore -- and we

don't need nore trade restrictions, we need nore free trade.

Q Is it your position, M. Hettinga, that if vyou

were to becone pool ed, under Oder 131, that you should be

able to draw the blend price fromthe O der 31 pool and from

the California state order pool on the sane nil Kk?

A. Not on the sane mlKk.

Q I f proposal 4 prohibits that, why are you agai nst

it, against the proposal to prohibit that?

A. Because | know you're putting it in there to hurt
me. | haven't figured out exactly how, but --
(Pause.)

Q Your price list, which is Exhibit 63, that

M. Berde introduced, does --

THE COURT: Hasn't been introduced, just for the

record, they've only been marked. Exhibits 57 through 63

have only been narked and have never been introduced.

MR. BESHORE: |'msorry.
Q (By M. Beshore) -- which have been identified,
do those represent -- does that represent the full variety

of the fluid mlk products you offer at Sarah Farns?

MR. RICCIARDI: (bjection, Your Honor --
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THE W TNESS: | don't know. What's there?

MR. RICCIARDI: (bjection, Your Honor. That

woul d be proprietary to the extent that there are other

products, not on that particul ar docunent, which | don't

know how these people qgot it, but they did, obviously.

THE COURT: It happens. 1t's happened a lot in

this hearing.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: Yes, it does.

(Laughter.)

THE COURT: Do vou want to look at it and see if

you want to answer his question or not? | think it was the

| ast one --

(Pause.)
A. | think that's another product. | think. [|'m

not sure.

Q (By M. Beshore) I'msorry: vyou think it does?

No, | think there's one m ssing.

A
Q And what's that?
A

| think schoalies [phonetic] and heavy whi pping

cream | don't see that on here, but these people don't buy

it.

Q Okay. Wiat was -- besides heavy whi ppi ng cream

the ot her product was --?

A. They call it schoalie. It's a bag of mlk, for

restaurants and so forth.
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Q Ckay. On Page 10 of Exhibit 53, | want to read a

statenent made there and see if you can answer sone

questions about it. You say -- this is the second sentence

in the first full paragraph, first, Sarah Farns can only

serve those custoners who require less mlk than it can

produce.
A. That neans | can't go after like Wal -Mart because
they use -- they use 200,000 gallons a week. That neans |

can't go after Albertson's because | don't have that vol une

of excess mlk. It nmeans | can't price it, because if they
said yes, | wouldn't be able to serve them That is how
neant that.

Q So you could only serve custoners that you can
serve.

A. Yes.

Q Do you nean the entirety of their requirenents
t here?

A. Oh, I'd hate to go into Wal-Mart and say, "I'd

like to have two stores,"” they'd just kind of say, "Wll,

when you can serve themall, why don't you cone back."

Q You also -- in the sane paragraph you say you

"cannot serve custoners whose demand" -- "Sarah Farns cannot

serve custoners whose denmand for mlk is irreqular.” Wat

do vou nean by irreqular?

A. A one-shot deal, you know, sonebody calls up,
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says -- irreqular is irreqular, pretty sinple. W try to

deal with people for a long, ongoing, steady business, and

irreqular would be -- | would say school business would be
irreqular.

Q Because it's not level year-round.

A. Correct. 1t's very, very profitable, very, very

profitable, but it's not what | want to do.

Q Because you want | evel vyear-round sal es.
A. | like working seven days a week. The cows do.
Q So the pool's got to take those sales that are

irrequl ar and bal ance them <correct, the other producers in

t he mar ket ?

A. If there was a young man here that wanted to

becone a processor, | would tell himto go buy a half-pint

nmachi ne and put them up, because there's a hole there,

there's a vacuumthere, no one's serving it, it can be very,

very profitable. They haul half-pints out of New Mxico, |

think, to serve Arizona because the price was too high

Q Well, you've got a lot of capital, and obviously

the interest and ability in using it. Wy aren't you doing

t hat ?

A. You know, | work seven days a week, half a day,

12 hours, that's enough.

Q That's for next vear?

A. No, it's -- no. No. If | was going to do
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sonething I'd -- never nind.

MR. BESHORE: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thanks.

MR. BERDE: | want to inquire, was 62 and 63

recei ved?

THE COURT: No. Right now |l have Exhibits 57

t hrough 63 have been nmarked for identification, none of them

have been offered for admssion. I'mwlling to listen if

sonebody wants to offer them--

MR. BERDE: Then we offer them

THE COURT: You do offer thenf?

MR. BERDE: Yes.

THE COURT: Ckay. Any objection?

(No response.)

THE COURT: They're adnmitted into evidence,

Exhi bits 57 through 63 are adnitted into evidence.

(Exhibits Nos. 57 through 63 were received.)

THE COURT: You have nore questions, M. English?

MR. ENG.I SH:  Yes. Not very many, | hope.

FURTHER CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Sir, when vyou -- I'mqgoing to try this a

different way and see if | can get to it w thout being

proprietary.

VWhen the statenent about the Costco opportunity
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on a narket order outside of Order 131, you said, "I was

recently asked to price mlk for Costco, to be delivered to

a market outside of Oder 131," was that "I" Sarah Farns?
A Yes.
Q And since you said that Sarah Farns doesn't sell

into California, may we assune that wasn't a California

opportunity?

A Correct.

MR _RICCIARD : (bjection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: He answered it before yvou could --

MR. RICCARDI: | understand he answered it,

Judge, but, you know, to try and trap the witness, it's a

proprietary question --

THE COURT: Ckay, fine. 1t's already asked --

MR. ENGL.I SH: | think I could have nade the

argunent _on brief about it, so |l don't think it's unfair.

He said it.

THE COURT: It's asked and answered and let's

nove on.

MR. Rl CCl ARDI : | under st and.

THE COURT: |'mnot going to strike it.

M. English, are vyou --

MR _ENGISH No. [|'msorry.

Q (By M. English) Wth reference to --

MR. ENGL.I SH: For counsel's purposes and the
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parties' purposes, Page 3.

A. (By M. English) -- two other statenents you

made, one was that you --

THE COURT: You're talking Exhibit 53 now agai n?

MR. ENGISH Yes, Exhibit 53. This is the

statenent read by M. Ricciardi.

Q (By M. English) -- you reference that you're

able to put a 17-day shelf life on delivery, as opposed to

the 10-shelf |life offered by others. You renenber that

st atenent ?

A. Yeah. That was -- vyes.

Q Are vou aware that Shanmrock puts 16 to 18 days on

t heir non- ESL products?

A. | think it was 21.
Q You agree it's longer than 10 days --
A Ch, vyes.
Q -- that Shanrock puts on --
A Ch, vyes.
THE COURT: He said "non-ESL products.” | don't

know if you heard the question.

THE W TNESS:  Yes.

THE COURT: Oh, vyou did hear it, okay.

THE W TNESS:  Yes.

THE COURT: Sorry.

Q (By M. English) So your reference to 10-day
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shelf life offered by others was not a reference to

Shant ock.

A Correct.

Q Then you -- two sentences down, in the statenent

that vou' ve adopted, it says "Sarah Farns ships its gallon

mlk containers in cardboard boxes. As far as | know, no

other distributors in the marketing area have been willing

to provide this service to their custoners.”" Are you aware

t hat Shanrock provides mlk in cardboard boxes?

A. | have not seen -- | say -- are you talKking
gal | ons?
Q Yes, gallons.
A. | was not aware of it.
MR.__ENGLISH. | have no further questions.

THE COURT: Anyone el se?

(No response.)

THE COURT: Are you going to have redirect,

M. -- | was going to say, it's 20 mnutes of 6, and

Ms. Deskins has sone questions, and | don't know if vou

questions, |'mjust trying to deci de whether --

MR._RICClIARDI : Dependi ng on how nuch is asked by

the front row, Your Honor, | likely don't have any redirect.

THE COURT: Go for it, M. Deskins, you're on

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. DESKI NS
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Q Sir, | think vou m ght have answered this, but

let ne just nmake sure. For proposal 4, have you had a

chance to | ook at that proposal?

A. What they're trying to do?

Q Well, it's referred to as the doubl e-di ppi hg one.

Have you had a chance to | ook at that proposal?

A Yes.

Q Have you consi dered what inpact it would have on

your busi ness?

A It couldn't help ne.

Q Ckay, could you explain to us howit couldn't
hel p you.

A ['m-- | don't know how it could help ne, | don't
-- anytinme we -- the nore restrictions we have in the mlk
industry, and everybody, | would personally -- what is the
purpose of it, what -- they're putting it in, | think it's

just to hurt ne.

Q Ckay, so your understanding is the nore

requl ations there are, the nore it would restrict vour

busi ness?

A. Yes.

Q Ckay. And then also in your testinony there was
a sentence that read, "Indeed Sarah Farns does not have a

pri ce advantage over requl ated handl ers and these proposals,

if adopted, will place it at a distinct price disadvantage."
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Can you explain to us how the adopti on of the proposals

woul d put you at a price disadvant age.

A. Basically, | will receive -- | will have to take

mny mlk fromny cows, go to UDA, UDA -- and |'mjust using

UDA as a deal, as a -- and then when it cones back, it will

charge ny plant a price and keep noney, and it's ny nmlk

fromny cows, going to ny plant, to ny producers, and they

want to put a tax on it.

That's basically -- UDA wants to share in what |

put together, and it's ny mlk, all nmy mlk, | produced it

and nade it, and they want to be in the nmddle and pull the

creamoff the mlk and give ne back, | don't need themin

the mddle of it. Basically it's a socialistic system

And evervybody -- and | say that, everybody has an
advantage, the -- | have an advantage - and | say that,
advantage, | made it, | put ny plant together, | put ny

pl ant together, and they want to share in sone of the

profits.
Now, |'d love to share in sone of Shanrock's
problem-- profits, | would |love to share in sone of

Kroger's profits, but here they're picking on ny profits,

and | don't want to share with them | nean, | put it

together, | -- the first four years of that plant | sweated

blood trying to make it go, and | finally got over the hunp,

and |'mdoing well, and now they want ne to share ny noney,
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and | -- soneone -- an econonist said it was a tax, and

that's just exactly what it is, it's an unfair tax on ny

earni ngs and ny sweat and ny putting it together.

Q Let ne ask vou a followup on that. So you're

saying, under the proposal, if there's alimt on how many

pounds per nonth yvou can produce, vou would have to join a

co-op to stay in business?

A. It would be advantage -- then it would becone an

advantage to ne, | would have to join a co-op, then |

woul dn't have to balance, | wouldn't have to worry about nvy

mlk, I would just tell them

That's why -- Shamrock has a plant -- 10, 000- cow

dairy, and they -- when they built a brand-new dairy, they

could have went right next to it and built a brand-new

jugger [phonetic] for another 5 million, they spent probably

30, so another 5 mllion wouldn't have been nothing, and

t hey could have put a bottling plant in, and they said, No,

we're not going to put a bottling plant there, we're going

to run it through our plant, we're not going to doubl e our

over head, have two pl ants. Because they had the choi ce.

It's not an advant age. It's only an advantage if you do it

and win, and | won, and now they want to take it away.

Q Also, just to clarify your testinony, you

referred to the type of custoners that Sarah Farns has been

able to devel op over the years.
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A. Ckay.

Q Can you explain to ne how the --

M5. DESKINS: Let ne strike that question. |

don't have any further questions.

THE COURT: M. Berde?

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR BERDE:

Q |'d like to follow up on Ms. Deskins' question

and vour testinmony that if you becane requl ated you woul d

have to becone a nenber of UDA? 1Is that your understandi nq?

A. Not a nmenber or -- 1'd have to forma co-op to

get the advantages and to be able to mlk the systemlike

UDA does.

Q What nmekes you -- would you explain that to ne.

VWhat woul d change if vou were to becone requl ated, except

for the fact --

A. -- that | would give you npbney.

Q -- that you would --

THE COURT: Let himanswer the guestion.

Q (By M. Berde) -- that you would share vyour

Class | utilization or your utilization with the market as a

whol e, such as Shanrock does right now?

A. VWhat woul d change?
Q Uh- huh.

A. All the noney that | spent on building this dairy
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and putting it together, UDA would get sone of the nobney,

and | -- they did not do any of the work.

Q You are a producer in the market, are you not?

A Correct.

You are also a handler in the narket, are you

A Correct.

Q And have you ever regard the Agricultura

Mar keti ng Agreenent Act?

A No.

Q Are you unaware that the purpose -- operation of

the Act contenplates, intends, that in fact all producers in

the market share the utilization of the nmarket?

A. All they gotta do is build a --

MR. RICCARDI: Let ne object, Your Honor.

That's an arqunent for the brief. [It's asking for a |egal

conclusion of this witness that he doesn't under st and.

THE COURT: | don't know if he had a -- did you
answer that? 1'msorry, there were too many voices at the
sane tine.

THE WTNESS: | don't know if | did either but --

A Basically, UDA did not share when | was sweating

bullets, trving to nake the thing work, so | don't think

t hey should share in the noney now.

Q (By M. Berde) Wat kind of sharing did you ask
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for and got refused fromUDA, if any?

A. Sharing. UDA wants to share ny npbney, | don't
want -- | don't want none of UDA' s busi ness.
Q That's the reason for ny previous question. Are

vou unaware that sharing is the essence of a federal narket

order?

A. O a social party.

Q Well, what you're really saying is you don't like

the whole regulatory system isn't that what you're --

A I'msorry?

Q What vou're really saying is you are opposed to

the whole requlatory system

A. No, |'"'mnot. |I'mopposed to the changes. 1|'ve

| earned howto live with the system when | put the rules in

and spent the noney and sat down with people and said,

"These are the rules," and | spent ny npney and spent ny

sweat and now you want to change the rules; that's what |I'm

upset about.

Am | correct, are you wanting to change the

rul es?

Q Absol utely:; that's why we're here.

A. Ckay. Well, absolutely, | don't want to.

Q And ny question is -- since the guestion started

with respect to your statenent about sharing and your

objection, are vou unaware that that is the purpose of the
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requl atory systenf?

MR. RICCO ARDI: Your Honor, it's been asked about

15 different tines --

THE COURT: | don't think he's going to agree

with vou on that, you know, | just have a hunch, but --

THE WTNESS: They didn't share in the work or

t he noney when | had to hock ny cows to build a plant. They

didn't share. They're not entitled to any of the noney,

none.

THE COURT: GCkay, the witness may step down.

THE W TNESS: Thank you

(Wtness excused.)

THE COURT: Before | -- well, what |'mqgoing to

do is in about one ninute |'mggoing to adjourn for today,

but then | want vou all to sit tight for two ninutes so we

can tal k about tonorrow, okay? R ght now |l'mgoing to

adjourn until 8:30 tonorrow norning. Of the record.

(Wher eupon, at 5:50 p.m, the hearing was recessed, to

reconvene at 8:30 a.m on January 21, 2004, in the same

pl ace.)

*x % * * *
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